QNP4 YALE NEw HAVEN
HEALTH

October 7, 2015

Ms. Kimberly Martone
Director of Operations
Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue HE ALTH%fgge of

MS #13HCA E ACCEss
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06106

Re: Northeast Medical Group, Inc. and L&M Physician Association, Inc.

Certificate of Need Application
Dear Ms. Martone:
Enclosed please find the original, four hard copies in 3-ring binders, and an electronic copy on CD of a
Certificate of Need (CON) application for the merger of L&M Physician Association, Inc. with and into
Northeast Medical Group, Inc. Also enclosed is a check with the filing fee of $500.00.
Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions or concerns.

Thank you for your time and support of this project.

Sincerely,

Nancy Rosenthal
Senior Vice President — Health Systems Development

Enclosures

I

789 Howard Avenue
New Haven, CT 06519
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Connecticut Department
of Public Health

State of Connecticut
Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access

Certificate of Need Application
Main Form
Required for all CON applications

Conténts:

o Checklist

o List of Supplemental Forms

o General Information

o Affidavit

o Abbreviated Executive Summary

o Project Description

o Public Need and Access to Health Care
o Financial Information

o Utilization




All Supplemental Forms

In addition to completing this Main Form and the appropriate financial worksheet,
applicants must complete one of the following supplemental forms listad below. All CON
forms can be found on the OHCA website at OHCA Forms.

Conn. Gen. Staf.

Section Supplemental Form
19a-638(a)
) Establishment of a new health care facility (mental health and/or
substance ahuse) - see nofe below”
@) Transfer of ownership of a health care facility {(excludes transfer of
ownership/sale of hospital — see “Other” below)
(3) Transfer of ownership of a group practice
(4 Establishment of a freestanding emergency department
Termination of a service:
(5) termination of inpatient or outpatient services offered by a hospital
(7 termination of surgical services by an outpatient surgical facility
(8) termination of an emergency depariment by a short-ferm acute care
general hospital
(15) termination of inpatient or outpatient services offered by a hospital or
other facility or institution operated by the state that provides services
that are eligible for reimbursement under Title XVIIi or XIX of the
federal Social Security Act, 42 USC 301, as amended
(8) Establishment of an outpatient surgical facility
{9) Establishment of cardiac services
(10) Acquisition of equipment:
acquisition of computed tomography scanners, magnetic resonance
imaging scanners, positron emission tomography scanners or
pasitron emission tomography-computed tomography scanners
(11) acquisition of nonhospital based linear accelerators
(12) Increase in licensed bed capacity of a healih care facility
(13) Acquisition of equipment utilizing [new] technology ihat has not
previously been used in the state
ncrease of two or more operating rooms within any three-year perio
(14) ] f tw ti ithi th iod

by an outpatient surgical facility or short-term acute care general hospital

Other

Transfer of Ownership / Sale of Hospital

*This supplemental form should be included with all applications requesting authorization for the
astablishment of a mental health and/or substance abuse treaiment facility. For the esiablishment of
other "health care facilities,” as defined by Conn. Gen. Stat § 19a-830{11) - hospitals licensad by DPH
under chapter 386v, specialty hospilals, or a central service facility - complete the Main Form only.
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MO3LORY, JULY 2% 2055

THE HEW HAVEN REG[STER I SLASSIFIED B [

 APARTREENTS FOR:. 7" "
RENT (ONFURNISHED) -
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& faundry. W, appliances,
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| EooM5FoR i
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EMP!.G MEMTSPECMLET
FAT ~ 3G0rs/wk + henefits.
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2
deva!upmpent & placement
casg mapagement,
career munselm & employ-
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indus-
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Salary: 13.50-515. Oﬂl
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iﬁe Culnny sk Marlden

51 AA/EQE

CIRCULATION
MANAGER
NEWSPAPER

(Hew Haven Avea)

Growmg company based
in LA with muitiple sites
naraununde is Tooking for
Ciretlation Manager to
warsea 2 sita warehous.
and |G force for

a new5ite faunch in New

aven ared..

Dusties include:

Diskibulng 255K weekIy
newspapers are Hm
and professlnnally

ecrlit, copiract, and
admmlster Independent
canhactar Deih.'ary {cy

Understand  warshouse
operating EguF:dUrE and
il

Esure site staff are quall-
fied, trained a.nd QA proli-
et deffvery
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i
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ﬁng/ﬂlstrlhuhun ndus-

Salary:ssn-ssk
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LEICK IS af il A
dinssifled ad k a? f
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NEWSPAPER
{New Haven Area)
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new site launch In ¥
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Dlsh'ihlaﬁng 100-1258
weekly newspapers are
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Conizactor Delivery  {iC)
2

retand  warahouse
s%mﬁng procedures and

Ensure site staff are quali-
ﬁad hl‘ainad and QA prod-
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and customer  service
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erience with newspa
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STARTS 8L
DAY - NIGHT PROGRAMS
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TEGRCROTICES: ...
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s
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5 Industry Driva, LLC &
#F15-023 CONTINUED
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THERDAY, JULY ZB, 2015
I E [ANTED
FULLTTME::

CIRGULATION CITY OF ANSONIA _ NOTICE OF TAX STATE OF CONN
MANAGER Motor Yehlcie, Real Ectate WARRANT AND Superior Conrt
NEWSRARER and ersnnalﬁri';o eLri_yt VEHICLE TAX Juvenila Matiers

(hiew Haver Area} of Ocinherl, 2014 zredue | | vhe Tax cglfelctcr of the ellgalld-lﬂElTo

Grgwing, company hased ;‘f‘y i, 2005 and, payable | | city of New Haven, Gon- & Omas.
LA With mefiple sies uring the month of Joly L, hereby gives of Parts nknown

n LA
nationwide is looking for
a Circulation Manager ta
oversee 2 site warebous-
staff, and IC forea for
4 new siks fanch In New
Haven area.—

Duties Inclide:

Dlspributing 255K weekly
newspapers ateé  Hmely
and prafessionally

Recoyit, conirael, and
admintiter _Infependent
f:untractorfunelivary {cy

Understand
operating

warehause
rccedures and

Ensezra sita staif arz goali-
fied, tralned and QA prod-
uck delivery

Possess exceﬂent client
and customer service
skles

B:perlence with nEwspas
cirel and mar-
hng.n'dls‘mhmlun Induz-

Salary'sin-ssk
Please email resiernes

[t
ATTH; Hkxh:\mndmyel
dipsmarketing.com

DISTRIBUTION
CENTER
FACILITATOR (DEF)
NEWSPAPER
{New Haven Area)
PR b e
rationwide s looKing fora
Distributfon Center Fail-

tator for anewsie launch
n New Havenares..,

Butias inclide:

15, Tax payments may

Anso

Paymapts rnay also bs
mads in persun hatwean
the Hours of 83 ELE
W THIJRSDAY 8:30 -
5' FRIDAY B30~ £00 ab the
Tax Callector's Office, 253

Wain Street, Ansonia,
Taxpayens whp fave not

\? e bl in Jlﬂy
contact Tax Offi
for a dl;pllr.ale bl suLce

does not n\mlldatu the
fax o res&:ectlve penal-
ties should the account
hecome delinguent.
tinpald taxes will be con-
s] eed deUnque as

that dgadv InterPst will he

charged fram the original
date uf July 2015, Inter-
st s charged at the rafa
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T Elackwall Tax Callector
caty nf aRia

LEGAL NOTICE

Pursuant 1o Conn. Geq,
Stat. 516-245m, the Publ?:

nual Reconciiiation  of
the Conse
ment Mechanisms F’led

een lavied an the
il?xpayer f;r f—aIIrlge Tto pay
ersanal Froperty T2x on
'Sh&_ll_r vehicle's, and that

DIET85T, N accoréance
With ((.8.5.12-155)

TIME AND FLACE
DATE{SATURDAY) 8/16/15
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9:00 AM. Auctian starts
PLACE:  CROWN AVTO
CENTER 388 Grown Streef,
New Haver, CT.

VEHICLES

454WXAICTBLLTTIE
2TIKRIIEEICOA246T
158177! F188540

1433
20AGHT2425R434038
1FAHBZTIS6G141837

LBGRADKLISCIT9602

The Property being aue-
toned ppursuant 1o this
rotce Is belna sold “asus"
and where is"

Experlence with rewspa-

EP: circulation and mar

Ing!dlsirlh utian indus-
try pra en'ed.

Salary: 13.50-515.00/
hour, nver!nherp atd  at

Part-time & Ful —hme pe-
sitions availabl

Must have own car and
willing 1o use to QA dis-
tribution, milzage relm-
bursed at.51/m| driverl.

Plaase amal FesUimes 1o
A‘ITN HR &t cyandray®
psmarketing.com

 DISTRICT MANAGER
NEWSPAPER
{New Haven Area)

Growing company hased
In LA with multiple sltes
rationwide ts Joaking far
& District Mamager for 2
new site launch In New
Haven area..,

Dulies include:

Distiibuting 100-125K
weekly newspapers are
tmelyand professionally

Recrail, contract, and
adminisier _independent
GDnh‘acfor belivery  {C)

Understand  waraholse
upar_aﬁng procedures and
staging

Ensura sita staff are quali-
ﬁed, trained and QA prod-
uct dellvery

Possess excellent client
al?"lii customer  senvee
s

Experience with newspa~
Eer circulation and mar
ehng,di!slnhuhﬁn |11dus-

Sala.r}r.SE.S-EIBK
Flease emall resumes o

ATTN: HR at cwandrey®
<cipsatarketing.eont

EMT COVRSE
STARTS B,
DAY « RIEHT PROGRAMS

Call MedEd 203.632.8247
{6 register or for more info...

CARPENTERS!
PAINTERSE
Blage yolir 2if In our Business
Card Seulivn of st Sorvies

Bltettary, Dur readers will call
youl Thay trust our advertisers

Seithern Connecticut Gas
f.?e \2nane; Compeny and Yankee Gat
ensmn all client pmc{uct Serylces Gompany.
is di shi uted timely and
Respunslbla for qs.g[alA LEGAL NOTICE
On TOMIES
k I ependent TO BAMDEN
O avbractor orce. TAXPAVERS
lpderstand  warghousa The first Instzliment of
operating procatures taxes levied on the Grand
tist of October 1, 2004 5
Ensure that site adheras dua and payahie July 1,
go £t e thbues%r!)es? g 2015
2 exten|
pands on you. Ifthﬁeé.;?u a.rg nr:rt):alﬂ
MIGLL
Must cormmunieate well 2u%5 they wtl%!be suhiect
Be flexible and Im% or frattion ﬂmmf
guoe eme?n e dire date of July

1.2015'soihed te the fak
insialiment i5 paid, The
minimum mier 3
Is$2.00,

These taxes become des
linguent August 4, 2015 In
ceardanca Wi

acel

Ordinence alt dlnquant
motpr vehicle taxes

quiring 3 rP.Iease for rm»-
tor ‘wehicle repistadion
must ba eash,
certified check of money
o

T

“Taxes wiil be vecelved at
the Dffice of the Tax Cal-
lector, Hamien Bovern-
mentbenten 5 e

handay
throug Fndav 5:20 AM m
4306 FM,

This is stuhject {o change
o confornt fo the fatest

Public Acts, Geneyal Stat-
tites and local ordinances.

JOHM STEELE, COME
TAX.COLLFCTOR

Prblic N tlce.
Noritheast Medlca[
Inc, (NEMB) and L&M P'E)y"
slelan ~ Assatiation, Inc.

Invu!v]ng Yale-New Haven
Health Services Corpo
muan (‘YNHHSG") and
Iéa h -l-(uLMMn)arlal
orporation

YN?HEG +o become sole
member of L+ Thera
i5 jo capital expenditure
assoclated with this Apr
plication,

A petition Bas been filed
seeking: Commlitment of
minor ch!ltiérerl) of the
hove t

named in a Jawul, private
or ubln:agen nrasnlt-

e a person.
The e\ihnn,wherehyﬂ'se

decision_can af-
1cct your parental rights,
i a tmng minor
chl en) Wll be heard
nn‘ [i 1'03/15 at 10:004.0.
Iey Avenue,
CT §8511L

NIEI‘IHE. New Haven, CT

651
Therefore. ORDERED, that
notice of the hearing of
this E:eﬂ‘tmn ba given by
u‘ul ing this Order nr
oice once, Immediately
i tha New

& T
a;aer hav]gng & clren ntiua
i ity of: New

CT
Hun.!ohﬁ Crouan
Ju tﬁe
bT(a yn A Coppela
Right o Counseh Upon

_fumnf af :nahm io pﬁf'vt
ul!i pmvlde ane for " you at

cour Any such
request shuu!d he made
Immedtately af the coort
?fﬁce wil':sive your hiearing

Puhlic Notice:
Yale-New Haven Heath
Sery ces Garporation

z

nal Hospltal's current
focation at 385 Mantauk
Avenue, New torden, CT,
wIII nipt change as a resnib

a:ijnr: Thsre

ls ftal exn
asmclﬁgd w:th mis e\p-
plicatlon.

NOTICETO

CREDITORS
ESTATEOF Atna mlaia, AKA

The Hon, Beverly K. Stre-
i=Kefalas, Jud a of the
Court of Probate, Dlstrict

cover on such efalm,

Nabjl E. Valanci;
Assistantclerka‘
The fiduclary is:
Claudlz Bulald,
aka Clapdin Pela,

62 Polt Beach Drive
Milford, CT 06460
675264

LEGAL NOTICE:
The Curran_Feundabion’s
Form 980-PF is available
for public inspection by
a%?alnlment only at tha

jalzey Asgoci-
ates, 234 Church Sirest,
105 Floor, Kew Havern, T,
To taake an appointment,
please cal] 203-772-0740.

LIQUOR PERMIT
Notice of Removal
Thig 7 to give notice that

STATE OF CORN
Seperior Court
Juvenilz Matters
NOTICETO
Ofivia Simrtons-
Darveay
of Paris Unfmowm
A petition_has heen filed
seaking! Termination of

ts of the

para: Tig
above named 1n minor
‘nlld(ren) The E_At-.ﬂﬂon,

ig 0
garding minor chil rﬁl)

i
his a;:ehﬁmn be given by
ublishing this Order of
otice once, Immedlately
upan receigt, In the New
Haven Renister, a peivs-
paper havmgacucuiatmn
in the town/ity of: New

Haven, CT.

Hacr .Tohn Cranan
e

M, Lauden

T424)

NOTICETQ
CREDITORS

Tha Hon. Clitford B, Hoyle,
Judge of the Courf of Pra-
bate, Dlséﬂct of Derby

Kay Jeanette,
Chief Clark

Tha fiductary Is:
Kathleen H, Demers

73 Georga Avanue
cheshirg CT 06420

with the Dey 2ot of
Corsumer Pratection for Righ? to Conpsel: Upon
rmission ta my maf of inability ta pay
BACKAGE STORE LIQUCR jor a lawyer, the courk
business now [ocated al will provide ene for yon at
302 RACERR! ense, ANy such
ORANGE, CT 46477 request should be mada
) Immediaiely at s covrt
3704 B?{SGTE?N POE.T BB ﬂﬁ:m; W;',’EE your hearing
Kiabe
The hysiness wILI be
owned hy' TDM
/ held  sriany,
ah;echonsmmheﬁled many o) nnunMes They g.’.'fa
byr08/61/2015 %w 1o bezy Mem:
THOMAS M SMITH meelpeaple< el unwanied H.ws
, 53V o
m% i, T
A HOME OF
YoUr OWHN —_—
18 our Dreams
12 Pe?bwy Eharen HOW TO WAITE a clasiiod
A Sscond Car for Commiriing ad that goils: First »  Be com-
A )‘“;? Sale*Auizd Treasy pTela Second - Inalude Ihn
i o Sheve andﬂmrje {.n H Caﬂ Ioday arrgl:v; \'Jiell
egisi
Cfassiﬁed.g. hﬂl.u ‘you widte fhe mosl eﬁ

NOTICETO
CREDITORS
ESTATE OF
Leonard DiAntona
The Hon, john A, Keyes,
Madga of the Court of Fro-
bate, District of New Ha»

ate, DI
ven Prohate D|5h'u:l'.
ducres da&aﬂ July 2, 20
ol

Edward Cleary,
Asslstant Clerk
The fiduciary Is:

Layi Mordan
©/a Susan B. Nobleman,

31%1-3129 thtnav fva
Hamdarl, DEb1E

YOULL HEVER KNOW how
classik

ef a ol
s ona yotresl Baach b effre
areavithout lazving the somfort of

your homa. Calf and place your
classrﬁa:i todey fo sell thoss
mvanied itams,

CANTFEND whal U‘m laok.

T
\..MW

Make a list of
those items:
you're not using
anymore, then
give us a call.
We can help you
self them!

To place your ad,
call toll-free
1-800-922-7066

The Classifieds
in the

NEW HAVEN REGISTER
NewHaveﬂRegisier@;%com
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LEGALNOTICES

PROBATE ROTICES -

NEW LONDON PUBLIC SCHOOLS

¥s seeking applicants for the following adminisirative posliion:

NATHAN HALE ARTS MAGNET SCHOOL PRINCIPAL
New London, C
Grades K~5

I enly fts second vear as visual and performing arks magnet sthool In New tondan, the
Nathan Hate Arts Magnets«:hnnlguwdes students from ndergmten through grade S an
integrated Jeaming environment that combines traditional academics with an arts currict-
Tumi that Inciudas vocal and instromental muste, visual art, dance, theatre, creative writing,
and interdisciplinary aris.

The sthoo! boasts a variety of LI’L{;aen:ial aoms in which stideits can express thelr creative
Innerselves, {aclading-an o elassroomt, a muste & Instrument room, an art raom,
@ state-of-the-art dance room with spilay loaded ﬂnm‘. 2 ehoral & music roam, a kayboard
classroom, video editing roarn, and a science roam.

New_Lnndnn has been designated by state leglslation as tha only “/dagnet Disirici™ in Con-

The Nathan Hale Arts hagriet Sehool teaoh&- all facets of fhe production cycle, and
denis ereate projects for hoth school-hased and outside audiences, Instruction incmeach
demic areas, as walt as participation in live perfarmances apd public showeases of their
worlt, provide students with challengmg learring activities that will develop {heir ability
Ita gemﬁ?stmlte creativity, communicats effectively, collaborate with others, and assuma
eadershin rales,

The schos] seeks to transcend the work of a traditional elementary schoal, Teachers forns.
o educating the whole child and an developlng a community of learners fhat vafues the
wark of all individuals,

The disfrict 1s seeking a dynamic leader to join our journey. Qualified appifeants will have:

+ Passessiol of CT Adminlstative Certificata (082) or ehgxsu"ry o obiain the £T 032
+ Teachlhy and/or administrativa experienca in o mag | environment is a plus
. cgrhﬁ_ jon and instrictiopal o prachml aq:eﬂance 1 owe or mave of the fine aris (mu
vistial arts, theatey or dance) preferred
- A backgmund inand demenstrated cumrul!mantta thearls

Please subiit letter of ntent, resume, application, three fetters of reference, cerification,
a regarding and transcripls har

cg resecheg

tef Tal bman Resources Officer
New Lnndﬂr[ Public Schools

134 Williams Straet, Mew Landan, CT 08320

Closing Pate for Anplications: August 1, 2015
Applications must ba sabmitted elechonically tirough Applitrack.cont.
ip://wwwapplitrack. com/mewlondon/onlineapy/

New Londen Public Schogl District Is.an Egud Oppsrtunity/Affirmative Action EmglnyEr
Candidates from diverse racial, ethnic and cultural backgrounds are encotraged to apply

LI%UOR PERMIT

ice of Application

This Istn gwe notiea
FRAT}MAP PATEL

NDRTH HAULN, CT

LI? OR FERMIT for the
eaf alcuhu!lr: hquur

71 UINNIF‘IACS‘I‘
WALLINGFORD £T

06492-3518
The business will be
o
WMELDI-MATA LT
a}uechnns must befiled
003/05.4015
PRATIMA P PATEL

LIQUOR PERMIT
Notice of Application
This Is to give nptlce fhat
1, Kiraniumar ¥ Patel

81 RcbertTratDr.Antc.
hiliord, GT 06460

Naw Haven, CT 06511

Tha businass will
ba ownad by: MANSE

ASES C
Ohjections must be dled
by: 88/28/2015

Netioa of Tentath iermination to Approve Statforary Soource
New Sourte Revisw Permil Applizations
and Natice of Pahlic informalioral Hearieg

Applicant: GPY Towentit, LLC
Application Ne. 201408961, 261408504, 201408905, 267408905, 261406807
Eifv.']'nwn: Dxford, CT

The i Prolection %DW] Farsty glves nolica
fhal atenla‘!l‘uu dmmﬂnar jion has been macheu m apprwe 1he followng anphicadions, Tha propesed pciiity
yill atfent alr resources. The GomimdssTones gl sives polica iak a hearing inay ba hald on this applieation
itthe m&sﬁimr detepmings that the public imtarst vl best ha served thorehy, and shall il a hearing
a5 provi oW,

Applicants Name and Address:  GPV Tawanlls, LLL' 0 Brafices il Offiva Park, Stiie 300
Beintres, M 02184

Contact ¥amePhene/Emal;  Mr Andrme Razinal, {761) 848-2611. abaThai@oov o
Tipo of Parmlis: Fiva (5) Nzt Sourca Renizw pamalls for an B03 Y Combined %ﬂl
vl dust

Pawat Plaar consisting of iuve GE 7HAB1 combustion uikines
flring, balarand sl flred enplies

Televanl Blatuia{s)Megulation: 088 222474, Clean Alr Acl Amendments of 1399

Fastllty Lecation: 16 Wandrutf HIE Road, Dxford, GT 05478

T}l;leuﬂbE:P hes leatatively determinad thal the Lowest Achiavabf Ermission Rats {LAER] lor NOx emlestons
shall he!

. f..?h{?izgvﬂ and 5.0 pprwvd when combusting nalsra] gas and irz Jow sullur disifiate (L&D} for e
ebines.

» 7 ppird tor the auxifary boller buming only nature! gas.

« Feel limlslion an hours of aperation and lalest requirod USERA cerfifed engines far the diesel
emegensy and fire pump sngines

« Tha appilcant is Toquird 10 possess 234 tons of approved sarious non-aainment NOK enlsslon
reduction cradita to obisel tha potential 184.7 anpial bans of KO fhat may ba epitied from the facllity.

Actording to-the amblenl &l Impact znalysls, tha proposed Taclify will not caves or contribule slgnlﬂnam%
o may violstlo af  Watlanal Ambient Air Quality Stabderd of Praventicn of Slgniileant Deteduration (P30
inciomenl. The prdleted PSD mulli-semss amblent impacts fer pirogen dlovids {HOp), sullur dlovide (80,)
and Pk 2i2 pressnied in Iha tablo below:

PARRMETER PED INCREMENT {ug/ms) WA PACT {uafm?]
50, am! aniihimstic mean 20 [E]
50, 24-hr averags af [
500 397 average 2 ]
N0 sl 5 24
[ =10 annial ardhmate mezn i7 [
P18 24-r average E 4.2
PAY-2.5 annital arlthimct 4 0.3
M-25 24-hr eyrage 8 42

INFORMATION REQUESTS/PUBLIC COMMENT
{nteraslsd peezons (may eblein cogies of tha applieation from the aprl’cama‘tme applisants address naled
abova. Tha spalication, proposed pamhs and Stipportieg documasladon are a\.'aﬂal.\Mnrlns ullan a1 DEEF,
Bureay of Al anagmrt. ‘79 B Sireat, 57 {Topy, Hartfard, GT from 8;30 Abl o430 onday througl
Fridayand at ofher Himes by appodntment. Infarested persons have thirty {30) days Irnm puhil:aunn of s
noiice 16 sumit comments in \writing to the Bepariwznt of Sergy end Emdranmantal Proteglios, Bureau or
Al hamagement or seques| a piblic hearing nrmummg ihe cummlss}nﬁa’s Lenlelive dslerinzlion fo
approva tha parmit applicaflans, in accordance-with {he
State Agenties and sasfen 203174 ~2a(z) of tha Regldahms of Connechcul SIa!s Agencles, Please noles
The depariment has aiready detomingd it wilk i:nlda pobllic Talamiadional beafing as indicalad i the
remainder of this nolice, Wrillen comments on the application should be directed 1o Be James Gilla,
Burzau of A Manageiasni, DEER, 79 Elm Slreal, Ha:llnrd O 067055127, no Jatar than 30 days from the
puhﬁmﬁﬂxﬁi it or ihls nofice, Somments regarding 1is applcatan may be submiled via elzclmoatz mall ta:
james.

NOTIGE oF FUDLKJ INFORKAATIONAL HEARING

requested and plrstant o szetion 222-174-2afe) of the RC3A, the compfissioner will hold a Publie
lnfurmsnnnal Heuting lo take publls sammenis concerning the lontafve datermination o agprove 1he above
raferanced aft perm applieations.

Tharformational hearing will bz held on Agust 27, 2015 2] 6:30 nm al Oxferd High School, 61 Ouaker Faima
Roaé Dxlanf CT 26470, Hotice of the hearing s posted on the “Calandar of Fyvents™ an DEEP' wabsite at
fate,choavleclandaty, The bR hiearig vl be feschadulzd I inclement weathsr resnls in clo-
U nﬂmfuaal jon of lie:hearing, hizmbars uf the pubkic showld check the Calendar of Evenls Toi the dateand
e of lhe reschedated heating msn! waather prevents tha holding of the scheduled hoarig.

Thye informiaonal hearing Wil be mogeraled and reootded by a DEER hearing offfcer and vill prosead i the
{nllwAng order; presertglions from ihe a?!ﬂnanl and DEEP slef; 2 15-ralntrie off B rocord ek tat ques-
fions and answers betwssn members of (he prblic and pm:..lm!urs, and fhen the continvation o! fhe Informa-
{ioaf hearing bo receive erl and wriken commenls fivm members of the public on the racord. Comments
+ill be heard In the order in whith membars of [he pedle slpe up at the knformational hearing,

Writien sommenls Wl be erepled 2t e heari it e clese ol bus)

3, 2015, mslmcmmcmhuw.,ndwbe.mIoeubmntmmmlsbemmhugusi!?and sEplombaravatapm—
Vided at I informailon heating, Parsans sesking fo Intervens fn the hasring process must file a regtiest na
fefgr Iwan 5 days piinrte the start of he public janng. Requests mayhsmm fed or dellyered io ﬂmﬂlﬁe: ul
hdjudicaifons, 74 Efm Strest, Harlloré, CT 65108 of fled daulmn}mlyal pen,a diitdictallanaed
zddtionad Infetmation go o Seamyeldoudeeniadiueations,

DA PUBLIGATION STATEMENT
The Department of Energy and Envirenmentst Frolecifon Is an Alfinnaffie Acflon and Equz! Opportunlly
Emtlarar bt le cammitiad to tha eowrzmenle of the Emercans vith Disablllies Ast 7o request 2n acton

NOTICE OF
PUBLIC HEARING

2 Representative Policy
Bnarlczie%f e Sou! cen!
tral Conpecticut Reﬁ]mnal

ald a

munIty Center, 32 Chureh
Street, Guiltord, £T 06437,

The appl!caﬁqns aﬁa AC-
companying_informatian
are auallagle for pul;Lt
Ispection betwesn

hunrsufa.nu . amﬂs‘ou

.1m.
%hnal Water nty.
90 Sargent Drive, New Ha-
ven, connecilcut.

Alf uyers af the public

water g system.

res{dents uft & Ragional
ars

persuns _ shall
frave an, oppariuni
be heard corcerning the

Witkowskd, Norma J.
Plalniiff

s,
Withawski, Antheny T
Defendant

B ROTICE TR
Witkowshkd, Asthoay T

RetumDa‘te‘almfl
e Court hes reviewed
the Mol hdn for Orter of
Notlge and the Complaln
ApplicationiMotion Wh
as 2 divaiee {disse-
utlan of marriage). The
Couy n‘trt ‘ﬁélds th?t{'hheﬁg?tr;
Fent ad 3
1o be notifred is unknowq
and thatall reasonable ef-
fnds 0 find hlmﬂ1er z%:e
e

T B}
address of the partyto ke
notifed was; %ﬁmna

Order of hoﬁue. and. Ifac-
com| [f yikg 2 dalajnt
far vurr:a(dnssblu on of
aniagﬁe ., camplaint for
I ni ion of cw!l unlon;
eg saparanan nrannul~

NOTICETO

CREDITORS
ESTATE OF Phan Au

The Hon. Eeverly K Stre-
i-Kefaias, lsdge of the

musﬁ he presented tc
Tidberary af
below, Fallureio prnnP:tIy
result in th
ts to racover un su:h
c alm.

Elizabeth bavls,
chief clerk

The fiduciary s

Kiet
.mclaytnn Sireet
MII rd T 06461

NOTICE
FORECLOSURE
AUCTION
SALE

Daocket No:
NNH-CV-14-6050983-5
2l

Case Nafpel
Walls Fargo £l |

ent, o7
an Appllcaﬁnnforcustod
o visitation, a statemet

at Atriomatic Court Br\-
ders have been issued in

necilcul  Practfce Book

a?ai:rigpl'cauan gn ﬁn]‘:
i

ﬂnm% 8@ Irt. The notice

should appear omce he-

fore 8/6/15 for ane tima

publjcation and ?mnf of
SErvics ﬂﬂli befi
i

ed with

NOTICETO
CREDITORS

ESTATE OF
Georga T. Middletan, I,
AKA George Middieton

The Hon, Beverly K, Sire-
-Kefaf: Judg; of the
te, Dis-

Nah:l E Valeneia,
Assistant Clerk

The fiduclary is:

rjvanni\n\'iddlatan
c/n el C. Harp, Es

.\35 Plalns T%d.. Ste zusE
wmr d CLOB4E0

S en i
Penders, Adrienna G,
etal
Properiy Address:
100 Edgar Street
gast H%grn. CT
rop e
Reswdena'apl
Date of Sale:
August § 2015
at 12:00pm

mmittee Name:.
Attcrnagukelth W, Sitmick
Phnne Numher‘
02) 458.5820

Sea Foreclnsure Sales aty

W, nd.ctgnvfurmere
detafed imormation

matters under
afipn.
Themas P. Clifford Il
Chairman
REPRESENTATIVE POLICY
BDARD

Selth Central Connecticut
Regional Water District

90 Sargent Drive
New avan. CT DB51L

Public Nofice:

I ngiEalfltE) dcli‘l&MPhH‘-
m:. an
slclan  Assoclation, the

the sumlvmg entity.
transfer of owRerahlp of

Mem
Curé:oraﬁnn (“L+M"} fnr
HSE ta becamne sole
member of L¥M, There
Is o capltal expenditure
assotiaied with this Ap-
plication,

NOTICE TO
CREDITORS
JATE OF
Henrietta Veronica,
connefly
The Hon. Edward L B

., Judge of the ceurt
Probate, DIstriet of Ham-

LEGAL
NOTICE
FORECLOSURE
AUCTION
SALE
Doaleat No;
CV-10-6010384-5

e Nama;
LP. Margan Chasa
Ra[ﬁhwm'vi Gankar,
etal

Property Address:
675 uwnsend Ave,

0l
Raidenﬁal candlaminium
Sales
mnustﬂ, 2015
2k zla'bgp. i
Required Deposi
qu gﬂ
cammmee Namet
Carl ¥, Pantalas, Esyf,
Commities Phnne
Nuuber (203} #81-7472

See Foraclasure Sales af,
W fy oy for de-
taled informatien

Public Nuhce'
Yal=New Haven Health
Seryies corporation
("‘;‘NHHSC") and -

morial Corpo-
rallnn {"L+M") a.re!mnﬂy
ﬁlmi}acemﬁcateu Need
Application pursuant in
Connecticut General Stat-
utes 192638 (a) (2) ang

EPP

ecome the su]a memhbar

of L+M, which will resit

{_I;l IE'I\gience + Mer‘rimn
05| joining an

cam?n plart u? Ya!e

New Haven Health

iem, (awrence + Mcma-

fal  Hospi
Em:aimn at 365 Monlzuk
Avenue, New Lond:
will not change as aresuIE
of ihis !ransacﬂlm There
is no capital expenditure
assa:iated \wth thrs Ap-

fatms st he pre-
sented ta the fidoch
the addrass below. Fai ure

the loss of rights to recov-
«r on such clafm,

Valerle A Dandl, Clerk

den - B;ythgny Prghatg LEGAL
ecree
JuIIyzlz,lnzs, unEeLed it l\]iEOTlCE
elaims must be
seited to the fduca 8 at FORECLOSURE
= Below, Talline AUCTION
romptly present any
L1 clai)m may resylt in SALE
the loss of riohis to recove
o such chaim. Daocket No.
Lt H—cms—mmzu 5
Valerie A, Dondl, Clerk Case Namp:
Humphrey?lace
“the fiductary fst candeminiun:
Asso nn.lm:.
Louls Scoppetic
/o Allisan M. DePasia, M&Tﬂank aka
Esa. Manufacturers and
Flaman DaPaola, e TladersTrusiCcmpany
0. Drawer 966 perty Address
3‘!5 Boston Post Rd, 55 Walnnt Straet, Ualts -3,
Drange, CF 06477 He! w Haven T 651
530287 erty Type;
Date of Sale:
NOT;CE 0 August 8, 2015
CREDITORS 5 'TT - e
3 ficholas M. Troi
Meary Caiferine Felton P [fu mrh'h'rti . be
The Hon. Edward C. Eurt. one umner:
_;,.‘. jgfgegl";éhca@ C??F {283) B62-1182
robate, D of Ham- £ f <ee toreclosure Sales at
men - E;yﬂwaﬂy Pruhaetg 0w for. mora
JuIyzz 3815, ordered that ntorfaation

GLASSIFIED
IS OPEN

2:00 AN - 5:00 FM

“the fduchary 1 LCalt 1.8BD 9%12.7066
Laura M. Vitello CLASEIF]EBS@
/o Jefirey R, Borak, Esq.
gl Jefiey . Borak, sy HEHEGISTER. COM
Walllngford, £T 06492
608206
vehen placing
A piresified 10 gat fast resulls
CLEANING DUT YOUR ba Sll ra o ncllide;
ATTIC OR GARARE? %)allthe delails
CALL1-800-922-7065 2lindude theprica

10




Easterm Connecticut’s
leading newspapet is

CUSTOMER
—SERVICE —

REPRESENTATIVE

Pesition Descriptlon: This is a part-time L 3 —_ —_
{25 howrs/iweek) position. Respensible for We !!e Loalzlng 0 P E RA’E‘ l G ﬁ S
icat] ith custy la telephone,
s e B o for Game MOTORROUTE DRIVERS
and the upkeep of customer records,

Position Pescription: The Day is currently

changers ¥ aceepting applteations for motor route

Qualifications Reeulved; This posltion drlyars for the towns of Ledyard and

requires strong communication and cusiomer T Gales Ferry,
service skills, data input expartence and COI!.faCf us OdaY Qualifications Requirad: A valid driver's
Famillarlty with the custemer service phone

license, a good driving record, proof

support enviranment. Experience with to Leam More. of insurance, and a reliable vehicle is

Microsoft Office preferrad. Flexibility in hours required. Must be able 1o lift up to 50
and days worked raquired. Ins. Excellept pay, early morning hours,

Publication Date: 07/27/2015

-5
g HMonday, July 27, 2615 The Day www.theday.com DE
=
]
s
o
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=
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% ’ ‘ i PLACE YCUR AD
s ANYTIME AT
a
2 theday.com/classified
=
c
=]
o
e
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Eastern Connecticut’s

leading newspaper is

T

07/28/2015

CUSTOMER
—SERVICE —

REPRESENTATIVE

Pasition Description: This Is 2 part-time
{25 hours/week) position. Respensihle for

—OPERATIONS—

We’re Looking

Publication Date

This E-Sheet(R) confirms that the ad appeared in The Day on the date and page indicated. You may not create derivative works

communicating with customers via tefephone,
email and matl, as well as produding reports
and the upkeep of customer records.

Qualifications Reqsaired: This position
requires strong communication and customer
service skills, data Input experience and
Tamiilatity with the customer service phone
suppert environment. Experfence with
Microsoft Office preferred. Hexibllity in hours
and days worked required,

for Game

Changezrs.
Contact us Today
to Leam Move,

WMOTOR ROUTE DRIVERS

Position Description: The Day is currently
accepting applications Tor motor route
dhivers for the towns of Ledyard and
Gales Ferry.

Qualifications Required: A valid driver's
license, & good driving record, proof
of insurance, ahd 2 refiable vehide i
required. Must be able 1o ilfi up to 60
{bs. Excellent pay, eatly marning haurs,




/| PO# E. Goncalves/Pub

Client Name:
Advertiser

¢00607989

Ad Number:

Mason Inc/Yale New Haven Hospital -...

Sports/C006/

Insertion Number:

Size

Section/Page/Zone

2x1.51
Description

BEw

19342 Public Notice Yale-New Haven

Color Type

07/29/2015

Publication Date

This E-Sheet{R) confirms that the ad appeared in The Day on the date and page indicated. You may not create derivative works, or in any way exploit or repurpose any content displayed, or contained, on the electronic tearsheet,

CG The Day wwwitheday.com Wednesday, July 29, 2015

PLACEYOURAD

MARKETPLAGC E it

f Doy - ey,

ent e raE
G I 45 65 |8
RN

s{;:;,:j:nﬂm%;j “BEEIN ol &

of b of Eneoy ord

e ) mmerﬂe
e A e Ao mupm!lm‘hhsallmwﬂlmzdﬂ;?& e el Enls
‘ﬂ'wpﬂﬂaﬂ!ﬁ”l’smﬂlnﬂalaxﬂlyn:na:h»fgnmﬂhﬂewddﬂ ul[mxznmu;
T Cemissbrer s s 1t e o bt ey el
TSt o P Tdeect AT et T s s a1 Pl e

s e and AGH Bechhe Towt feantion
w&ﬂh’: m’ mm?‘ Daxa mmm@uﬂwmmx T n HWE:&
s ol
CES TN 1 Tamusbry Ree O
3 s fily

ity 2 eond, Gl €T Lrealien iz

bt TSP
mdymnmmhm&mfﬂalw‘xdl (g Use pppBiant t tha pbeze addriy, Tha smficaton,

SEDS S, Maond 385,

) 75
i ool shar aviale e B, bl o L 15 i
BT i ol o T T e B s T T s A e T
Srpialme B ers iy e S W v e G e ot thile S
Al o amcotdencemHhACSA S=D L A73-300, el o roast o bl okl o T
¢ hedity e the el 2 2iriacd I M sl a8ivire, Boeagy ol B
St Hinfond, CT 04105 5127, b0 Tlas €Ki 20 s ke the paisticn Gabe o His i H‘isdnnndev
‘= b 2k bt ribmeling Y the 1. Eiceratalslection pency (EPA) 45 3 iy
m!mﬁuﬂ:mﬂf'llﬂlmllmulk 1 £ wril 3 froen Tecaizh.
I o8 E1A v el sl i ey 1 o hnini: durss g
a\(m:m:ip;iu |gd“@mh§zlebmdnﬂmkvpemimmu\pﬂku U2 ol
Bldkthmﬂltdhwrimm
Ths ol 5 roqres by 155 seclon 2248 and SR Sstin 2254350,
Tt meutr ot Evy g | Emmradangst
o o o "
R ot e P St Baty oy | ArGonden—
anadt vt 3t (6 155910, oy docnar mrnndativne e g, aﬁimﬁ}m
pres e Frave
Tormet st g Liouor Pemil : | S, 'u;m_»g
§ Wik of ResTitin Siad iy
FobtendSpoad Torm kg s sy
e 18 byt slven of & Sl Tonrs ecing ofthe Yout of 23t sqmm_mnusn : : W_mm 3 | o ot —
sen iy AT o 8 T Toun sl f e Vo st st 3 e re et et | o e N | R
T O by T o e | b yeprar.
. ﬁg Ry i i -
ke k. | Tenehn 27 Famnkt | St
ith tha Drsitart of fra i
e inmnﬂm&m:‘f :rad.?ff .u.du e Wl € | B O | G 0% | Whitn ~ afit) | vt bt tibletiy
and o o LRI P prave)
mmmémwrmrm rars & mﬂuﬁnm{:n BT ve | weseeen i e T
e T eS| miEt
¥ o ¥ z z
Foundalionat Ibe The betiness will ke ormert FSSNRNFi.ETIme o T
1 562800 oo 1, T ST e Ve
il al gy anmmumlmm i ance E’f,f‘ ey
U;mbummmmwuhm W ezt OF "“B'QH'S JKSHF%’M - Mk%ww
-3 ShER PartTime. |
2T Dpdtomt 4 spocabniprapihilan In the S of §30,£L0 30 CHAE Fuid 52 Muul bd ped by Merchandises|

S o b ok e ot e ot by o ot Dl TRE of 5, ShvaTORE
a’ﬂ-m:mmm(omu\&gﬁmmmmg:nimn 7|

LHA
oonciti fiode he Tar Hillto th Hrantié P Sl 39 Shilk Part time

nke e Comneei ot [
3 »mea"s"émﬁ:pn 5 L o480 T Toeg 2 L e
i patoseard ot pow Bierat acd - Por e Al Shifts DT
o anpets g il “‘W“'“‘
proecis cansistont ik {2 Oyl unprm FTSW Hust baive T year SHE m%sm-xsm e
s mep il teraieols mlnfllwmhm!m aparine
e 24 Tt T
o
¢ o e Tl s EASiE it fpeeie L Th
mm”z ST EIRA ot el oo b o (EEn R o
ed 2 EDE e, CT HES 25t daref by """“‘""'m‘m e T
15, et 3, 205, Wit ety '@‘ o
ot of Selartrusa e ok M t0
. F
Wik €. FStherean, Kevta Seer, Matc Salams, Hally Crassarean, Gace Ann Bardy, Emmmdﬁhd
R thEsS, FMMWME' TR Obm147
e st WOTWigy || B g | _on
audle E i i / Pk Abert Loy F Eaay B Ten
Hotioe ; pd b
You b 8 Vebae — s gi"m Yot
ket Usbar Enup s GEIGL ud sl | 500 M Al CallBE0RE5752 B 10, 205 HH
Gt T TyDenﬁﬁ\\“l ReyuiStaflordshire.
i"."‘&m"""“?a?u‘?"n’n B e ot L st e e
ali
bl b iy WO g 4 ot et T e L
e ol
7 o e s o 'J:'Wr'lkn Treteaed ||| e L V"“?' e
i Kol e Ot RIS 24 Fi ﬁil‘['ﬂﬂl ofimlum st e, 14 G & R0,
i LM fon THAASE] oty o es
o beconst bnke membr of LA Trere 15 m i rarizadny ki son] ta
cendioat apn s ith i dscation: ke oy
— e —— et

IHDEPENPET
LONTRALTORS

T

ey Moge fRi Seies Comanll
EHETY ot Loweece + Hanats ot

Wﬂa‘ Hnly Ryo 3 szt of B
i bt o oo G

el = e s !‘Ewlmard mﬁrnl
st G 3 or il

‘i hed ymminhml!!‘

Animals
and Pets

Annguncements

i
i

;
:

:
&

CURRENTLY LOOKING FOR A

SALES CONTRACTOR

FRIMARY DEVIES & RESPONSIBHITIES;
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BEHTHACY,
TSGRty e | 2010 Hock = Thela ool « Establishes prospect rosher of pofential efents
P e %ﬁmﬁ% it s Hoven Courty
- M ftacts and closes sales
= Prozeases weekly dealer Inventory information
o appear within magazinz
Eestern Connecticut’s + Commuwleates infermatlan to creative Hasan
Ieading newspaper is + Process of adveriising paymants

+ Contaoks The Day Sales Management fer the
preaessTng of orders and ammyiall marketing
materals needst

* Pvides auperar customer sanvicd 10 activa

arcaunis and pragpacts

JOB REQUIHEMERTS;

= Knowiedge of sutomotive sales of industry.

« Ablity to learn produet offering and ta affectivaly sell §
to customars, 8kills nezdad indude probiem sohing,

NO

CUSTOMER organlzzsion, customer refabions, decision-making
—Réggmgﬁ: and witlen and verksl comimunication sidlls, Abifty
ity We'reLooking —OPERATIONS—|[|  1>rhério Awiet s oad compue i sizn 2/ g
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Affidavit

Applicant; Northeast Medical Group, Ine.

Project Title: Merger of L.&M Physician Association, [nc. and Northeast Medical Group, Inc.

i, _Amit Rastogi, MD Interim Chief Executive Oificer
(Name) (Position — CEO or CFO)

of Noriheast Medical Group, Inc. being duly sworn, depose and siate that the (Facility Name)
said facility complies with the appropriate and applicable criteria as set forth in the Sections 19a-
630, 19a-637, 19a-638, 19a-639, 19a-486 andfor 4-181 of the Connecticut General Stafutes.

- %ﬁ < 9-22- 5

Sighature Date

‘ Subscribed and sworn to before me on Seme e 22, ; 2o s

V{aDL(fﬂCLMD AQ" W

Notary Public/Commissioner of Superior Court

My commission expires: _ 3 -3 1~1 §
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Affidavit

Applicant: L&M Physician Association, Inc.

Project Title: Merger of L&M Physician Association, Inc. and Northeast Medical Group, Inc.

I, Christopher M. Lehirach, M.D., President
(Name) (Position — CEO or CFO}

of L&M Physician Association, Inc.. being duly sworn, depose and state that the (Facility Name)
said facility complies with the appropriate and applicable criteria as set forth in the Sections 19a-
630, 18a-637, 19a-638, 19a-639, 19a-486 and/or 4-181 of the Connecticut General Statutes.

///"\ N dMe-2015

Signature Date

Subscribed and sworn to before me on Q ’ / b ' 3/[9 )

Mﬂ I

Nota Pubhc/Commassmner of Superior Court

M SANTACHOCE

B0 nnectmut
0, 207F

My commission expires:.

EN
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EXHIBIT IV




Instructions:

Checklist

1. Please check each box below, as appropriate; and
2. The completed checklist must be submitted as the first page of the CON
application.

X

X

Attached is a paginated hard copy of the CON application including a
completed affidavit, signed and notarized by the appropriate individuals.

(*New*). A completed supplemental application specific to the proposal
type, available on OHCA'’s website under “OHCA Forms.” A list of
supplemental forms can be found on page 2.

Attached is the CON application filing fee in the form of a certified, cashier
or business check made out to the “Treasurer State of Connecticut” in the
amount of $500.

Attached is evidence demonstrating that public notice has been published
in a suitable newspaper that relates to the location of the proposal, 3 days
in a row, at least 20 days prior to the submission of the CON application
to OHCA. (OHCA requests that the Applicant fax a courtesy copy to
OHCA (860) 418-7053, at the time of the publication)

Attached is a completed Financial Attachment

Submission includes one (1) original and four (4) hard copies with each
set placed in 3-ring binders.

The following have been submitted on a CD

1. A scanned copy of each submission in its entirety, including all
attachments in Adobe (.pdf) format.

2. An electronic copy of the applicant’s responses in MS Word (the
applications) and MS Excel (the financial attachment).
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MEDICAID TYPE OF
MAIN SITE PROVIDER ID| FACILITY MAIN SITE NAME
R Medical
wnINA Foundation Northeast Madical Group, Incorporated
,g STREET & NUMBER
=|99 Hawley Lane
TOWN ZIP CODE
Stratford 06614
MEDICAID TYPE OF
PROJECT SITE |PROVIDER ID FACILITY PROJECT SITE NAME
2 Medical ‘
i”_, New London, CT Foundation L&M Physician Association, Inc.
_8 STREET & NUMBER
09: 365 Montauk Avenue
TOWN ZIP CODE
New London 06320
OPERATING CERTIFICATE TYPE OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL OPERATE OF
NUMBER FACILITY THE FACILITY (or proposed operator)
|
o
S STREET & NUMBER
o
(@)
TOWN ZIP CODE
NAME TITLE
@ Amit Rastogi, M.D, Interim Chief Executive Officer
B STREET & NUMBER
§ 29 Hawley Lane
ol [ TOWN STATE ZIP CODE
& Stratford CT 06614
G [TELEPHONE FAX E-MAIL ADDRESS
203-502-6502 203-502-6556 amit.rastogi@ynhh.org
Title of Attachment:
is the applicant an existing facility? If yes, attach a copy of the YES
resolution of partners, corporate directors, or LLC managers, NO Attachment [
as the case may be, authorizing the project.
. . -
Does the Apphcant have non-profit status? If yes, attach YES Atiachment Il
documentation. NO []




PC [] Other:
ldentify the Applicant’s ownership type. LLC E]

Corporation
Applicant's Fiscal Year (mm/dd) Start 101 End 9/30

Contact:

ldeniify a single person that will act as the contact between OHCA and the Applicant.

20

NAME

TITLE

Senior Vice President, Strategy and Regulatory

5 |Nancy Rosenthal Planning

E |STREET & NUMBER

g 5 Perryridge Road

= [TOWN STATE ZIP CODE

% Greenwich CT 06830

‘EEG TELEPHONE FAX E-MAIL ADDRESS

8 203-863-3908 203-863-4736 nancy.rosenthal @ynhh.org

RELATIONSHIP TO
APPLICANT

Employee

ldentify the person primarily responsible for preparation of the application {optional).

NAME TITLE
Karen Banoff, KMB Consulfing, LLC Principal

. STREET & NUMBER

£ 191 Old Hollow Road

E TOWN STATE ZIP CODE

8 [Trumbull CT 06611

;_“’ TELEPHONE FAX E-MAIL ADDRESS
203-459-1601 203-459-1601 kKbanoff@kmbconsult.com

RELATIONSHIP TO
APPLICANT

Consuliant




Executive Summary

The purpose of the Executive Summary is fo give the reviewer a conceptual
understanding of the proposal. In the space below, provide a succinct overview
of your proposal (this may be done in bullet format}). Summarize the key
elements of the proposed project. Details should be provided in the appropriate
sections of the application that follow.

This Certificate of Need (CON) application is being submitied as required by
Connecticut General Statute §19a-638 (a) (3) which requires CON approval for the
merger of L&M Physician Asscciation, Inc. ("L&MPA”") with and into the Northeast
Medical Group, Inc. (*NEMG”) with NEMG being the surviving entity. This CON is a
requirement of the decision to pursue an affiliation between Yale New Haven Health
Services Corporation (“YNHHSC”) and Lawrence + Memorial Corporation (“L.+M")
whereby YNHHSC proposes to become the sole corporate member of L+M. Becauss
Connecticut state law prohibits a health system such as YNHHSC from having more
than one medical foundation, the only option for the transaction was to merge L&MPA
into NEMG.

Access fo care will be enhanced with the overall affiliation between YNHHSC and
L+M as described in a separate CON application for the larger fransaction. The
overall affiliation will address existing physician shortages in key areas and the added
physicians to the service area will enhance access to care. Residents in the L&MPA
community will have better physician access locally and avoid unnecessary
emergency room visits that can result from lack of access fo primary care providers.
Both applicants are committed to providing care to Medicaid recipients and uninsured
individuals.

The proposed merger will also improve the overall coordination of patient care as the
same electronic medical record, policies and processes will be in place at all
YNHHSC facilities, all NEMG and L&MPA physician offices. A single infrastructure for
all NEMG and L&MPA physician practices will facilitate physician to physician
communication and provide consistency in the patient experience.

The merger of L&MPA into NEMG will also resuli in greater efficiencies. NEMG and
YNHHSC have made significant investments in population health, information
technology, data management and care coordination that can be utilized to enhance
quality by improving patienf management.

The proposed merger is financially feasible. Both NEMG and L&MPA further the
charitable mission of their respective health systems by providing services that meat
community needs, such as needs for certain specialty services, or primary care
physicians. YNMHS has the financial stability to continue fo support NEMG after the
merger, in order to achieve its charitable goals.
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Pursuant to Section 19a-639 of the Connecticut General Statutes, the Office of Health
Care Access is required fo consider specific criteria and principles when reviewing a
Certificate of Need application. Text marked with a "§” indicates it is actual text from the
statute and may be helpful when responding to prompts.

Project Description

1. Provide a detailed narrative describing the proposal. Explain how the Applicant(s)
determined the necessity for the proposal and discuss the benefits for each Applicant
separately (if multiple Applicants). Include all key elements, including the parties
involved, what the proposal will entail, the equipment/service location(s), the
geographic area the proposal will serve, the implementation timeline and why the
proposal is needed in the community.

Response:
Overview and Applicants:

L&M Physician Association, Inc. (“L&MPA") plans to marge with and into the
Northeast Medical Group, Inc. (*NEMG”) with NEMG being the surviving entity. This
Certificate of Need (CON) application is being submitted as required by Connecticut
General Statute §19a-638 (a) (3) which requires CON approval for the fransfer of
ownership of a group practice. This fransaction is required because of the affiliation
between Yale New Haven Health Services Corporation (*“YNHHSC”) and Lawrence +
Memorial Corporation (*L+M") whereby YNHHSC proposes to become the sole
corporate member of L+M. L+M is the parent corporation of a delivery neiwork
known as L+M Healthcare, the main providers of which are L&MPA, L+M Hospital
(“L+MH"), Westerly Hospital in Rhode Island ("Westerly”) and Visiting Nurse
Association of Southeastern Connecticut. A separate CON application is being filed
for the transfer of ownership of L+MH. YNHHSC is a Connecticut non-stock, tax-
exempt corporation that was organized in 1983 to provide support setvices to a
nonprofit network of affiliated health care providers known, collectively, as the Yale
New Haven Health System (“YNHHS").

NEMG is a Connecticut medical foundation established pursuant to Connecticut
General Statute §33-182aa. NEMG, an affiliate of the YNHHS, is a muitispecialty
physician group with mora than 100 practice locations and 600 medical experts,
including top specialists in Fairfield and New Haven counties, as well as New York’s
Westchester County through NEMG's affiliate, Northeast Medical Group, PLLC
(“NEMG NY”). NEMG has physicians and other health care providers in the
following specialty areas; Allergy, Cardiology, Ear, Nose and Throat, Endocrinology,
Family Medicine, Gastroenterology, General Surgery, Geriafrics, Hematology &
Oncology, Infectious Disease, Internal Medicine, Nutritional Counseling, Obstetrics &
Gynecology, Ophthatmology, Pain Management, Pediatrics, Pediatric Cardiology,
Pediatric Pulmonary, Perinatology, Rehabilitation Medicine, Podiatry, Pulmonary,
Radiation Oncology, Rheumatology, Urology, Walk-in/immediate Care and Wound
Care. In early 2015, NEMG was selected to participate in the Medicare Shared
Savings Program as an accountable care organization (*“ACQO”) and is well positioned
for success under a population health model of care and reimbursement. NEMG is
also a certified medical home with multiple sites holding a Level lll (highest level)
Patient Centered Medical Home accreditation through the National Commitiee of
Quality Assurance.

L&MPA, which does business under the name “L+M Medical Group”, is a
9




Connecticut medical foundation established pursuant to Connecticut General
Statutes §33-182aa and an affiliate of L+M. L&MPA is a multispecially group
practice with muliiple locations throughout southeastern Conneciicut and
southwestern Rhode Island. L&MPA includes approximately 70 physicians in the
following specialties; Family Practice, Iniernal Medicine, Dermatology,
Endocrinology, General Surgery, Orthopedic Surgery, Neurosurgery, Sleep
Medicine, Neurology, Rehabilitation Medicine, Obstetrics, Gynecology, Cardiology
and Interventional Pain Management. L&MPA is also a certified medical home with
six sites holding a Level I {highest level) Patient Centered Medical Home
accreditation through the National Commitiee of Quality Assurance. The six sites
are located in Groton, New London, Niantic, Old Lyme, Mystic, and Stoningion.

Based on the terms of the Affiliation Agreement and Plan of Merger (included in
Attachment Ill), NEMG will be the surviving corporation of the merger and the NEMG
Board of Trustees will be expanded to include two (2} physicians on the medical
staffs of L+MH or Westerly, as well as the President of L+M or his or her designee.

Geographic Area Served
L&MPA’s service area contains the following Connecticut and Rhode island
communities:

Connecticut: Rhode Isfand:
East Lyme Ashaway
Groton Block Island
Ledyard Bradford

Lyme Charlestown
Montvilie Hope Valley
New London Hopkinton
North Stonington  |Westerly

Old Lyme Wood River Junction
Stonington

Waterford

The medical group does not differentiate between a primary and secondary service
area. A map of L&MPA’s service area is provided below.

Soimton)D
L&M Medical Group SA
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The overall population size in the service area is estimated to be 215,194 in 2015
and projected to remain flat at 215,259 in 2020. However, service area residenis in

the B85+

age cohort are projected to increase significantly (~11%) between 2015 and

2020 as shown in the table below. Demand for healih care services increases
significantly in older adults.

Population in Service Area (L&MPA)
Population in Service Area
LE&MPA 0-17 1844 45-64 65+ Total
2015 42,393 73,232 62,473 37,006 215,194
2020 40,647 73,229 80,238 215,259
DR S b B B 0%
Source: Claritas

L+MH'’s most recent Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA), which can be
found in Attachment IV, highlights the public’s need for health care services offered
by L&MPA physicians.

Significant health issues exist in the service area as outlined in the CHNA including:

Higher cancer incidence than statewide and national levels for all cancers in
particular, breast, colorectal (particularly in females), and lung;

Higher cancer mortality than statewide and national levels for ail cancer
particularly in breast and lung cancer;

High Chlamydia rates;

Obesity levels higher than the state average;

Increasing diabetes incidence; and

High alcohol consumption as compared to national benchmarks.

L&MPA physicians along with L+MH currently offer a wide range of programs and
services to address public health needs. The Applicants anticipate public need for
L&MPA physicians’ services will continue and increase due to existing and fuiure
health care issues as well as the aging of the population. L&MPA physicians will
continue fo provide needed services, but as part of NEMG.

Both Applicants as well as patients will benefit from the merger due to an increased
ability to coordinate care across the region and enhanced clinical integration and
collaboration among physicians.

. Provide the history and timeline of the proposal (i.e., When did discussions begin

internal
far?).

ly or between Applicant(s)? What have the Applicani(s) accomplished so

Response:
Discussions regarding the merger of L&MPA and NEMG were part of discussions for

the ove
discuss

rall affiliation between YNHHSC and L+M that began in early 2015. Specific
ions pertaining to the proposed affiliation and the merger of the medical

foundations began formally in the first quarter of 2015 and were followed by a
thorough due diligence process.

The due diligence process began in March 2015 and will continue through the
closing. In addiiion to this Certificate of Need application, the following regulatory

11

24




25

process will be reguired:

» A Hart-Scoit-Rodino filing was submitted to the Federal Trade Commission
on August 7, 2015, and a courtesy copy of the filing was sent to the
Connecticut Attorney General on August 10, 2015. On September 8, 2015,
the FTC informed YNHHSC and L+M that it would allow the waiting period
outlined by the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act to expire
without further investigating the transaction;

s A Certificate of Need application for the overall corporate affiliation of L+M
with YNHHSC is being filed simultanecusly with this application.

» A Notice of Material Change regarding the merger of L&MPA will be filed
shortly with the Conneciicut Attorney General.

» Regulatory approval filings with the Rhode [sland Department of Health and
the Rhode Island Attorney General are planned for October 2015.

» The closing will occur once all regulatory approvals are obtained.

Because Connecticut state law prohibits a health system such as YNHHSC from
having more than one medical foundation, the only option for the fransaction was to
merge L&MPA into NEMG.

The Boards of both L+M and YNHHSC each approved execution of the Affiliation
Agreement and seeking regulatory approval for the affiliation on July 9, 2015 and
July 10, 2015 respectively. The NEMG Board of Directors approved the merger on
July 7, 2015 and the L&MPA Board approval occurred on July 13, 2015. Copies of
board resolutions were previously referenced (see Attachment [). Pursuant fo
Section §33-182bb(d) of the Connecticut General Statutes, a nofification letter was
sent to the Office of Health Care Access (*OHCA”) informing the agency that the
Board of Directors of L&MPA votad to approve the merger with and into NEMG.

3. Provide the following information:

a. utilizing OHCA Table 1, list all services to be added, terminated or modified, their
physical location (street address, town and zip code), the population to be served
and the existing/proposed days/hours of operation;

Response:
L&MPA provides physicians services. No physician services are planned fo be

terminated and the population {o he served is expected to be the same
geographic service area. There are no plans to modify existing hours of
cperation.

b. identify in QHCA Table 2 the service area towns and the reason for their
inclusion (e.g., provider availability, increased/decreased patient demand for
service, market share);

Response:
Table 2 has been completed. L&MPA’s service area consists of the communities

where jt draws the majority of its patients. As previously noted, the practice does
not differentiate between a primary and secondary service area.

4. List the health care facility license(s) that will be needed to implement the proposal;
12




26

Response:
Not applicable. There are no health care facility licenses needed to implement the

proposal.

5. Submit the following information as attachments to the application:

a. a copy of all State of Connecticut, Department of Public Health license(s)
currently held by the Applicant(s);

Response:
L&MPA holds a State of Connecticut, Department of Public Health license for an

Outpatient Clinic located at 437 Peqguot Avenue in New London, CT. Primary
care services have been providad in this clinic to Mitchell College siudents during
the academic year.

A copy of this license is included in Attachment V.

b. alist of all key professional, administrative, clinical and direct service personnel
related to the proposal and attach a copy of their Curriculum Vitae;

Response:
Key professional, administrative, clinical and direct service personnel related to

the proposal are listed below:.

NEMG
o Amit Rastogi, M.D., Interim Chief Executive Officer
* Michael Loftus, Chief Financial Officer, NEMG, Vice President, Finance,
YNHHS
s Amold DoRosario, M.D., Chief Medical Officer

L&MPA
s Anthony Carter, M.D., Medical Director
» Seth Van Essendelft, Chief Financial Officer/Vice President of Support
Services, L+M and L&MPA
¢ Christopher M. Lehrach, M.D., President, L+ MMG and Chief
Transformation Officer

Please refer to Attachment VI for copies of the Curriculum Vitae.

c. copies of any scholarly articles, studies or reports that support the need to
establish the proposed service, along with a brief explanation regarding the
relevance of the selected articles;

Response:
Not applicable. This CON application is not a request for establishment of a new

service.

d. letters of support for the proposal;

Response:
Please prefer to Attachment VI for letters of support for this CON application.

13




e. the protocols or the Standard of Practice Guidelines that will be utilized in relation
to the proposal. Attach copies of relevant sections and briefly describe how the
Applicant proposes to meet the protocols or guidelines.

Response:
Not applicable. This CON application does nof request any change to specific

clinical services where protocols or practice guidelines may apply.

f. copies of agreements (e.g., memorandum of understanding, transfer agreement,
operating agreement) related to the proposal. If a final sighed version is not
available, provide a draft with an estimated date by which the final agreement will
be available.

Response:
The Agreement and Plan of Merger has been previously referenced in
Attachment [il.

Public Need and Access fto Care

§ “Whether the proposed project is consistent with any applicable
palicies and standards adopted in regulations by the Department
of Public Health,” (Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-639(a)(1))

Describe how the proposed project is consistent with any applicable policies and
standards in regulations adopted by the Connecticut Department of Public Health.

Response:
This proposal is consistent with all policies and standards in regulations adopted by

the Connecticut DPH. The proposed merger requires Certificate of Need approval
which is being pursued.

§ “The relationship of the proposed project to the statewide health
care facilities and services plan;” (Conn.Gen. Stat. § 19a-

639(a)(2)

Describe how the proposed project aligns with the Connecticut Department of Public
Health Statewide Health Care Facilities and Services Plan, available on OHCA’s
website.

Response:
This proposal is consistent with the Connecticut DPH Statewide Health Care

Facilities and Services Plan (the Plan). Specifically, the 2014 update stresses the
changes that have occurred in the State of Conneclicut since the passage and
implementation of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA). The
Plan acknowledges that the PPACA has influenced providers to focus on creating
new models of care that bring higher quality and greater value. The PPACA has led

14
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to affiliations and mergers of health care providers throughout the State to maintain
access to needed services, improve financial viability and enhance organizations’
ability to meet technology needs.

§ “Whether there is a clear public need for the health care facility or
services proposed by the applicant,” (Conn.Gen.Stat. § 19a-
639(a)(3))

. With raspect to the proposal, provide evidence and documentation to support clear
public need:

a. identify the target patient population to be served;

Response:
Please refer to the response to question 1.

b. discuss how the target patient population is currently being served,;

Response:
The target population is currently served by L&MPA physicians througheut the

service area.

c. document the need for the equipment and/or service in the community;

Response:
Not applicable. This proposal does not involve a specific service or piece of

equipment.

d. explain why the location of the facility or service was chosen;

Response:
Not applicable. There is no new location being chosen as part of this proposal.

e. provide incidence, prevalence or other demographic data that demonstrates
community need;

Response:
Please refer to question 1.

f. discuss how low income persons, racial and ethnic minorities, disabled persons
and other underserved groups will benefit from this proposal;

Response:
Both NEMG and L&MPA provide physician services to low income persons,

racial and ethnic minorities, disabled persons and underserved groups. The
merger of these two entities should not impact this commitment.

g. list any changes to the clinical services offered by the Applicani(s) and explain
why the change was necessary; _
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Response:
There are no planned changes {o the clinical services offered by the Applicants.

explain how access to care will be affected;

Response: :
Access to care will be enhanced with the overall affiliation between YNHHSC and

L+M as described in a separate CON application for the larger transaction. The
overall affiliation will address existing physician shortages in such areas as
primary care, pediatric subspecialists, surgeons (thoracic, bariatric, vascular),
and cardiology subspecialists such as electrophysiologists. The added
physicians fo the service area will enhance access to care.

discuss any alternative proposals that were considered.

Response:
The decision to pursue an affiliation between YNHHSC and L+M required the

merger of the two medical foundations. Because Connecticut state law prohibits
a health system such as YNHHSC from having more than one medical
foundation, the only option for the transaction was to merge L&MPA into NEMG.

§ “Whether the applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated how the
proposal wilf improve quality, accessibifity and cost effectiveness
of health care delivery in the region, including, but not limifed to,
(A) provision of or any change in the access fo services for
Medicaid recipients and indigent parsons, and (B) the impact upon
the cost effectiveness of providing access fo services provided
under the Medicaid program,” (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(5))

9. Describe how the proposal will:

a.

improve the guality of health care in the region;

Response:
Both NEMG and L&MPA provide high quality physicians services. NEMG has a

“cuiture of continuous improvement” which enables it to:
s Regularly monitor performance throughout NEMG to ensure the practice
is reaching goals as.well as identify any areas for improvement;
* Review performance to ensure physicians are making informed, timely
decisions that lead to better patient outcomes; and
» Use performance data to prioritize programs designed to improve patient
care.

NEMG has established standardized safety protocols and quality control
measures that enable the delivery of consistently high quality, safe patient care.

NEMG has been recognized for its quality as evidenced by:
e 29 NEMG physicians were ranked among Connecticut Magazine’s Top
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Doctors for 2015

» 20 Sites recognized by National Committee for Quality Assurance
(NCQA) Patient Centered Medical Home level three

e NEMG was selected to participate in the Medicare Shared Savings
Program Accountable Care Organization (ACO)

e 26 practice sites are under the Diabetes Recognition Program bythe |
National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA)

« NEMG cardiology sites accredited in Echocardiography, Vascular
(Carotid) and Nuclear Testing

» Sleep Center, Fairfleld — Accredited by the American Academy of Sleep
Medicine (AASM)

e Endoscopy Center, Trumbull — Ambulatory surgery centers Joint
Commission Accreditation

L&MPA physicians have provided high quality medical services. L&MPA has
been recognized for its high quality services as evidenced by:
« 10 L&MPA physicians were ranked among Connecticut Magazine’s Top
Doctors for 2015;
» Quality Recognition Award Gaps in Care program for Medicare
Advantage Plans for 2013 and 2014; and
e Patient Center Medical Home for Primary Care Offices in CT.

L&MPA physicians will benefit from NEMG’s well-developed quality improvement
infrastructure and resources. Patients who seek services from L&MPA
physicians will benefit from continued high quality services. Continuity of care
through implementation of the Epic electronic medical record (EMR) will also
contribute to the advancement of quality health care services.

b. improve accessibility of health care in the region; and

Response:
Please refer io the response to 8(h).

c. improve the cost effectiveness of health care delivery in the region.

Response:
Greater efficiencies are expected to be achieved as a result of the proposed

affiliation between YNHHSC and L+M. The merger of L&MPA into NEMG will
also result in greater efficiencies. NEMG and YNHHSC have made significant
investments in population health, information technology, data management and
care coordination that can be utilized to enhance quality by improving patient
management. Residents in the L&MPA community will have better physician
access locally and avoid unnecessary emergency room visits that can result from
fack of access to primary care providers.

10. How will this proposal help improve the coordination of patient care (explain in detall
regardless of whether your answer is in the negative or affirmative)?

Response:
The proposed merger will improve the overall coordination of patient care as the

same EMR, policies and processes will be in place at all YNHHSC facilities, all
‘ 17




11.

12.

13.
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NEMG and L&MPA physician offices. A single infrastructure for all NEMG and
L&MPA physician practices will facilitate physician to physician communication and
provide consistency in the patient experience.

Describe how this proposal will impact access to care for Medicaid recipients and
indigent persons.

Response:
Access to care for Medicaid recipients and indigent persons as a result of the

proposed merger is not expect to change, as both NEMG and L&MPA are tax-
exempt entities and are committed to serving the uninsured and underinsured,
including Medicaid patients.

§ “Whether an applicant, who has failed to provide or reduced
access to services by Medicaid recipients or indigent persons, has
demonstrated good cause for doing so, which shall not be
demonstrated sofely on the basis of differences in reimbursement
rates between Medicaid and other health care payers;”
(Conn.Gen.Stat, § 19a-639(a)(10})

If the proposal fails to provide or reduces access to services by Medicaid recipients
or indigent persons, provide explanation of good cause for doing so.

Response:
Not applicable. The proposal does not reduce access or fail to provide services to

Medicaid recipients or indigent persons.

§ “Whether the applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that any
consolidation resulting from the proposal will not adversely affect
health care costs or accessibility to care.” (Conn.Gen. Sfat. § 19a-
639(aj(12))

Will the proposal adversely affect patient health care costs in any way? Quantify and
provide the rationale for any changes in price structure that will result from this
proposal, including, but not limited to, the addition of any imposed facility fees.

Response:
The proposal is not expected to aifect patient health care costs. Rather, with greater

access to care and care coordination, we expect that visits to the emergency
department and duplication of services by physicians will be reduced.

Financial Information

§ “Whether the applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated how the
proposal will impact the financial strength of the health care
system in the state or that the proposal is financially feasible for
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14.

15.

16.

17.
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| the application,” (Conn.Gen.Stat, § 19a-639(a)(4)) |

Describe the impact of this proposal on the financial strength of the state’s health
care system or demonstrate ihat the proposal is financially feasible for the applicant.

Response:
This proposal will positively affect the financial strength of the state’s health care

system. The financial strength of the State of Conneclicut’s health care system is
dependent on the strength of its health care providers. This proposal is fully
consistent with state and national trends involving the aifiliation and collaboration
among providers to reduce costs, share resources and promote best practices. The
merger of L&AMPA into NEMG is related to the affiliation between the parent
corporations of YNHHSC and L+M. Providers need to form integrated networks,
develop advanced care management capahilities, and partner with other providers
across the care continuum to be successful in the future. The proposed merger
between L&AMPA and NEMG will strengthen the financial health of both organizations
which in turn will positively impact the financial strength of the state's health care
system.

Provide a final version of all capital expenditure/costs for the proposal using OHCA
Table 3.

Response: ,
There is no capital expenditure/cost specific to the merger of L&MPA and NEMG.

List all funding or financing sources for the proposal and the dollar amount of each.
Provide applicable details such as interest rate; term; monthly payment; pledges and
funds received fo date; letter of interest or approval from a lending instifution.

Response:
Not applicable. Please refer to the response to question 15.

Include as an attachment:

a. audited financial statements for the most recently completed fiscal year. If
audiled financial statements do not exisi, provide other financial documentation
(e.g., unaudited balance sheet, statement of operations, tax return, or other set of
books.). Connecticut hospitals required to submit annual audited financial
statements may reference that filing, if current;

Response:
Audited financial statements for the most recently completed fiscal year (2014)

for NEMG and L&MPA are provided in Attachment VIIi.

b. a complete Financial Worksheet A {not-for-profit entity) or B (for-profit
entity), available on OHCA’s websiie under "QHCA Forms,” providing a
summary of revenue, expense, and volume statistics, “without the CON project,”
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18.

18.

20.

21.

‘incremental to the CON project,” and “with the CON project.” Note: the actual
results reported in the Financial Worksheet must match the audited financial
statement that was submitted or referenced.

Response:
Financial Worksheet A has been completed for NEMG and L&MPA and can be

found in Aitachment 1X.

Complete OHCA Table 4 utilizing the information reported in the attached Financial
Worksheet.

Response:
OHCA Table 4 has been completed for NEMG and L&MPA.

Explain all assumptions used in developing the financial projections reported in the
Financial Worksheet.

Response:
All assumptions used in developing the financial projections reported in the Financial

Worksheets are included in Attachment X.

Explain any projected incremental losses from operations resuliing from the
implementation of the CON proposal.

Response:
Both NEMG and L&MPA further the charitable mission of their respective health

systems by providing services that meet community needs, such as needs for certain
specialty services, or primary care physicians. Medical foundations also provide
health care services (such as geriatrics and patient-centered medical homes) that
support health systems’ moves to population health and outcomes-based
reimbursement models, even if such services do not, on their own, generate
sufficient revenue to cover their expenses. Because stand-alone physician practices
cannot meet these community needs, medical foundations are typically supported by
the affiliated health system, much like other clinical setrvice lines. As a result of the
merger, NEMG will take on the operating losses of L&MPA, but YNHHS has the
financial stability to continue to support NEMG after the merger, in order to achieve
its charitable goals.

Indicate the minimum number of units required fo show an incremental gain from
operations for each projected fiscal year.

Response:
Not applicable. Please refer to the response to question 20.

Utilization

§ “The applicant's past and proposed provision of health care
services to relevant patient populations and paver mix, including,
but not fimited to, access to services by Medicaid recipients and
Iindigent persons;” (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(6))

20

33




22.

23.

24,

25.

34

Complete GHCA Table 5 and QHCA Table 6 for the past three fiscal years ("FY"),
current fiscal year (“CFY”) and first three projected FYs of the proposal, for each of
the Applicant’s existing and/or proposed services. Report the units by service,
service fype or service level.

Response:
OHCA Tables 5 and 6 have been completed.

Provide a detailed explanation of all assumptions used in the derivation/ calculation
of the projected service volume; explain any increases and/or decreases in volume
reported in OHCA Tables 4 and 5.

Response:
Assumptions regarding visit volume for L&MPA and NEMG are outlined below:

FY 2016
L&MPA incorporated info NEMG for second half of year. Visit volume is expected to
remain flat from 2015.

FY 2017 - 2019
L&MPA visit volume now included into NEMG. Volume is projected to increase
slightly at L&MPA practices.

Provide the current and projected patient population mix (number and percentage of
patients by payer) for the proposal using QHCA Table 7 and provide all
assumptions. Note: payer mix should be calculated from patient volumes, not
pafient revenues.

Response:
Current and projected patient population mix has been provided in OHCA Table 7.

Payer mix is not projected to change as L&MPA will continue to serve the same
patient population that they currently serve.

§ “Whether the applicant has salisfactorily identified the population
fo be served by the proposed project and satisfactorily
demonsirated that the identified population has a need for the
proposed services;” (Conn, Gen. Stat, § 19a-639(a)(7))

Describe the population (as identified in question &(a) by gender, age groups or
persons with a specific condition or disorder and provide evidence (i.e., incidence,
prevalence or other demographic data) that demonstrates a need for the proposed
service or proposal. Please nofe: if population estimates or other demographic
data are submitted, provide only publicly available and verifiable information
(e.g., U.S. Census Bureati, Department of Public Health, CT State Data Center)
and document the source. '
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26.

27.

28.

Response:
Please refer to question 8(a). As outlined in L+MH'’s most recent Community Health

Needs Assessment (CHNA), which was previously referenced (see Attachment IV),
hased on the 2010 census, the service area has a higher proportion of middle age
and older aduits than the State of Connecticut and the nation overall (see page 6 of
the CHNA). The older population has a higher incidence of illness and disease, and
therefore utilizes health care services at a higher rate than the younger population.
As the population continues to age, the public need for health care sefvices offered
by L&MPA physicians will increase.

Other significant health issues exist in the service area as outlined in the CHNA
including:
= Higher cancer incidence than statewide and national levels for all cancers in
particular, breast, colorectal (particularly in females), and lung;
» Higher cancer mortality than statewide and national levels for all cancer
particularly in breast and fung cancer:;
High Chlamydia rates;
Obesity levels higher than the state average;
Increasing diabetes incidence; and
High alcohol consumption as compared to national benchmarks.

The population of L&MPA’s service area is in need of physicians and other health
care professionals to address these and other health issues.

Using OHCA Table 8, provide a breakdown of utilization by town for the most
recently completed FY. Utilization may be reporied as number of persons, visits,
scans or other unit appropriate for the information being reporied.

Response:
OHCA Table 8 has been completed based on visits.

§ “The utilization of existing health care facilities and health care
services in the service area of the applicant;” (Conn.Gen. Stat. §
19a-639(a)(8))

Using OHCA Table 9, identify all existing providers in the service area and, as
available, list the services provided, population served, facility ID (see table
footnote), address, hours/days of operation and current utilization of the facility.
Include providers in the towns served or proposed to be served by the Applicant, as
well as providers in towns contiguous fo the service area.

Response: .
OHCA Table 9 includes existing physician practices in the service area that could be

identified. Hours of operation and current utilization for non L&MPA practices are not
readily available information.

Describe the effect of the proposal on these existing providers.
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28.

30.

31.

32.
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Response:
The Applicants believe that the proposal will have little to no effect on existing

providers in the service area. L&MPA is an existing physician group practice with an
existing patient base. This proposal involves a change of ownership of L&MPA.
L&MPA physicians wilt continue their existing practices serving their patient
populations.

Describe the existing referral patterns in the area served by the proposal.

Response:
Existing referral patterns in the area served by the proposal are well established.

L&MPA physicians refer to one another as well as other physicians in the service
area and throughout Connecticut.

Explain how current referral patterns will be affected by the proposal.

Response:
Referral patterns are not expected to change significantly in that L+MH and YNHH

have a long history of collaboration.

§ "Whether the applicant has satisfactorily demonsirated that the
proposed project shall not resulf in an unnecessary duplication of
existing or approved health care services or facilities;”
(Conn.Gen, Stat. § 19a-639(a)(9))

if applicable, explain why approval of the proposal will not resuit in an unnecessary
duplication of services.

Response:
Not applicable. This proposal involves a merger of two medical foundations.

§ “Whether the appiicant has safisfactorily demonsirated that the
proposal will not negatively impact the diversity of healih care
providers and patient choice in the geographic region. . .”
(Conn.Gen.Stat, § 19a-639(a)(11))

How will the proposal impact the diversity of health care providers and patient choice
or reduce competition in the geographic region?

Response:
The proposal will positively impact the diversity of heath care providers and patient

choice. The proposal will ensure the continuation of L&MPA physicians and the
continued offering of a diverse group of health care providers. Patient choice will be
maintained and honored.
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Tables

TABLE1

APPLICANT'S SERVICES AND SERVICE LOCATIONS

37

New Service or

. Population Days/Hours of
Service Street Address, Town Sljerve d gperation TProEosr?d
ermination
L&MPA service Practices operate NIA
area is listed in Monday through
Table 2 Friday, generally
Sam - &pm

Please see Atfachment Xl for a complete listing of L&MPA’s physician practices.

[back to guestion]

TABLE 2

SERVICE AREA TOWNS — L+MH

List the official name of town* and provide the reason for inclusion.

Town*

Reason for Inclusion

Service Area includes:

Connecticut:

s Eastlyme
Groton
Ledyard
Lyme
Montville
New London
North Stoningion
Cld Lyms
Stonington
Waterford

hode Island:
Ashaway
Block Island
Bradford
Charlestown
Hope Valley
Hopkinton
Woesterly
Wood River
Junction

LER S v B B A

L&MPA includes all primary service area towns from
L+M Hospital and Westerly Hospital as its service

areda,

back to question

* Village or place names are not acceptable.
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TABLE 3
TOTAL PROPOSAL CAPITAL EXPENDBITURE

Purchase/Lease Cost
Equipment (Medical, Non-medical Imaging) $0
Land/Building Purchase®

Construction/Renovation™

Other (specify)

Total Capital Expenditure (TCE}) $0
Lease (Medical, Non-medical Imagingy*™* 50
Total Capital Cost {TCO) %0
Total Project Cost (TCE+TCO) $0

*  [fthe proposal involves a land/building purchase, attach a real estate property
appraisal including the amount; the useful life of the building; and a schedule
of depreciation.

** If the proposal involves consiruction/renovations, attach a description of the

proposed
building work, including the gross square feet; existing and proposed floor
plans; commencement date for the construction/ renovation; completion date
of the construction/renovaticn; and commencement of operations date.

*** |f the proposal involves a capital or operating equipment fease and/or

purchase,
attach a vendor quote or invoics; schedule of depreciation; useful life of the
equipment; and anticipated residual value at the end of the lease or loan
term.

back to question

TABLE 4
PROJECTED INCREMENTAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES - NEMG
FY 2016*% FY 2017* FY 2018* FY 2019
Revenue from
QOperations $20,172,000 $41.238,000 $41,246,000 $41.,254,000
Total Cperating .
Expenses $30,139,000 $60,003,000 $60,568,000 $61,325,000
Gain/Loss from
Operations ($9,967,000) ($18,765,000) ($19,322,000) {$20,071,000)

*Fill in years using those reperted in the Financial Worksheet attached.
*2016 represents 6 months of L&MPA being incorporated into NEMG.

[back to question

TABLE 4
PROJECTED INCREMENTAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES — L&MPA*

Note: L&MPA with the CON is incorporated info NEMG beginning Aprit 1, 2018

L&MPA no longer operates after 4/1/16

FY 2016* FY 2017* FY 2018* FY 2019
Revenue from N/A N/A N/A
Operations {$19,977,000)
Total Operating N/A N/A N/A
Expenses (329,221,000 '
Gain/Loss from N/A N/A N/A
Operations $9,244,000

* Fill in years using those reported In the Financlal Worksheet aftached.
*2018 represents § months of L&MPA being incorporated into NEMG.

fback to question]
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TABLE 5

HISTORICAL UTILIZATION BY SERVICE — NEMG (Visifs)
NEMG
Historical "visits"
Specialty 2012 2013 2014 2015
Adult Primary Care 59,204 155,441 339,887 649,703
Cardiology 118,515 118,654 118,301 129,726
Endocrinology 4,269 5,330 7,471 6,996
Gastroenterology 2,254 2,904 20,372 19,899
Geriatrics 28,021 29,622 29,181 31,397
Internal Medicine 116,845 138,821 153,191 177,756
Oncology 15,262 19,869 20,696 20,865
Pain Management 877 1,142 1,366 1,197
Pallative Care 2,379 3,611 4,297 3,132
Podiatry 5,181 4,792 5,388 7,430
Psychiatric 14,356 16,410 15,385 16,943
Putmonary 7,083 7,350 7,631 11,076
Rheumatology ' 4,154 5,408 5,824 5,887
Surgery 45,972 45,351 59,426 69,517
Women and Childrens 71,901 106,483 119,852 139,689
Wound care 3,004 4,455 4,777 4,897
Grand Total 499,277 665,643 913,045 1,296,150
2015 THROUGH 8/31/15

TABLE 5
HISTORICAL UTILIZATION BY SERVICE — L&AMPA (Visits})

Y 2015YTD
(0ct 2014 -

L&MPA (SITE DESCRIPTION) [
Behavioral Health
Cardiology
Dermatology
Joslin Diabetes/Endocrinology
General Surgery
Infectious Disease
Neonatology
Neuropsychology
Meurology
Neurostirgery
DBGYN
Crthopedics
Pain Management
Palliative Care
Primary Care
Pediatrics
Physiairy
Plastic Surgery
Sleep Medicine
PA Surgery
Wound Care
Yale Vascular Surgery




M_ Fiscal yearis Oct 1- Sept. 30. FY 2015 annualized is based on 10 months actual.

*

the

method of annualizing. For periods less than 6 months, report actual volume and identify the period covered.
|dentify each service fype and level adding lines as necessary. Provide the number of visits or discharges as

o

appropriate for
each service type and level listed.

For periods greater than 6 months, report annualized volume, identifying the number of actual months covered and

*** Fill in years. [f the time period reported is not identical to the fiscal year reported in Table 4 of the application,

provide the
date range using the mm/dd format as a foctnote to the table.

{back to guestion]

TABLE 6
PROJECTED UTILIZATION BY SERVICE — L&MPA

Note: L&MPA with the CON is incorporated into NEMG beginning April 1, 2016 {this volume is a

subset of Table & for NEMG)

Al e I FY 2016 FY2017 . Fy2018
Behavioral Health 5,945 15,934 15,978 20,021
Cardiology 31,164 62,466 62,603 62,740
Dermatology 5,149 10,321 10,343 10,366
Joslin Diabetes/Endocrinology 6,845 13,720 13,750 13,780
General Surgery 7,679 15,391 15,425 15,459
Infectious Disease 902 1,808 1,812 1,816
Neonatology 788 1,578 1,582 1,586
Neuropsychology 127 254 254 255
Neurclogy 1,460 2,927 2,833 2,940
Neurosurgery 3,259 6,533 6,547 6,562
OBGYN 7,971 15,977 16,013 16,048
Orthopedics 4,936 9,894 9,916 9,938
Pain Management 6,111 12,250 12,277 12,304
Palliative Care 31 62 62 63
Primary Care 35,989 72,136 72,294 72,453
Pediatrics 1,939 3,886 3,895 3,903
Physiatry 4,850 9,722 9,743 9,764
Plastic Surgery - - - -
Sleep Medicine 2,407 4,825 4,835 4,846
PA Surgery 3,224 6,463 6,477 6,491
Wound Care 18 35 35 35
Yale Vascular Surgery 1,605 3,218 3,225 3,232
GRANDTOTA 136,400 | 273400 274000 274600

(1) FY 2018 6 months of volume is as LE&MPA and 6 months as NEMG

*

ldentify each service type by location and add lines as necessary. Provide the number of
visits/discharges as appropriate for each service listed.

** |f the first ysar of the proposal is only a partial year, provide the first partial year and then the
first three full FYs. Add columns as necessary. If the time perlod reported is nof identical to
the fiscal year reported in Table 4 of the application, provide the date range using the mm/dd
format as a foofnote fo the tabie.

[back 1o question]
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TABLE 7

APPLICANT'S CURRENT & PROJECTED PAYER MIX - NEMG
NEMG

Current Projected

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019

Visits % Vislis % Visits % Visits % Visits %
Medicars 323,700 | 24.0%| 374042 | 26.1%| 426,501 | 27.00%| 428,218 | 27.0%[ 429,034 | 27.0%
Medicaid® 137,020 | 10.5%] 158,821 | 11.1%| 181,550 | 11.5%] 182,279 | 11.5%| 183,007 | 11.5%
CHAMPUS &
TriCare 5330  04%f 9508 07%| 13.728| oow| 137es| cow| 1381z| o0.o%
Total Government 466,050 | 35.0%) 542,689 | 37.8%) 621,777 | 30.4% 624,265 | 30.4% 626,753 | 39.4%
Commercial Insurers 720,070 |  B6.4%| 775,891 | 54.0%| 835281 | 529%| 638,850 | 52.9%| 842,419 | 52.9%
Uninsured/S e Pay 11,280 | 8.6%] 113,224 | 7.0%| 115,601 | 7.3%| 196,213 | 7.3%| 116,735| 7.5%
Workers
Compensation 2,600 0.2%| . 4815 0.3% 6,651 | 0.4% 6,672 04% 5,683! 0.4%
Tofal Non-
Government 833,950 |  64.2%| 893731 | 62.2% 957,623 | 60.6%| 961,735 | en.6%| 965,847 | 60.6%
Total Payer Mix 7,300,000 | 100.0%] 1,436,400 | 100.0%] 1,579,400 | 100.0%) 1,585,000 | 100.0%| 1,592,600 | 100.0%

* Includes managed care activity.
** Fill in years. Ensure the period covered by this table corresponds to the period covered in the projections
provided. New programs may ieave the “current” column blank,

fhback to quesfion]

TABLE7
APPLICANT'S CURRENT & PROJECTED PAYER MIX - L&MPA
Note: L&MPA is incorporated into NEMG beginning April 1, 2016

EEMPA

Current Projected - see NEMG

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018

Visits % Visits % Visits % Visits % Visits Y%

Medicare* 100,936 37.1% 50,5421 37.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Medicaid” 43,737 16.1% 21,801 16.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
CHAMPUS &
TiiCare 8,340 3.1% 41761 3.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Total Government 153,013 56.2% 76,619 | 56.2% 0.0%, 0.0%) 0.0%
Commmercial Instrers 111478 | A0.9%| 55,821 | 40.9% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Uninsured/Self Pay 3,883 1.4% 1,944 1.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Workers
Compensation 4,024 1.5% 2015| 1.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Total Non-
Government 119,386 43.8% 59,781 | 43.8% 0.0% 0.0%) 0.0%
Total Payer Mix 272,399 100.0%| 136,400 | 100.0% 0.0% 0.0%) 0.0%

#*

[ncludes managed care activity,

** Fill in years. Ensure the period covered by this table corrasponds to the period covered in the projections
provided. New programs may leave the "current” column blank,
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TABLE 8

UTILIZATION BY TOWN — L&MPA

42

Town Utilization —
Visits FY 2014

Service Area (SA) Towns:
service Area includes:
Connecticut;
s EastlLyme 22,956
s Groton 53,140
¢ ledyard 15,818
e lyms 48
« Montville 11,800
= New London 35,082
« North Stonington ??gg
« Oldlyme 20,529
+ Stonington 56858
s Waterford !
Rhode Island:
+  Ashaway 2,404
* Block Island 170
» Bradford 1,809
»  Charlestown 2,682
« Hope Valley 1,734
»  Hopkinton 571
e Westerfy 24,184
+  Wood River Junction 520
Other 42,176
TOTAL 270,181

* List inpatientioutpatient/ED volumes separately, if applicable
** Fill in year if the time period reported is not idenfical to the

fiscal year reported on pg. 2 of the application; provide the
date range using the mm/dd format as a fooinote to the

fable.
fhback to question]
TABLE 2
Service or Population Facility ID* Facility's Hours/Days of Current
Program Name Served Provider Name, -Operation Utilization
Street Address
and Town
N/A NIA

Please refer to Attachment Xil for a listing of physician pracfices in L&MPA’s service

area.

* Provide the Medicare, Connecticut Department of Social Services (DSS), or National Provider Identifer (NF1) facility

identifier and [abel column with the identifier used,

jback to question]
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S %

Connmtticot Department
of Pubfic Health

Supplemental CON Application Form
Transfer of Ownership of a Group Practice
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-638(a)(3)

Applicant: Northeast Medical Group, Inc. and L&M Physician
Association, Inc.

Project Name: Merger of L&M Physician Association, Inc. and
Northeast Medical Group, Inc.

30
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Affidavit

Applicant: Northeast Medical Group, Inc.

Project Title: Merger of L&M Physician Association, Inc. and Northeast Medical Group, Inc.

I, _Amit Rastogi, MD Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Name) (Position - CEO or CFO)

of Northeast Medical Group, Inc. being duly sworn, depose and state that the (Facility Name)
said facility complies with the appropriate and applicable criterfa as set forth in the Sections 19a-
630, 19a-837, 192-638, 19a-639, 19a-486 and/or 4-181 of the Connecticut General Statuies.,

f% 9-29- 5

Signature Date

Subscribed and sworn to before me on 5—@@‘}‘? MR, 22 208 Y

Notary Public/Commissioner of Superior Court

My commission expires: 5 ~3 f-1 ¥
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Affidavit

Applicant: L&M Physician Association, [ne.

Project Title: Merger of L&M Physician Association, Inc. and Northeast Medical Group, Inc.

I, Christopher M. Lehrach, M.D., President
{(Name) (Position — CEO or CFO)

of L&M Physician Association, Inc.. being duly sworn, depose and state that the (Facility Name)
said facility complies with the appropriate and applicable criteria as set forth in the Sections 19a-
630, 19a-637, 19a-638, 19a-639, 19a-486 and/or 4-181 of the Connecticut General Statutes.

//C ~ Q.16.2915

Signature Date

Subscribed and sworn to before me on ' [*p 9/0

Cb%wmm

Notary ubllc/Commlssmner of Superior Court

My commission expires:
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1. Project Description: Transfer of Ownership of a Group Practice

a.

Is the proposed fransfer the result of a request for proposal or other simitar voluntary
offer for sale? Please explain in detail and provide dates and documentation.

Response:
The proposed merger of L&MPA with and into NEMG is required because of the

affiliation of L+M with YNHHSC wherein YNHHSC proposes ¢ become the sole
corporate member of L+M.

Discussions regarding the merger of L&MPA and NEMG were part of discussions for the
affiliation between YNHHSC and LL+M that began in early 2015. Spegcific discussions
pertaining to the proposed affiliation and the merger of the medical foundations began
formally in the first quarter of 2015 and were foilowed by a thorough due diligence
process.

The due diligence process began in March 2015 and will continue through the closing.
in addition to this Certificate of Need application, the following regulatory process will be
required;

e A Hart-Scott-Rodino filing was submitted to the Federal Trade Commission on
August 7, 2015, and a courtesy copy of the filing was sent to the Connectiicut
Attorney General on August 10, 2015. On September 8, 2015, the FTC informed
YNHHSC and L+M that it would allow the waiting period outlined by the Hait-
Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act to expire without further investigating
the transaction.

s A Certificate of Need appiication for the overall corporate affiliation of L+ with
YNHHSC is being filed simultaneously with this application.

s A Notice of Material Change regarding the merger of L&MPA will be filed shortly
with the Connecticut Attorney General.

* Regulatory approval filings with the Rhode Island Department of Health and the
Rhode Island Attorney General are planned for October 2015.

s The closing will occur once all regulatory approvals are obtained.

Because Connecticut state law prohibits a health system such as YNHHSC from having
more than one medical foundation, the only option for the fransaction was to merge
L&MPA into NEMG.

The Boards of both L+M and YNHHSC each approved execution of the Affiliation
Agreement and seeking regulatory approval for the affiliation on July 8, 2015 and July
10, 2015 respectively. The NEMG Board of Directors approved the merger on July 7,
2015 and the L&MPA Board approval occurred on July 13, 2015. Copies of board
resolutions were previously referenced (see Attachment [). Pursuant to Section §33-
182bb(d) of the Connecticut General Statutes, a nofification letter was sent to the Office
of Health Care Access ("OHCA”) informing the agency that the Board of Directors of
L&MPA voted to approve the merger with and into NEMG.

Explain how each Applicant determined the public’s need for the proposal to occur and
discuss the benefits of this proposal for the public {discuss each separately).
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Response:
As stated above, the transfer of ownership of L&MPA is required due to the larger

affiliation of its parent, L+M with YNHHSC. In response to health care reform, there are
national and statewide trends where smaller healih care providers are integrating with
larger integrated delivery systems to gain the resources and expertise needed to
succeed in the future. Larger health systems enjoy better access to capital and greater
operating efficiencies. A cross continuum approach to care delivery is required fo
achieve the Institute for Healthcare Improvement’s “Triple Aim” of:

» improving the population’s health over time;

* improving patient experience (quality and service); and

= reducing per capita healihcare cost.

The focus of health care providers has shifted to accountable care, primary and
outpatient care, an emphasis on population health management and integration of heaith
care delivery systems.

L+M’s goal, for its hospitals, physicians and other community based programs, is o
become part of a clinically integrated, financially sustainable health system that improves
the health of its communities, and preserves and enhances access to high quality patient
care. It seeks to transform its organization to enable it to continue to thrive as the
advent of population health strategies, value-based payment models, telehealth, and
other significant forces reshape how heaithcare is organized and delivered.

Pursuing this affiliation is necessary for L+M to maintain its community service
commitments, continue to provide high quality healthcare services in the local
community, and ensure its financial health. Today, healthcare reform at both the
national and state levels is requiring providers to integrate service delivery and assume
responsibility for achieving specific quality, cost, and service outcomes. L+M, on its
own, lacks the clinical and financial resources to accomplish these goals. The
proposed affiliation and integration will provide L+M with economies of scale as they
relate to information technology, finance, insurance, equipment, supplies and other
administrative services.

Describe the fransition plan and how the Applicants will ensure continuity of services to
the patient population. Provide a copy of any transition plan, if available.

Response:

There will be no disruption in the coniinuity of medical services that are provided to the
community. The L&MPA office locations will continue to provide the same level of
access for patients who seek ireatment for medical care.

Implementation teams with membership from NEMG and L&MPA will ensure there will
not be any disruption in operations at or following the closing of the transaction. These
teams will cover functional areas such as IT, finance, billing, human resources,
operations, marketing, and supply chain. These teams will work to develop detailed
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plans for the transiticn as well as longer term operational plans.

Additionally, there will be a thorough review of services and a planning process to
determine any additional clinical needs going forward. This will include both short and
long term planning for clinical services in an effort to provide high quality, accessible
care in this area.

d. For each Applicant (and any new entities to be created as a result of the proposal),
provide the following information as it would appear prior and subsequent to approval
of this proposal;

i. Legal chart of corporate or entity structure including ali affiliates.
ii. Listof owners and the % ownership and shares of each.

Response:
Legal charts of corporate structure for L&MPA and NEMG prior and subsequent to

approval of this proposal have been provided in Attachment A.

e. Daoes this proposal avoid the corporate practice of medicine? Explain in detail.

Response:
This proposal will not result in the corporate practice of medicine. Both NEMG and

L&MPA are medical foundations formed under Conn. Gen Stat. §33-182aa et seq.,
which allows hospitals and health systems to organize and become members of medical
foundations “for the purpose of practicing medicine and providing health care services as
a medical foundation through employees or agents of such medical foundation who are
providers.” Id. The merger of L&MPA into NEMG is specifically permitted under Conn.
Gen Stat. §33-182ff.

f. Has the Applicant notified the Attorney General’s oifice in writing of the proposed
“material change,” as defined Conn. Gen Stat. §19a-486i(c)?

Response:
A Notice of Material Change regarding the merger of L&MPA will be filed shortly with the

Connecticut Attorney General.

Because the overall transaction requires a Hart-Scott-Rodino filing, the Attorney General
received notice of the transaction on August 7, 2015 and a copy of the HSR filing on
August 10, 2015 as required by Connecticut General Stat. Section §19a-486i(b).

2. Financial Information

a. Describe how this proposal is cost effective and provide an itemization of anticipated
cost savings that will result from this proposal.
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Response:
Cost effectiveness is expected to improve as a result of the overall affiliation between

YNHHSC and |.+M. The merger of L&MPA with and into NEMG will also result in seme
added cost efficiencies. Both L&MPA and NEMG will benefit from L+M’'s and YNHHSC’
review of areas of non-clinical shared savings that will be undertaken as part of the
overall affiliation.

NEMG and YNHHS have also made significant investments in population health,
information technology, data managemeni and care coordination that can be utilized to
manage patient care more cost effectively and improve the quality of care delivery for
patients. The population health infrastructure created will permit NEMG and L&MPA to
succeed under a population health model which will ultimately lead to reduced costs. of
healthcare throughout the region.

Cost effectiveness will also be improved in the region because this transaction will help
L+M sustain and expand its primary care physician base in the service area. Residents
in the community will have better physician access locally and therefore be able to
receive cost-effective care in physician offices avoiding unnecessary emergency room
visits that can result with lack of access.

3. Clear Public Need

a.

Is the proposal being submitted due to provisions of the Federal Sherman Antitrust Act
and Conn. Gen Stat. §35-24 ef seq. statutes? Explain in detail.

Response:
The merger of L&MPA with and into NEMG is being submitted to OHCA as required

under the Connecticut Certificate of Need laws. The overall fransaction between
YNHHSC and L+M did require a Hart-Scott-Rodino filing with the Federal Trade
Commission (*FTC”) under 18 USC 3. 18a, however, and that filing was made on
August 7, 2015. The Connecticut Attorney General also received a courtesy copy of that
filing on August 10, 2015. The parties have met with the FTC and the Connecticut and
Rhode Island Aitorneys General to review the transaction, and intend to comply with all
applicable federal and state antitrust laws in all respects.

On September 8, 2015, the FTC informed YNHHSC and L+M that it would allow the
waiting period cutlined by the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act to expire
without further investigating the transaction.

[s the proposal being submitted due to provisions of the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act (PPACA)? Explain in detall.

Response: '
The proposed affiliation is consistent with the PPACA in that the parties will strive to

enhance quality, achieve efficiencies, avoid duplication of services and provide
evidence-based health care services.
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L&M PHYSICIAN ASSOCIATION, INC,

Resolutions of the Board of Directors
adepted at meeting held on

July 13,2015

LMPA Merger with NEMG:

WHEREAS, LMPA’s sole member, Lawrence + Memorial Corporation (“L+M™), is
considering an affiliation with Yale-New Haven Health Services Corporation (“YNHHSC™); and

WHEREAS, L+M will be entering into an affiliation agreement with YNHHSC (the
“Affiliation Agreement™), pursuant to which YNHHSC will become the sole member of L+M
(the “Yale New Haven Affiliation™), effective upon the closing (the “Effective Date™) of the
transactions contemplated by the Affiliation Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to LMPA’'s Bylaws, the Board has the power to recommend fo
L-+M, as the sole Member of LMPA, any merger involving LMPA,; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to LMPA’s Bylaws, L4M has the right and power, in its capacity
as the sole member of LMPA, to approve any merger involving LMPA; and

WHEREAS, the Affiliation Agreement contemplates that LMPA will merge with and
into YNHHSC’s medical foundation, Northeast Medical Group, Inc, (“NEMG™), effective upon
the Effective Date and as a result of the Yale New Haven Affiliation; and

WHEREAS, an agreement and plan of merger (the “Plan”), setting forth the terms and
conditions of the merger of LMPA with and into NEMG (the “Merger™) will be attached to the
Affiliation Agreement as an exhibit; and

WHEREAS, L-+M, in its capacity as the sole member of LMPA, intends to approve the
Plan and the Merger prior to the execuiion of the Affiliation Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the LMPA Bylaws, this Board wishes to approve the
Merger and adopt the Plan, and to recommend the Merger and the Plan to L+M as the sole
member of LMPA.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby

RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approves the Merger, effective as of the Effective
Date; and further

RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approves and adopts the Plan of Merger (the “Plan™
attached to the minufes of this meeting as Exhibit A; and further

41569383
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RESOLVED, that the Board hereby recommends to L+M that it approve the Merger and
the Plan to be attached to the Affiliation Agreement; and further

RESOLVED, that the Board authorizes any officer of LMPA fo exccute and deliver the
Plan, and to take or cause to be taken any and all such actions necessary to obtain any regulatory
approvals required in connection with the Merger and to carry ouf the terms of the Plan; and
further

RESOLVED, that, in the event that LMPA may be required to execute and deliver any
documents or fake any actions in comnection with the (ransactions contemplated by the
Affiliation Agreement, the Board hereby authorizes the President of LMPA to execute and
deliver any and all such documents, and to take or cause to be taken any and all such steps and
other actions, as the President may deem necessary, advisable, desirable or appropriate in order
to effectuate the full intent and purposes of the preceding resolutions, the execution and delivery
of any such document and the taking of any such action to be conclusive evidence of the
President’s determination of such necessity and the Board’s approval thereof, and further

RESOLVED, that all actions heretofore taken by any of the officers of LMPA in

furtherance of any of the foregoing resolutions and the transactions confemplated thereby are
hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects.

CERTIFICATION

I, Maureen Anderson, the Assistant Secretary of L&M Physician Association, Inc., do hercby
certify that the foregoing is a true and comrect copy of the resolutions adopted by the Board of
Directors of L&M Physician Association, In¢. at a duly noticed and convened meeting of said
Board held on July 13, 2015, at which a quorum was present and voting throughout, and said
resolutions have not been repealed or amended, and remain in full force and effect.

2fze)s it f Aok
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NORTHEAST MEDICAL GROUP, INC.
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

RESOLUTIONS RELATING TO THE MERGER OF L&M PHYSICIAN
ASSOCIATION, INC. WITH AND INTO NORTHEAST MEDICAL GROUP, INC.

July 7, 2015

WHEREAS, Yale-New Haven Health Services Corporation (“HSC”) is the parent of the
nealth care delivery system known ag the Yale New Haven Health System (the “Systent”} and
the sole member of Northeast Medical Group, Inc. (“NEMG™); and

WHEREAS, the System includes various affiliates, inciudjng but not limited to Yale-
New Haven Hospital, Tnc, (“¥INHI”), Bridgeport Hospital (“BH™), Greenwich Hospital (“GH),
and NEMG; and

WHEREAS, Lawrence + Memorial Corporation (“L+M ") is the parent of the health
care delivery system known as L+M Healthcare (the “L+M System™); and

WHEREAS, the L+M System includes various affiliates, including but not limited to
Lawrence & Memorial Hospital, Inc. {“L+M Hospital”), LMW Healthcare, Inc: d/b/a Westerly
Hospital (“WH”), and L&M Physician Association, Tic. d/b/a L+M Medical Group (“LMMG™);
and

WHEREAS, HSC and T+M seek an affiliation that will drive broader efficiencies while
increasing high quality outcomes, address increasing consumer demands for integrated
collaborative care, manage risk more effectively, enhance the population health infrastructure,
improve the efficient access fo capital, and mainiain and grow provider diversity, consumer
choice and access to quality and affordable care; and :

WHEREAS, at a meeting to be held on July 10, 2015, the Board of Trustees of HSC will
consider resolutions (the “HSC Resolutions”™) anthorizing HSC to execunte and negotiate an

Affiliation Agreement with T+M (the “Affiliation Agreement”) pursuant to which, inter alia, the

1+M System would become a member of the System; and

WHEREAS, both LMMG and NEMG are non-stock, tax-exempt medical foundations
organized pursvant to the Connecticut Medical Foundations Law and, pursvant to the
Commnecticot Medical Foundations Law, a health system may operate only a single affiliated
medical foundation; and .

WHEREAS, recognizing that LMMG and NEMG share a mission to promote a hlg,h
quality of medical care and other services for the benefit of all persons in the communities each
serves, and in furtherance of the affiliation contemplated by the Affiliation Agreement, the Board
of Trustees has determined that it is in the best inferest of NEMG for LMMG 10 merge with and
into NEMG, and for NEMG to execute and implement the Agreement and Plan of Merger,
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substantially in the form attached hereto as Fxhibir A, following which NEMG remains the
surviving corporation and LMMG shall cease to exist; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the Affiliation Agreement and said merger, the Board of
Trustees has determined that it is in the best intetests of NEMG to adopt the Amended and |
Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit B and Exhibit C, respectively; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with NEMG’s Bylaws, HSC approval is required for
NEMG’s merger with another entity and for the amendment or restatement of NEMG’s
Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of HSC will consider, through the TISC Resolutions,
authorizing the merger of LMMG with and into NEMG and, in furtherance thereof, NEMG’s
execution and implementation of the Agreement and Plan of Merger substantially in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit 4, following which NEMG remains the surviving corporation and
LMMG shall cease to exist, and authorizing the adoption of the Amended and Restated NEMG
Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws substantially in the form attached heteto as Exhibit B
and Exhibit C, respectively.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1, The Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the merger of LMMG with and
into NEMG pursuant to, and the execution by NEMG of, the Agreement and Plan of Merger
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 4, subject to the approval of the HSC Board
of Trustees and Certificate of Need approval from. the State Office of Iealth Care Access.

Section2.  The Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the adoption of the Amended and

Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of NEMG substantially in the form attached -

hereto as FExhibit B and Exhibit C, respectively.

Section3.  The HSC President and Chief Executive Officer, the HSC Executive Vice
President Cotpordte and Financial Services, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer, and the HSC Senior Vice President and General Counsel, and their designees (the
‘Authorized Officers™ are, and each of them hereby is, authorized and directed to do the
following as related to the transactions contemplated by these resolutions: (2) negotiate,
conclude terms with, execute and deliver, for and on behalf of NEMG the Agreement and Plan of
Merger, and any agreements, documents or instruments, including any amendments to snch
documents that such Authorized Officer determines are appropriate to accomplish the intent and
purposes expressed m these resolutions and the Affiliation Agreement; (b) finalize an Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of NEMG as appropriate to accomplish the
intent and purposes expressed in these resolutions, the Affiliation Agreement and the Agreement
and Plan of Merger; (c) approve the preparation and execution of any and all notices and
submussions, oral and written, necessary to seek and obtain all government and regulatory
approvais required to accomplish the intent and purposes expressed in these resolutions;
including without Timitation the merger of LMMG with and into NEMG; and (d) fo perform and
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take any actions that such Authorized Gfficer detertnines are appropriate to accomplish the intent

antl purposes expressed in these resolutions and a definitive Affiliation Agreément.

Section 4.  Any and all aciiens previously taken by the Authorized Officers and the

officers or employees of HSC and NEMG or any of ity and their corporate affiliates in

gonnection with the fcaregomlBr resolution are hereby rafified, approved and confirmed in all
respeits,

GERTIFICATiGN

The wridersigned seczetary of Northesast Medical Group, Tne. hereby certifies-that the foregoing

resohutfon was adopted by the Board of Trustees and remafns in full forze and effect without
amendihent as of the date hereof :

— Secreﬁary
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Department of the Treasu
é‘@ IRS {nternal Revenue Servicrey
’ P.0. Box 2508, Roon 4010
Cincinnati OH 45201
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NORTHEAST MEDICAL GROUP INC
AARDN G BOWMAN
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B850 MAIN STREET
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030086
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PULLMAN & COMLEY LLC

850 MAIN STREET

BRIDGEPORT CT 06604
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Drepartinent of the Treasury

RS Infernal Revenne Sexvice

P.0., Box 2h08, Room 4010 In reply refer to: &077552422

Cincinpnati 0OH 45201 June 02, 2010 LTR 4168L C3
t6-1330992 000000 OO X
0np31451
BoDC: TE

NORTHEAST MEDICAL GROUP INC
AAROCN G BOWMAN

PULLMAN & COMLEY LLC

850 MAIN STREET

BRIDGEPODRT LT 06604

Emplover Identification Number: 06—-1330992
Persen to Contaci: Mr. R. Molloy
Toll Free Telephone Number: I1-877-829-b500

Dear Taxpaver:

This is in response te vour Mar., 26, 2010, reduest for information
regarding vour tax-exempt =s=tatus.

gur records indicate that vour organization was recognized as exXempt
unider section 501(e¢){3) of the Internal Revenue Code in a
determination letter issued in September 1993,

gur records also indicate that yvou are not a private Toundation within
the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because vou are described in

section 509(aj){(2).

Donors may deduct contributions to vou as provided in section 170 ef
the Code., Bequests, legacies; devises, transfers, aor gifts te wvou or
for vour use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if thev meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and
25822 af the Code. :

Beginning with the organization's sixth taxable vear and all
succeeding vears, it must meet one of the public support tests under
section 170(b)(I)(AY(vi) or section 5D09%(a)(2) as reported on Schedule
A of the Forim 990. If vour orgapnization does not meet the public
support test for two consecutive vears, it is reguired to file Form
839D0-PF, Return of Private Foundation, for the sacond tax vear that the
oprganization failed to meet the support test and will be reclassified
as a private foundation.

If yvou have any guestions, please call us at the telephone number
shown in the heading of this letter.
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NORTHEAST MEDICAL GRODUP INC
AARDN G BDOWMAN

PULLMAN & COMLEY LLC

850 MAIN STREET

BRIDGEPORT CT 06604
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Q775524622

June 02, 2010 LTR 41648C C3
D6-1330%32 nnoogo oo 4
000314562

Sincerely vours,

Cindy Thomas
Manager, EO0 Determinations




INTERNAT, REVENUE SERVICE
P. 0, BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Date:AUG 2 4: Zﬁ’m

L&M PHYSICIAN ASSOUIATION INC
365 MONTAUK AVE
NEW LONDOH, CT 06320

Dear Applicant:

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Baployer Tdentification Number:
27-1094375
DIM:
17053364436009
Contact Person:
JOHNM J MCGER
Contact Telephone Nunber:
{g@77) B29-5300
accounting Period Ending:
Septembar 30
public Charity Status:
g09{a) (2)
Form 990 Requlred: .
Yo
Effective Date of Exemption:
October 13, 2009
contribution Deductibilitby:
Yes '
Addendum Applies:
No

IDf 31169

We are pleased to inform you that vpon review of your application for tax
exempt stafus we have determined that you are axempt from Pederal income tax

nder mection 501{c) {3) of the Intermal Revenue Code.

deductible under gection 170 of the Code. You are also qualified to receive
tax decductiblie bequests, devises, transfers or gifts wunder secticn 2055, 2106
or 2527 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

Organiéations evempt under gegtion 501{c} (3) of the Code are further classified

as either public charities or private foundatioms. We determined that you are
a public charity under the Code sectiom{s) iisted in the heading of this

Jetter.

i

o4

please see enclosed Publication £221-P¢, Compliance Guide for 501 {c) (3) Public
Charities, for some heipful ilofcrmation about your regponsibilities as an

exempt organdszation.

COPY

Letter 947 (DO/CG)

Contributions to you ars
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L&M PEYHICIAN ASSOCIATION INC

We have szent a copy of this letber To your representative as indicated in your
power of attommey.

Sincerely,

Robert Choi
Dirsctor, Exempt Organmizations
Rulings and Agreements

Enologure:; Publication 42231-PC

COPY

patter 947 (DO/CGE)
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AGREEMENT AN_]) PLAN OF MERGER
of

L&M PHYSICIAN ASSOCIATION, INC.
a Comecticut modical foundation

with and into

NORTHEAST MEDICAY, GROUP, INC,,
a Cornectent medical foundation

ARTICLEX
FPARTIES

The parttes to the merger (the “Merger”) are L&M Physician Association, inc,, a
Connecticnt medical foundation (the “Merging Corperafion™), sud Northeast Medical Group,
Inc., a Connecticut medical foundation (the “Surviving Corporation” and, fopether with the
Merging Cotporation, the “Consfituent Corporations™, The Merging Corporation shall merge
with and into the Surviving Corporation in accordsnce with the Connecticut Medical
Foundations Law and the Conneeticut Revised Nonstock Corporation Act (together, the "Aet™,

ARTICLETE
SURYIVING CORPORATION, NAME,

Northeast Medical Group, Inc. shall be the surviving corporation of the Merger, The
Constituent Corporations shall cause an appropriate Certificate of Merger (the “Certificate of
Merger™) reflecting the Merger to be filed with the Secretary of the State of the State of
Comneeticut.  Upon the Effsctive Time (as defined below) of the Merger, the name of the
Surviving Corporation shall continue to be Northeast Medical Group, Inc.

ArmacLelll
LEEECTIVE TIME AND DATE

The Constiluent Corporations shall do all acls and things as shall be necessary or
desirable to effeci the Merger. The effective time and date of the Merger provided for herein
shall be the fime and daie on which the Ceriificate of Merger is filed with the Sceretary of the
State of the State of Connecticut (the “Effective Time™).

July 17, 2015 Finat Yemsion
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ARTICLE TV
PURPOSES OF THE PLAN OF MERGER

(2)  L&M Physiclan Association, Inc. is a corporation without capital slock organized
and existing undor the Act, Northeast Medical Group, Ine, is a corporation without capilal stock
orgamized and cxisting under the Act.

(b)  This Agreemeni and Plan of Merger (the “Plan”) s intenided to accomplish the
merger of L&M Physician Association, Inc, with and into Nertheast Medical Group, Inc., with
Northeast Medical Group, Inc, as the surviving corporation, in the maner slated in this Plan and
in accordance with the provisions ol the Act,

ARTICIEY
MEMBERSITP, CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION, BYLAWS, OFFICERS AND TRUSTEES

At the Effective Time, the following shall happen antomatically and immediately,
without the need for any other action by the board of directors of the Merging Corporation, the
board of trustecs of the Surviving Corporation, or the respective members of cither of the
Constituent Corporations, and without any filing other than the filing of the Cortificatc of
Merger:

(&)  As of the Effective Time, the separate existence of the Merging Corporation shall
sease, and the membership of the Merging Corporation shall not convert into membership of the
Surviving Corporation.

{h) The Certificate of Incorporation and the Bylaws of Northeast Medical Group, Inc.
shall each be amended and restated at the Effective Time as a result of the Merger. The
Amended and Restated Cerfificate of Tneorporation and the Amended and Restated Bylaws of
{he Surviving Corporation, are set forth as Bxhibit A and Exhibdt B, respectively, to this Plan,
and shall be effeciive from and after the Effective Time, until further amended pursuant to the
Act and in the manner preseribed therein.

{c) The officers and trustees of Northcast Medical Group, Inc. in oifice immediatcly
ptior to the Gffective Time shall be the officers and irustecs of the Surviving Corporation uatil
such time as they may be changed in accordance with the Bylaws of the Surviving Corporation
and other applicable law.

ARTICLE VI
Frrror oF MERGER

Upon the Effcctive Time of the Merger, the separale existence of L&M Plysiciat
Association, Tne. shall cease, The effect of fhe Merger shall be as set forth in §33-1158 of the
Act.

Juby 17, 2015 Vinat Yorsion
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ArricLE Vi
OTHER TERMSE AND CONBITIONS

1F, &t any tme after the Effective Time, the $urviving Corporation of it successor oy
assigns determines that any documentation, action or other things are necossary or desirable lo
finther carry out the purposes of this Plan or 1o vest the Surviving Corporation with all right, title
and interesl. in to and uider all of the assets, properiies, rights, claims, privileges, immunities,
powers, franchises and autharity of each of the Constituent Corporations, the officers and
directors of the Surviving Corporation shall be authorized to execute and deliver, in ihe name of
andl on belialf of any Constituent Corporatien or otherwise, alf such docwnentation, and fo tike
and do, in the name and on behalf of any Constituent Corporation or otherwise, all such other
actiong and things.

Yoo erF BLAN oF MERGER

A% R AR

[Signatiure page follows. ]

July 17, 2145 Fiad Yersion
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IN WITNESS WHEREOR, each of fhe Congtifuent Bntities has caused his Agreement
and Plan of Merger to be exectited on its belialf by its duly authorized officers on this day
of

&M PHYRICIAN ASSOCIATION, INC.

By:
Nane: Christopher M. Lehvaeli, M.I3,
Title:  President

NORTHEAST MEDICAL GROUP, INC.

By:
MName: Amit Rastogi, M.D.
Titte:  Interim Prexident

- d .

Plar of Merger - Signature Page
Fitly 17, 2 3Finat Version
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Amended and Restated Ceriificate of Incorporation
of
Northeast Medical Group, Inc.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

NORTHEAST MEDICAL GROUL, INC.

§1.  Name. The name of the Corporation shall hereafter be: NORTIIBAST
MEDICAL GROUP, INC. {the *Corporation”).

82,  Purposes. The nature of the setivitics to be conducted and the purposes to be
promated or carried out by the Cerporation shall be exclusively charitable, soientific end
edncational within the meaning of Section 301(e)(3) of the Tnternal Reverme Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code™), and shall include the following;

(2) o operate and maintain one or more offices or faetlities for the study,
diagnosie and lreatment of human ailments and injurics by licensed persons;

(b} fo render medical and surgical treatment, consultation or advice by duly
licensed employees or agents of the Corporation fo paticuts without regard to vace, color, creed,
sex, ape or sbility to pay for such care and services;

{(c) to promole, enhance, improve, and develop medical, surgical and
scientific research at providers affiliated with Yale-New Ilaven Health Services Corporation,
including, for sa long as such providers are affiliated with Yale-New Haven Health Services
Corporation, Bridgeport Hospital, Greenwich Hospital, Lawrence + Memorial Corporation,
Vale-New Heven Hospital and such other providers that may affiliale with Yale-New Haven
Health Services Cotporation in the future (the “Affiliated Delivery Networks”) and throughout
the communitios they scrve;

(@) to promote, crhance, improve and augment the quality of medical and
clinical education and patient care at Affiliated Delivery Networks and at smy other sifes
determined by the Corporation;

(¢) 1o promote and cnhance 2 high quality of medical care and othey human
services for the benefit of all persons in the communities it serves;

) fo augment the planning process for the promotion of the genernl well-
being and human healih needs of the commumities it serves;

(g)  to solicit, accept, hold, invest, relnvest, and admintster any conlribitions,
grants, donations, gifts, bequests, devises, benefits of trusts (but not to act as irustee of any trust),
and property of any sort, without limitation as to amount or value, and to use, disperse or donate
the income or principal thereof for exclusively charitable and educational purposes in such
menner as, t the judgment of the Toard of Truslees and the member of the Corporation, will
best premote the purposss of the Corporation;

July 17, 2615 Fival Version
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(hy . to contract for, purchase, receive, own, Inanage, operale or lease property,
real, personal and mixed, wheresocver stiuated, as may bo necessary 1o promote and further the
purposes aind objectives of the Corporation; and

] {0 cngage in any lawful act or activity for which a medical foundation may
be organized under Chapter 594b of the General Statutes of Connecticut or for which a nonstock
corporation may be organized under Chapter 602 of the Generat Statutes of Conneeticut.

The member of the Corporation has clected 1o bring the Corporation within the
provisions of Chapler 594b of the General Stafudes of Comectiout. |

[n furtherancs of the purposes set forth herein, the Cotporation shall (i) patticipate a5 an
integral part of the integrated health care delivery sysiem known as the Yale New Haven lcalth
System {the “Systern™), which System provides, through the corporativn and is affiliafes,
vomprehensive, cost offective, advanced patient care characterized by safety and clinical and
service quality; and (i) fund and propote activities and programs of the System, including
activitics and programs of itg affiliates, consistent with and in furtherance of the corporation’s
chatitahie purposss and the charitable purposes of all Systom affiliaics,

§3,  Nonprofit The Cerporation is nonprofit and shali not have ot igsuc shares of
stock or make distributions.

§4.  Member, The Corporation shail have but one voting mernber, The member shall
be Yale-New Haven Health Services Corporation, & “Heallh System” as defined in Section 33-
1824z of fhe Comnecticut General Statutes. The member shall have the rights, powers and
privileges provided fn the Corporation’s Bylaws and by Comectient law, including certain
exprossly tosorved powers and retained rights deseribed in the Bylaws.

§5.  Duration. The dugation of the Corporation shali be perpetual.

86.  Board of Trstees. Subject lo the rights, powers and privileges of the member,
fhie Corporation shall operate ander the management of ifs Board of Trustees. T he Bylaws may
provide that certain persons oecupyivg certain positions within or without the Corporation shall
he ox-officio irustees, who may be counted in determining a quorum and may have the right to
vote as may be provided in the Bylaws. As may be firther provided in the Bylaws, the terms of
elected trustees may be staggered by dividing the elected trustees info up 1o three groups so that
anproximately an equal number of such trustees have terms that expire cach yoar, Trusiees may
he removed by the member for canse as set forth in the Bylaws.

§7.  Restrictions, No part of the net earnings of the Corperation shall inure fo the
henefit of, or be distributable to, the Corporation’s tmsiees, officers or other private persons,
except that the Corpotation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reascnable compensation
for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set
forth in Section 2 hereof. No substamtial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be the
earrying on of propaganda, ar otherwise atfempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation
shall not participate in, or intorvene in {including the publishing or distribution of “stalements™)
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any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any ofher
provigion of this Certificate of Incorporation, the Corporation shall not carry on any other
setivities not permitted to be carried on {a) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501(c}(3) of the Code, or () by a corperation, confributions to which are
deductible under Section 170(c)(2} of the Code.

88.  Dissolution,. Upocn the dissolution or termination of the existence of the
Coyporation, all of its property zud assets, after payment of the lawful debts of the Corporation
and the expenses of ils dissolution or fermination, shall be delivered, conveyed and paid over
(subject to any restrictions imposed by any applicable will, deed, grant, conveyance, agreement,
memerandum, writing or other governing document) to YaleNew Haven Healih Services
Corporation, or, if at ihe time of the disselution or termination of the existence of the
Corporaiion, Yale-New Haven Health Services Corpotation is mol In existence or does not
qualify as exempt under Sceiion 501(c)(3) of the Cede, to any organization (or organizations)
that qualifies as an organization exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, in such preportions
end for such exclusively charitable, scientific o2 educational pusposes as the Board of Trustees
may determine.

§9.  Limitation of Lisbility of Trustegs. In addition to and not in derogation of any
other rights conferred by law, a Trustes shall not be personally ligble Tor monetary damagss for
breach of duty as a Trustee n an amount greater than the amount of compensation received by
the Trustee for serving the Corpotation diing the year of the vielation, provided that such
breach did not () involve a knowing and culpable violation of law by the Trustee, (b) enable the
Trustee or an sssooiate, as defined in Section 33-840 of the Conneclicul General Staiufes, to
recelve ar improper personat economic gain, (c) show a lack of good faith and a consclous
disrepard for the duty of the Trustee to the Cotporation under circurnstances in which, the Trustee
was aware that his/her conduat or omission created an unjpstifiable risk of sericus injury to the
Corporation, or (d) constitute a sustained and unexceused paftern of inattention that amounted to
an abdication of the Trustee’s duty to the Corporation. Any lawful repeal or medification of this
Seetion 9 or the adoption of any provision inconsistent herewith by the Board of Trustees or
member of the Corparation shall not, with respect to a person who is or was a Trustee, adversely
affoct any lmitation of liability, right or protection of such person existing at or prior to the
effective date of such repeal, modification or adoption of a provision inconsisterrt herewith. The
limitatton of Habilily of any person who is or was a Trusiee previded for in this Section 9 shall
not be exclusive of any other Hmitation or elimination of liabilily contained in, ot which may be
provided to any person under, Connecticut law.

§10. Indempification. The Cotporation shall provide its Trustecs with the fill amonnt
of indemnification that the Corporation is permitfed to provide pursuamt to the Commecticut
Revised Nonstock Corporation Act. In furtherance of the fotegoing, the Corporation shall
indemnify its Trustees against Lability as defined in Scetion 33-1116(4) of the Connecticat
General Stattes fo any person for any action iaken, or any failure fo take any action, as a Trustes,
excopt Hability that (1) involved a knowing and culpable yiolation of law by fhe Trustee, (2}
enabled the Trustee o an associate 1o Teccive ar improper personal economic gain, (3) showed a
laek of good faith and a conscious disregerd for the duty of the Timstee to the Corporation nndet
circumstances i wiich the Trustes was aware that his or her conduct or omission created an
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wrjustifiable risk of serious injury to the Corperation, er {4) constituted a sustained and
unexeused patiem of inattention that amounted to- an abdication of the Trosiee’s duly lo the
Corporation.

‘Fhe Corporation may indenmily and advance expenses to sach officer, empioyes or agent
of the Corporation who is fot & Trustee, or who iy a Trustes but is made & party 1o & prooeeding
in his or her eapacity solely zs an officer, employee or ageni, lo lhe same extent as the
Corporation is permitted fo provide the same fo a Trustee, and may indemnify and advance
expenses to such persons (o the extent permitted by Seetion 33-1122 of the Comnecticul {3eneral
Statutes,

Notwithsianding any provision hereof to the contrary, the Corporation shail not
indemnify any Trustes, officer, employee or agent apainst any penally excise taxes assessed
against such person under Seetion 4958 of the Internal Revenue Code.

§11.  Amendment of Bylaws. The Bylaws of the Corporation may be amended or
sepealed, and new Bylaws may be adopted, only with the approval of the Board of Trustecs and
the member,
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NORTHEAST MEDICAL GROUP, INC,
AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS

ARTICLE T. NAME AND GENERAL PURPOSES

Section 1.1 Name. The name of the corporatfon is Northeast Medical Group, Lac
(the “Corporation™).

Section 1.2 General Purposes. The purposes of the Corporation shall be as set forth
in the Corporation’s Certificato of Tncorporation as in offect from tlme o time. These Bylaws,
the powers of the Cosporation, its member, trustees and officers, and all matters concerning the
conduct and repulation of the affsirs of the Corporation shall be subjeet to the Cerfificatc of
Tncorporation.

ARFICLE I, MEMBERSIHIP

Qection 2.1  Member. The Cotporation shail have a single member, Yale-Now Haven
Health Serviees Corporation (the “Member”), a “Ilcalih System” 43 defined in Section 33-18Jaa
of the Connecticut General Statutes.

Seetion 2.2 Rights, Powers and Privileges. The Member shall have all the rights,
powers and privileges usnally or by law accorded to the member of a nedical foundation under
the Chapter 594b of the Connecticut Genetal Stafutes (as it may be amended from time to time,
the “Foundation Act™) and of a Connectiout nonstock, noxprofit gorporation under the Cormecticul
Revised Nonstock Corporation Act (as it may be amended from, time to tisne, the “Nonstock Act™)
and not confereed fhereby or by the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws upon the Board of
Trustees of the Corporation (the “Board™), including the right to elect +the members of the Board in
accordence with these Bylaws.

Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws o the contrary:

(a)  Neither the Board, nor any officer ot employes of the Corporation, may feke
any of the actions set forth in Bxlibit A of these Bylaws, nor may the Board or any officer or
employee of the Corperation approve the taking of any such action by an Affiliaie (as hereafter
defined), without the prior approval of the Member, For purposes horeof, an “Affiliate™ of the
Corporafion shall mean, unless otherwise determyned by the Member, any entity which af the fime
Affiliate status is befng determined is direotly or indirectly controliing or controlied by or under the
direct or indirect conmmon control with the Corporation. “Confrol” shall mean the Jegal power fo
{n) clect or cause the election ol a majority of the poverning body of the subject entily, or (b} direet
of cause the direchon of the subject cuiity’s operations or management, whether the foregoing
power(s) exisi(s) through voting securitiss, other voting righis, reserved powess, contraet tights, or
other legally enforceable means,

(t)  In addition to the approval rights reserved to the Member sct forth in
Exhibit A, the Member expressly rciaing the rights to take the aclions sef forth in Exhibit I3 on
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behalf of and in the mame of the Corporation, directly and without the approval of the Board of this
Corporation.

{(€) The Board shall have the authority, from time io fime, fo delegate to the
Member any rights, powers and privileges that would otherwise be exercised by the Board fo the
fullest extent permiticd by applicable law,

Section 2.3  Liabiliiy_and Reimbursement of Fxnenses. Unless the Member
expressly agrees otherwise in wiiting, the Member shall not be lable for the debts or obligations
of the Corporatior, The Member may be retmbursed for expenses reasonzbly incurred on behal?
of the Corporation,

ARTICLE I BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 3.1  Powers and Duties, Subject to the powers refained by, conferred upon, or
reserved o the Member by law or under these Bylaws, the Board shall have charge, control and
management of the affairs, properly and funds of the Corporation in the manner and subject to
the Hmitations set forth in these Bylaws. Each Trustee shall discharge his or her duties in good
faith with the care an ordinarily prudent person in like position would exercise under similar
pircoumstances, and in a manner he or she reasonably helieves to be in the best interests of the
Corporation, '

Seetion 3.2 Compesition. The Board shall consist of two classes of voting Trustees,
the Elecied Trustees and the Ex Officio Trustess (pollectively, the “Trugtoes™).

(5)  Elected Trustees. Elected Lrustees shall be the persons elected by the
Member for terms as set forth in thesc Bylaws, {ollowing nomination and approval pursnant to
Qeetion 3.4 of this Article I, Elected Trustees will represent a eross section of major segments
of the community served by the Corporatien and shall be selecied, on the basis of
demonstrated skill and ability, for their potential confribution to the governance of the affairs of
the Corporation.

(by  Ex Officio Trustees. In addition {o the Rlccted‘TmsLees, thers shall be
the following Ex Officio Trustees, each of whom shall serve aufomatically by virtue of and while
holding the designated office:

{i} fhe President of the Corporation; and

{iy  the President of each Affjliated Delivery Network, or his or her
desighee.

For purposes hereof, “Affiliated Delivery Network” shall mean Bridgeport Hespital, Greenwich
Hospital, Lawrence + Memorial Corporation, Yale-New Haven Tospital and such other
providers that may affiliste with the Yale New Haven Systent in the future, as designated by the
Member.

Seetion 3.3  Number. The Board shall consist of no fewer than thirteen (13) nor more

)
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than twenty-Tour (24) Trustees, inclusive of Bx Officio Trustees. The muriber of Trustees within
the ranpo set forth in the preceding senfence shall be determined from time to fime by the
Member,

Section 3.4  Flection of Trusfecs. Af the snnual meeting of the Membex, the
Member shall clect successors to the Blected Trustees whose tetms are then oxpiring. The
Member shall slect such suceessors cousistent with the folfowing Beard compesition:

{(a)  two (2) represenfatives of senior management af the Member (each, a
“YNHHSC Board Member™);

) one (1) representutive from each Affilialed Delivery Network othet than
fawrence + Memorial Corporation (in addition to the President, or his or Ler designee, who
shall serve Bx Officio as set forth in Section 3.2{b));

(¢} two {Z) physiclans employed by the Corporation, cach of whom is a
member in good standing on the medical staff of Lawrence + Memorial Hospital or Westetly
Hospital; .

(@ up to eight (8) individuals, each of whom is cither (1) nominated by a
majority voie of the Board and approved by the Member; or (2) self-nominated and appointed by
the Moember; provided, however, that sach such individual, whether nominated by a majority
vote of the Board or self-nominated, shall be a Provider (as defined in the Foundation Act)
emplayed or engaged by the Corporation and a member in good standing on the medical staff of
one or more Affiliated Delivery Network;

{e)  two (2) represeniatives of Yale School of Medicine;

H such other individuals nominated Yals School of Madicine and approved
by the Member; provided, however, that each suech other mdividual shall be a Provider employed
or engaged by the Corporation and a member in good standing on the medical staff of one or
more Affiliated Deliver Network,

Notwithstanding enything herein o the contrary: (x) in accordance with the TFoundation
Act, the number of Trustees ot the Board who are Providers shall egnal or exeeed the number
of Trustees on the Board who are nonprovider employees of the Member; and (y) the riumber
of Trustees appoirted to the Board as representatives of, or on the nomination of, Yale School
of Medicine shall constitute twenty-five percent (25%) of the tofal number of Trustess on the
Board.

Section 3.5 Term and Term Limits, There shall be three (3) classes of Flected
Trastees, with approximately one-third of fho Elected Trustees in each class, and the torms of all
Trustees in the same class shall cxpire at the adjonmment of the same annual mecting of the
Member ot which Trustess are elected, Blected Trustces shall take office at the close of the
meeting of the Member at which they were elecled or at such later date as may be established
by the Member and, subject to Section 3.6 of this Article I1I, shall held effice for a term of
{hree (3) years and tntil a succossor is duly elected and qualified,

3
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Notwithstanding anything herein fo the contrary:

{a)  No person shall be elected a Trusice for a term beginning after the date of
his or her seventy-sixth birthday, provided thet an Elected Trustee who is seventy-six (76) years
of age or older may be re-clected for another ferm if (1) the Trustee is also clected as an officer of
the Corporation or appeinted chair of a standing commities at the beginning of such term; ar (ii)
the Momber determines that additional service is approprfate due to the Trustee’s unigue
oxpertise and commiiment to the Board. In the instance of re-election as a Trustes for an
additional term as provided in clause (i) of the foregoing sentence, Board membership shall
be coterminons with said Trustee’s service as an officer or commitiee chair,

(b)  An Elected Trustee who has secved three (3) consecutive full terms
(provided that Tor the porposes of this Section 3.5 a term ol service of more than one-half of a fuil
ferm shall be considered & fll term) shall not be eligible for ve~clection for a peried of one year,
provided that a Trustee may bo ro-elected for an additional conseoutive term if (1) the Trustes is
also elected as an officer of the Corporation or appointed chair of a standing committee at the
beginning of such additional ferm; or (i} the Member determines that additiepal service ix
appropriate due to the Trustee’s unique expertise and commitment o the Boatd, which such
determination shall be made only in Imited circumslances and shall be made prior to each
praposed re-clection after the Trustee’s completion of thres (3} consscutive full terms. In the
instance of re-clection as a Trustee for an additional term as provided in clause (i) of the
foregoing senience, Board membership shall be coterminous with said Trustee’s service as an
officer or commitiee chaiz.

{¢)  The provisions of paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section shall not apply 1o
an Elected Trustec in the event such Trustee also serves as a trustee of Yale-New Haven Health
Yervices Corporation at the time such person is elecled to serve as an Elscted Trustee for a term
otherwise prohibited by such puragraphs (2) and (b). In the instance of re-glection as & Trustee
for an additional term as provided in this paragraph (2), Board membership shall be coterminous
with smid Trostes’s service as a trustee of Yale-New Ilaven Health Services Corporation,

Section 3.6  Resignation, Any Elected Trustee may resign af any fime by giving
written notice of such resignation to the Secretary of this Corporation. Such resignation ghall be
effective gl the fme specified in the notice, or if no time is specified, upon receipt by ihe
Secretary, The acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it offsclive. Any
Rx Officio Trustee who for any reason ceages to hold the offiee or position from which kis ot
status as an BEx Officio Trustee clerives shall antomatically be deemed to have resigned 85 a
Trustee of the Corporation and from any position held by virlue of such office with any Afliliate.

Section 3.7 Removal. One or more Blected Trustees may be removed from the Board
with cause by action of the Meraber, which action may be taken upon 1ts own initiative or upon
the recommendation of the Board,

Section 3.8  Vacaneies, In the event of the death, resignation or removal of an Elected
Trustee, the vacarcy resulling therefrom may be flled only by the Member in accardance with
Section 3.4 of thege Bylaws. An individual elected o £l a vacancy shall sorve the remainder of
the term of the Trustee replaced.

4
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Section 3.9  Meetings,

ta)  Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the Board shall be held on snch
date and time as the Board or the President shall desipnafe.

(b)  Regular Meetings, Regular meetings of the Beard shall be held on such
dates and at such limes and places as the Board or President shall designate.

{c) Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called al any
time by the Prosident and shall be calted by the President upon the writien request of the Member
or any Trustee.

Section 3,10 Notice of Meetings. Notice of the date, fims and place of any meeting of
the Board shall be given 1o each Trustee and lo the Member at least five (5) days in advance of
the mesting, except that no notice need be given of a regular meeting held in accordance with &
schedule established at the beginning of the fiscal year and provided to the Board and the
Momber in writing. Any nolice of a meeting required under these Bylaws may be comigunicaled
to % Trustee in person, by mail or other delivery scrvics, or by telephone, facsimile or other
electronic means, including electronic mail directed to an electronic email address at which &
Trustee hay consented to teceive notice. Notice to the Member shall be directed to the
President/Chief Rxceutive Officer of the Member and may be provided in person, by mail, or by
iclephone, facsimile or other electronic means, including clecizonic mail directed to an electronie
roail address af which the President/Chief Executive Offfcer of the Member has congented to
receive notice.

Seetion 3.11 Waiver of Notice, Notice of any meeting of the Board may be waived in
writing by all the Trusiees and, if any Trusteo present et a meeting of the Board does not protest
prior to or at the commencement of the meeting the lack of proper notice, he or she shall be
deemed to have waived notice of such meeting.

Section 3,12 Action by Unanimous Written Consent. Any action required ot
parmitted fo be feken by the Board may be faken without a meeting if all the Trustecs
unanimously consent to such action in writing. Such written consent(s) shall be filed with the
minutes ofthe Corporation and shall have the same force and cffect as a vote of Trustees at a duly
convened meeting. For purposes of this scetion, a Trasiee may evidence Iis or her consent with any
roanual, facsimile, conformed or electronic signature, including an email commurnication from the
Trnstee to the Corporation fror an email address provided by the Trustes 1o the Corporetion,

Scetion 3.13  Participation_by_Conference Call. The members of the Board may
participate in a meeting of the Board by mcans of conference telenhone or similar
communieations equipment (including, without limitation, video confercneing  equipment}
affording all persons parficipating in the meefing the ability fo hear one ancther, and such
parlicipation in the meeting by means of such equipment shall constitute presence in person at
such meeling,

Section 3.14 Quorum and Vefing. A majority of the muinbar of Trostees in office at the
fime shall constitute o quortmn for the transaction of business at all meetings of the Bo ard, provided

5

Juiy 17, 2015 Final Yorsion

80




that if less than a majority of the Trustees is present af said meeting, a majorily of the Trusfees
present way adjourn the meeting from time fo time without further notice. ‘Fhe act of 2 majority
of the Trustees present at & meeting at which a quorum is present at the fime of the act shall be
the act of the Roard, unless the act of & greater number is required by these Bylaws, by the
Cortificate of Incorporation or by law, Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that any
Prostes has a confiet of interest with respect to any tremsaction o be undertaken by the
Corporation, such transaction shall requite the approval of the Board or the Member consistent
with Arficle VIL

ARTICLE IV, OFFICERS

Section 4.1  Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall consist of a Chair, a
President, a Sceretary, a Treasurer and such other officers, including Vige Chairs, as may be
appointed from time to time consistent with S action 4.6, The Chair and any Viee Chair shall be
members of the Board.

Section 4.2  Election and Term of Office. The President shall be appointed in
accordance with Section 4.3{a) of this Article 1V. The Chair, any Vice Chairs, the Secretary
and the Treasuger shall be nominafed by the Nominating end Govemnance Commitiee and
elected anmually by the Board for a term of one year and uatil their successors are duly elected
and qualified. The Board may create and fill such other offices as 1t deems necessary consistent
with Section 4.6,

Gection 4.3  Powers, The officors shell have the powers and perform the duties
commonly incident to their respeciive offices, including the powers and dufies listed below.

{a) President. The President of the Corporation shall be appointed by the
Member, following consultation with the Beard, The appointed President shall serve at the
pleasure of the Member.

‘The President shail be a person who in the judgment of the Member has the combination of
efucation, expetlence, professional standards and demonstraled leadership ability to fulfill
sucoesstully the responsibilities of the position and to command the confidence and respeet of the
Roard, employees and the cotmmunity,

The President shall be delegated fhe responsibility for oversll management of the
Corporation and shall have all anfhority necessary 1o cary out this responsibility, subject only to
such policies as may be adopted by the Beard. The Trestdent shall act as the duly antborized
representative of the Board in all matters in which the Roard has not formally delegated some
other person 1o so act. The duties, responsibilities and authority of the President shall be definedina
vritten statement adopted by the Member in consultation with the Board,

The President shall be a voting member of all standing comuniffees exoept a8
ctherwise specified in these Bylaws,

(b)  Chair. The Chair of the Board shall preside at meetings of the Board.
The Chair shall perform such other duties as the Board may from time fo time preseribe.

6
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{6)  Vice Chair. The Board may designale one or more Vice Chadrs, who shall
exorcise the powers and duties of the Chair duting absence or disabilily. The Vice Chair(s), if any,
shall perforra such other dutics as the Board or the Chair may from time to time prescribe.

{8)  Seeretary, The Secrelary shall have the custedy of the records of fhe
Corporation pertaining to the Seoretary’s office, shall koep minutes of the meetings of the Board,
and shall eause notice of such meefings 1o be given as requited by law or these Bylaws. The
Secretary shall perform such other duties as the Board or the Chair may from {ime to time preseribe.

(&)  Treagwrer, The Treasurer of the Corporation shall be responsible for the
safekeeping of all funds and secwrifies of the Corporation, shall sce that proper records showing
4]l financial (ransactions of {he Corporation sre maintained, and shall present financial reporis fo

the Roard,

Yeotion 44 Resignafion and Remeoval.

(&)  An officer of the Corporation may resigh af any time by giving writien
notice of such resignation to the Secretary, Such sesignation shall be effective at the time
specified in the notice, or if no fiwe is specified, upon receipt by the Secretary, The acceptance
of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effoctive.

{h) The Board may remove from office any officer with or without cause;
provided, however, thal the President may be removed from office by the Member following
conzultation with the Board. Removal of an officer shall be without prejudico to the officer’s
coniract rights, if any.

Section 4.5 Vaeancies. In the case of the death, resignation or rernoval of any
oFicer, except the President, the vacangy may be fitled by the Board for the upexpired term. A
vacancy in the office of President shall be filled in accordance with Section 4.3{8).

Section 4.6 Other Officers. The Coxporation may have such other officer or officers,
including assistant officers, as the Board may from tims to fime determine. Any such officer or
assistani officer shall be appointed or clected in the maumer and for the term determined by the
Board, and the officer shall have the dutles assigned by the Board.

ARTICLE ¥. COMMITTEES

Seotion 5.1  Classification. There shall be such slanding comunittees as may be
provided for, from time to time, fn this Acticle ¥ and such othet committess as shall be
established by Board resolution from fime fo fime, Standing committees shall have the powers
and duties set forth in this Article ¥ and in a charter approved by the Board, Other committess
shall have the powers and dutics set forth in the resolution establishing them and in a charter
approved by the Board, Bach commitiee shall periodically review its charfer and revise it as
necossary; provided, however, that no amendment shall become effective uniil approved by the
Board.

Section 5.2 Appoiniment of Committee Members. Except as otherwise provided in
7

Inly 17, 2015 TFinal Yersion

82




these Bylaws, members and chafrs of all standing commitiees shall be appointed by the Board
on nomination of the Nominating and Governance Committee. All such cominitice members
and chairs shall serve at the pleasure of the Board until the next snnual meeling of the Board and
urstil fheir successors shall be chosen., All commitices shall have the power to choose their own
sectetaries. Unless otherwise provided, individuals whe are not Trustees may be appeinted 1o
commitiecs and each such person so appointed shall bave a voie and bo included for purposes of
determining a quorum; provided, however, that if a committec is authorized to act on. behall of the
Rourd, any such action sust be approved by a majority of the commiitee members who are
Trustees.

Section 5.3 Committes Governance,

(a) Ouorsm and Voling. A majority of the committee members shall
constitute a quorum at commitice meelings except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws. The
act of & majority of the commitice members present at a meeting s which a guorum is present
at the Lime of the act shall be the act of such commitice, unless the act of a greater number iy
required by these Bylaws, by resotution of the Board or by law.

(b}  Meetings. Dxcept as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or by resoiution
of the Board, sach commitice shall establish its own rules and procedures and shall fix the time
ard place of ifs meetings, Dach commities shall keop minutes of its meefings which shall be
made available to the Board upon request,

Seetfon 5,4 Stunding Commiitees.

(a)  Execntive Commitiee. ‘The Executive Committes shall consist of the
Chair, who shall act as chair of the commilies, the President, the Treasurer, and any other
member of the Board {hat the Board may choose 1o appoint. The Bxscutive Committes shall
possess end may exercise in the intervals hetween meetings of the Board all such powers of the
Board, except ag may otherwise be provided by lav, ihese Dylaws or tesolution of the Board.

()  Nominating sud Goyernanes Committee, The Nominafing and
Clovernance Comumittee shall consist of ‘Frustess elected by the Board. The Nominating and
Governanece Committee shall, after consultation with the Pregident and other Trustees, nominato
candidates to be voied upon in electing officers and members of the Board and norninate for
sppointment by the Board the chairs and members of all standing committecs, The Nominaling
and Covernance Commitiee shall also review Beard governanct matiers and recommend
enhancements to strengthen the Board and ensure the comprehensiveness and efficiency of iis

ZOVErNANS PrOCess.

{(¢)  Financg Committee. The Finance Committes shall have such duties as
ate established by the Member and set forth in the Finance Commiitiee charter. These duties
shail include, but not be limited to, approval of local operating and capital budgets and
oxamination and monitoring of other operating and capital budgets involving the Corporation.
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Sortion 5.6 Oiher Commyittees, The Beard may cstablish and appoint from among
{he Trustees or others, such other commitices with such powers ead authority as the Board shail
designate, except that no such commitice may exercise the authosity of the Board.

Section 5.7  Powers of Conmmaitfess. No commiliee established by the Board shall
have power to fili vacancies on the Board or on any of ils committess, to amend the Certificate of
Incorporation of the Corporation or these Bylaws, o approve & plen of merger, lo approve & sale,
lease, cxchange or other disposition of all, or substanfially all, of the propertly of the Corporation
other than in the usual and repular course of affaixs of the Cerporation, to approve & proposal to
dissolve, or to authorize any ofher action inconsistent with the Certificate of Incorporation ot
these Bylaws,

ARTICLY V1, INDEMNIFICATION

The Corporation shall indernify and defend the Corporation’s Member, Trusiecs,
officers and employees as set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation.

ARTICLE VII, CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Trustees and officers of the Corporation shall comply with any Confliets of Tnterest
policy adepted by the Corporation, as auy such policy may be amended from time to time, and
with the provisions of the Nosstock Act related to disclosure and approval of “Director’s
conflicting interest iransactions” (as such term is defined in the Nonstock Act). Congistent with
the requircments of the Nonstock Act, any “Directot’s comflicling intercst trapsaction” shall,
when possible, be approved and authorized by cither (i) the Momber or (i) a majority of the
disinterested Trustees voting on the fransaction af a meeting at which a majority {(but no fewer
than two (2)) of all disinferested Trustees on the Board shall constitute a quoruny, in each case
following any required disclosure of the facts of the conflicting interest transaction.

ARTICLE VIH. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Qection 8.1 Tiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first
day of Cctober and end on the last day of Seplember In cach year unlesd the Board of Trusiees
shall otherwise determine. '

Seciion 8.2  Kxeeution of Deeds and Coniracts. Except as otherwise disected by the
Roard, all deeds and morigages made by the Corporation and all olher writien condracts,
agresmentis and undertakings to which the Corporation shail be a party shall be executed In its
natne by the President or such other officers or officers as may be specificd by the Board or
authorized by the President. :

Qection 8.3 Exceution of Negotiable Instruments. All checks, drafts, notes,
bonds, bills of exchange and orders for the payment of money shall be signed by the President
or such officer ot officers of the Corporation as the Board may specify from time to time.
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ARTICLE [X, AMENDMENTS

Subjeet to approval by the Member, these SBykws may be amended, altered, or repealed at any
meefing of the Boad by 2 majorify vote of the Trustees prosent and voting, & quortim being present.
The general nature and purpose of such propased amendment(s) shall be set fortls in the notice of
the meeting, and the acual language of the proposed amendments need not be included in the
notice. No mmendment, altetation or vepeal shalt take effeel until it shafl have beon approved by the
Menber.

14
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EXHIRIT A
Actions Requiring Approval of the Member

Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws to the confrary, neither the Board nor any officer or
employes of the Corperation may take any of the following actions, or approve an Affiliate
taking any of the following actions, without the pricr approval of the Member:

A,

.

REN

Merpor, consolidation, reorgenization or dissohmtion of this Corporation or any
Affiliste and the creation or acquisition of an interest in any corporale entity,
including joinl ventures,

Amendment or restaternent of the Mission, Certificale of Incorporation or the
Bylaws of this Corporation or any Affiliate, or any new or yevised “doing,
business as™ name;

Adoption of operating and cash flow budgets of the Corperation or any Affiligte,
ineluding consolidated or combined budgets of this Corporation and all subsidiary
orgatizations of the Corporation (pursuant to the anthority delegated to this
Corporation by the Member to adopt such budgets within parametors established
hy the Metrber);

Adoption of capital budgels and capital allocations of this Corporation or any
Affiliate (pursuant to the authority delegated to this Corporalion by the Member
to adopt such budgets within parameters cstablished by the Member);

Inourring aggrepate operating or capifal expenditures on an annual basis that
exceed pperating or capital budgets of the Corporation adopted by the Member by
a specificd dollar amount to be determined from time to time by the Member;

Long-term or material agreements including, but not limited to, cquity financings,
capitalized leases, operating leases and installment contracts; and purchasc, sale,
lease, disposition, Lhypothecation, exchange, gift, pledpe or encumbrance of any
asset, real or personal, with a fait market value in excess of a dollar amount {o be
determined fromt time to time by the Memmber, which shall not be less than 10% of
the fota] acnual capital budget of this Corporation;

Approval of any new relalionships or agreemenis for undergraduate or praduate
medical education programs or any material amendments to ox terminations of
existing agreerments for undergraduate or graduate medical education programs;

Contracting with an untelated third partty for all or substantially all of the
management of the asgets or operations of this Corporation or any Affiliate;
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Approval of major new programs and clinical services of this Corporation ot any
Affiliate or discontinuation or consolidation of any such program. The Member
shall from time to time define the term “major”™ in this context;

Approval of stralegic plans of this Corporation or any Affiligte;

Adoption of safety and quality assurance policies nof in confoomity with policies
cstablished by the Member; and

Adoption of any polices relating to compensation of amnployed physiciavs or the
taking of any other action to ostablish or adjust compensation of cmployed
physiclans. For purposes hereof, compensation shall tnclude salaty, fringe
benefits and defeired compensation.

Other Malor Activities

Al

In addition, the Member shall have the autherity, except as otherwise provided by
the Member and afer consultation with this Corporation, to require the prior
roview and approval of those activities of this Corporation or any subsidiary or
aililiate entity that the Member determines to be “major activities.”

“Major activities” shall be those which the Mernber by a vote of not less than
two-thirds {2/3) of its Board of Trustees has declared major, by written notice to
this Corporation, delivered persopally or transmitted by registered cr cextified
mail retarn teceipt requested. Such notice shall specifically identify the matter 07
miallers requiring approval of the Meraber, and shall refer to this Bylaw provision
granfing such approval rights to the Member. Notices received pursuant fo this
section shall be recorded in the minutes of this Corporation and shall be fled witk
the mirmtes of this Corporation.

Nothing in these Bylaws shall be construed in a mannes that is inconsistent with the amhorities
with respect to the Corporation that are resetved or tetained by the Member pursnant to thesc
Bylaws and the Bylaws of the Member.

12
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EXHIBITB
Actions Direct Authority Retained by the Member

Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws to the contraty, the Member retains authorily to take
the following acticns on behalf of and in the name of this Corporation, direcily and withoul the
approvel of the Board of this Corporatiomn:

A

G

Adoption of targets for the annual operating and vash flow budgets of this
Corporation and its Affiliates, incinding consolidated or combined budgets of fhis
Corparation and all subsidiary organizations of the Corporation;

Adoption of targets for the annual capital budgets and capital allocations of this
Sorporation and any Affiliate;

Adoption of annual operating, cash flow and annual capital budgets for the
Corporation and any Affiliate within the argets established by the Member in the
ovent of any failure of the Corporalion to do so;

{ssuance and incurrence of indebtedness on behalf of this Corporation;

Management and control of the Niquid assefs of this Corporation, including fhe
authority to cause such asscts to be funded to the Member or as otherwise directed
by the Member;

Appoiniment of the independent auditor for this Corporation and each Affiliate
and the management of the audit process and compliance process and progedures
for this Corporation and cach Affiliate; and

Appointment of the President consistent with Section 4.3(a).

i3
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L+M COMMUNITY BENEFITS OPERATING MODEL

Facilitators provided a framework showing the relationship between assessing community needs
and haspital community benefit planning to help guide the group discussion of health issues.

LAWRENCE Community Health, Outreach + Parinerships
+MEMORIAL 234 State Street | New London, CT 06320
HOSPITAL 860.442.0733 | Imhospital.org




Community Benefits | About L+M | Lawrence-+Memorial Hospital Page 1 of 2

Home / About L+ 8/ Community Benefits

L+M in the Community

Al L+M Hospital, doctors, nurses and staff are also your neighbors and friends, so it's no
wonder we're deeply committed to the health of our region far beyond the doors of our
buildings.

At L+M, we're determined to make southeastern Connecticut a better, healthier place to live, and that includes
an array of outreach programs. In fact, L+M's "Community Benefits" totaled over $15 million last year, and our
services are aimed at those who need it most, such as expectant mothers, infanis, senior citizens, and those
who are homeless.

There are many reasons for what we do, but the most obvicus is quite simple: we believe In giving gach other
a hand up. Because we live here, ivo. And, like you, we care.

The broad range of L+M Hoapital's community benefit activity includes educational programs, community
disaster preparedness, health promotion, faith community outreach, and collaborative school programs.
Furthermore, there are services for the homeless, injury prevention programs, siudent infemships, and many
other programs that simply wouldn't exist if not for the staff and resources provided by Lawrenege + Memorial.

When it comes to communiify benefits, it's oiten the litlle things that make the biggest differences, Consider
what happens each day at the Homeless Hospitalitly Center ih New London; an employee from the shelter
drops off dirty sheets at L+M Hospital; they retum to the shelter with clean ones. It happens every day, alt
year, free of charge, thanks o L+M. The service saves the shelfer fime, boosts the moral of the guests who
always sleep on clean linens, and, most importantly of all, the service saves the shelfer many thousands of
dollars.

Anothar such program fs a collaboraticn between L+M and the Gemma E. Moran United Way Labor Food
Center, to collect and distrbute disposabls diapsrs and baby wipes fo families in need. When the program
first kickad off in 2009, more than 7,000 diapers were deliverad In the first two mionths.

Organizers found that in some cases, children were being left in dirty diapers all day until needy familiss could
afford to buy more. For many families, the program helped bridge that gap until the next paycheck, Improving
the health and qualily of life for both the child and family. Said one organizer: "The diaper bank program is a
much-needad addition io the region's safety net and has mads a fremendous impact.”

=

hitp://www . Imhospital.org/about/focus-on-community.aspx 5/23/2014
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But [+Ws community commitment doesn't stop with infants. QOutreach programs in schools alse includs such
things as pediatric weight management to help children fight obesity, and heslth and exercise programs to
encourage physical filness,

Another major aspect of L+I's community involvemeant is subsidized healthcare seivicas for those in need,
ranging from emergency and frauma visils to neonatal intensive care. The OB Clinic at the hospital provides
&ducation and festing for expectant mothers, and women who gualify can also receive free exams for braast
and cervical cancer as part of a communify benefit,

httpy:/ferwrw. Imhospital.org/about/focus-on-community. aspx 5/23/2014
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Department of Public Health

LICENSE

\License No. 0361

Outpatient Clinic

Tn accordance with the provisions of the General Statutes of Cormecticut Section 19a-493:

*1 &M Physician Associations, Inc.* of New London, CT, d/b/a *L&M Physician
Associations, Inc.® is hereby licensed to maintain and operate an Outpatient Clinic.

“L&M Physician Association, Ine.” is located at 437 Pequot Avenue, New London, CT
06320.

This license expires June 30, 2017 and may be revoked for cause at any time.

Dated at Hartford, Connecticut, July 1, 2013. RENEWAL

Services:
Primary Care Services

*Ljeensee and d/b/a name change eff: 7-1-13*

ot fiutie

Tewel Mullen, MD, MPH, MPA
Commissioner
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Amit Rastogi, MD

Curricutum Vitae

Administrative Office:

Northeast Medical Group

99 Hawley Lane, 3" floor

Stratford, CT 06610

Phone: 203-502-6502 Fax: 203-502-6556
Amit.Rastogi @ynhh.org

Private Practice (Internal Medicine):

PriMed, LLC
112 Quarry Road, Suite 220
Trumbull, CT 06617

Research Consultant:

Clinical Research Consultants, Inc.
Trumbull, CT 06611

Executive Appointments:
Northeast Medical Group {Yale New Haven Health System)

Interim Chief Executive Officer

Chief Executive Officer Accountable Care Organization

Chief Medical Ofiicer
Chief Operating Cfficer
Vice-Presidant

PriMed, LLC

President and Chief Executive Officer

Board of Directors (Chairman)

ACO: Chief Executive Officer

Executive Committee {Secretary/Treasurer)
PriMed Finance Committee {Chairperson)
PriMed Osteoporosis Center (Medical Director)
PriMed Management Committee

St. Vincent's Medical Cenier

Chief of Medical Staff

Hospital Board of Directors

Chairman, Medical Executive Committee
Medical Staff, Vice President

Medical Executive Commiitee
Chairman, Peer Review Commitiee
Performance Improvement Committee
By-laws Committee

EMR Committee

tnformation Technelogy Physicians Advisory Group
Medical Staff, Secretary/Treasurer
Graduate Medical Education Committee

07/1998-06/2014

1958-2002

03/2015-present
01/2015-present
06/2014-present
06/2014-present
06/2014-present

03/2009-03/2015
03/2009-03/2015
07/2012-03/2015
03/2007-04/2009
03/2007-04/2009
01/2006-04/2009
01/2002-03/2015

07/2013-02/2014
07/2013-02/2014
07/2013-02/2014
07/2010-06/2013
07/2007-02/2014
07/2010-06/2013
07/2010-06/2013
07/2010-06/2012
07/2008-06/2010
07/2009-06/2010
07/2008-05/2010
1998-2002
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Curriculum Vitae — Amit Rastogi, MID
Page 2

Fairfield County Medical Association
e Board of Directors 05/2013-present

NorthBridge Health Care
¢ Medical Director 07/2006-11/30/2007

Academic Appointments:
s  UCONN Scheol of Medicine, Farmington, Connacticut

Clinical Instructor of Medicine 09/2006- 2011
e College of Physicians and Surgeons; Columbia University, Preshyterian Hospital, New York, NY
Clinical Instructor of Medicine 2004 - 2006

Post Graduate Training

St. Vincent’'s Medical Center-Yale School of Medicine
Bridgeport, CT

Internal Medicine, 1996-1998

Brigham and Women’s Hospital-Harvard Medical School
Boston, MA ;
Anesthesiology, 1595-1996

St. Vincent’s Medical Center-Yale School of Medicine
Bridgeport, CT
Internal Medicine, 1994-1995

Education:
¢ Harvard University
Boston, MA

Master in Healthcare Management
Degree candidate, 2016

¢  UMDNJ-New Jersey Medical School
Newark, NJ
Medical Degree, 1990-1994

= TFarleigh Dickinson University
Teaneck, NJ
BS (Biology), Summa Cum Laude, 1986-1989

Professional Memberships:

e Fairfield County Medical Association 1998-present
s American Medical Association 1991-2001
» American College of Physicians 1996-2015
s American Society of Anesthesiology 1995-1996
+ Massachusetts Medical Society 1595-1596

s American Medical Student Association 1990-1984
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Curriculum Vitae — Amit Rastogi, MD
Page 3

Speaking Engagements:
“\alue Based Healthcare — The Innovator’s Dilemma” April 2014
National Webinar

“Accountable Care Organizations — Their role in post-acute care”
National Senior Living Business Webinar January 2014

“falue Based Healthcare — The Innovator’s Dilemma”
National Healthcare Leadership Conference
Orlando, Florida October 2013

“The Role of Medical Groups in the era of Healthcare Reform”
National Healthcare Technology Conference
Las Vegas, Nevada ‘ May 15, 2013

“The Roadmap for Successfully Developing a Physician Led ACO: The Journey from

Volume to Value based healthcare”

American College of Physician Executives Annual Meeting

New Yark, NY April 27, 2013

“What is an Accountable Care Organization”
Northeast Sleep Society Annual Meeting
Trumbull, CT ' April 5, 2013

“ACO’s: Bringing Accountability to the Bedside”
Connecticut State Medical Society
New Haven, CT : October 23, 2012

“The Roadmap for Successfully Developing a Physician-led Accountable Care

Organization: The Journey From Volume to Value-based Healthcare”

2012 National HealthCare Leadership Conference

St. Thomas, Virgin Istands October 11, 2012

“The tmpact of the ACO’s on Disease Management”
Vitaphone International _
Shelton, CT May 7, 2012

“Creating a Culture of Success Within a Physician Led ACO”
National MGMA Annual Conference
Las Vegas Convention Center Las Vegas, Nevada October 23, 2011

"Physician Led Organizations at the Forefront of Healthcare Reform”
National Healthcare Leaders Conference
Palm Springs, CA September 21, 2011
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Curriculum Vitae — Amit Rastogi, MD
Page 4

"The Advantages of a Physician Owned, Physician Governed Muliispecialty
Group”
Norwalk, CT : July 20, 2011

"Why ACOs Should Be Physician Led"
Nationally Syndicated Webinar June 01, 2011

"Metric based Medical Peer Review"
St. Vincent's Medical Center
Bridgepart, CT June 2011

"Accountable Care Organizations”
Fairfield County Medical Association Annual Meeting
Stamford, CT April 28, 2011

"Medical Staff Leadership: Shaping the Future of Healthcare”
St. Vincent's Medical Center
Bridgeport, CT April 2011

"Healthcare Reform and lts Impact on Medical Practice”
Hudson County Medical Association
Jersey City, NJ March 16, 2011

"Medical Peer Review: Bringing Accountability to the Process”
St. Vincent's Medical Center
Bridgeport, CT November 2010

"Medical Staff Leadership: A Real Life Perspective”
St. Vincent's Medical Center Annual Retreat
Mystic, CT January 2008

YHealthcare Reform: A Primer”
PriMed Annual Conference
Trumbull, CT October 2009

Research Experience:
e Department of Internal Medicine, St. Vincent's Medical Center, Bridgeport, CT
Once Daily vs. Multiple Daily Aminoglycoside Dosing
Principal Investigator: Amit Rastogi, MD (1997-1998)

e Department of Internal Medicine, New Jersey Medical School
Amlodipine Study of the Angina Population
Principal Investigator: Bunyad Haider, MD {1993)




Department of Internal Medicine, New Jersey Medical School
Trials of Hypertension Prevention (Phase I1)
Principal Investigator: Nerman Lasser, MD, Ph.D. (1991)

Sub-investigator for the following protocols at Clinical Research Consultants:

New Compound to Inhibit Cartilage Degradation in Patients with Osteoarthritis of the Knee {m
(1998-1999)

OTC Switch Study to Investigate the Consumer Usage Patterns of a New Heartburn Medication
(1999)

Topical Anti-Inflammatory Treatment for Osteoarthritis of the Knee {1999)

New Treatment for Heartburn Symptoms Following a Provocative Meal {1999)
Searle-Comparison of COX-2 Inhibitors in Relieving Pain and Morning Stiffness of Osteoarthritis
of the knee {1999)

Medicated Patch for Treatment of Pain Associated with Osteoarthritis of the Knee or Hip (1599)
Angiotensin Il Receptor Antagonist for Treatment of Essential Hypertension as Determined by
Ambulatory Monitoring of Blood Pressure {1999-2000)

Solvent/Detergent Plasma Pharmacovigilance Study Healthy Volunteers {1999-2000)

Anti-TNF in the Treatment of Patients with Rheumatoid Arthritis (1999-2000)

Oral Interferon in the Treatment of Sjogren’s Syndrome (1999-2000)

New Compound for Treatment of Chronic Low Back Pain (1999-2000)

New Compound for the Treatment of Subjects with Viral Respiratory Infections {1999-2000)
New Compound for the Treatment of Rheumnatoid Arthritis in Patients Receiving Methotrexate
{1999-2000})

Glaxo Wellcome-Alosetron for Male Subjects with Irritable Bowel Syndrome (1999-2000)
Glaxo Wellcome-Alosetron for Female Subjects with Alternating Diarrhea/Constipation Irritable
Bowel Syndrome (1999-2000)

New Treatment for Hyperlipidemia in Post-Menopausal Women with Osteopenia {1999-2001)
Long-Term Safety Study of New Treatment for Patients with Clinical Depression (1999-2000)
Comparison of COX-2 Inhibitors in Treating Patients with Osteoarthritis and Hypertension {1999-
2000)

New Compound in Combination with Metformin for Treatment of Subjects with Diabetes
Mellitus Type H} (1999-2001)

Comparison of COX-2 Inhibitors in Treating Patients with Osteoarthritis of the Knee or Hip
(2000}

New Compound for the Treatment of Pain Associated with Diabetic Peripheral Polyneuropathy
(2000-2001)

New Compound for Treatment of Patients with Chronic Lower Back Pain (2000)

Comparison Study to Investigate the Efficacy and Safety of a New Compound in the Treatment
of Males with Erectile Dysfunction (2000-2001)

An Open-Label Study of the Long-Term Safety of a New Compound for the Treatment of
Rheumatoid Arthritis in Patients Receiving Methotrexate {(2000-2001)

Angiotensin Il Receptor Antagonist for Treatment of Patients with Mild-to-Moderate
Mypertension as Determined by Ambulatory Monitoring of Blood Pressure (2000-2001)

A Single Dose Study of a New Compound for the Treatment of Subjects with Acute Migraine
Attacks (2000)

Evaluation of Solvent/Detergent-Treated Plasma in Normal Healthy Volunteers (2000-2001)
Medicated Patch for the Treatment of Osteoarthritis of the Knee (2000)

Human Anti-TNF Monoclonal Antibody in the Treatment of Patients with Active Rheumatoid
Arthritis (2000-2001)
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Curriculum Vitae — Amit Rastogi, MD
Page 6 ' ‘

» New Compound for the Treatment of Viral Respiratory Infections in Adults (2000)

e A Comparison Study of a New Compound in the Acute Treatment of Major Depression {2000~
2001)

e New Compound Versus Enalapril for the Treatment of Hypertensive Patients (2000-2001})

» AStudy of the Safety and Efficacy of a New Compound for the Prevention of Bone Loss and for
Lipid Lowering in Postmenopausal Women at risk for Osteoporosis (2000)

e A DNA Sampling Study to Determine the Efficacy of a New Test for the Evaluation of Patients
with Breast Cancer (2000)

« AStudy to Evaluate the Efficacy and Safety of Ranging Doses of a New Com pound for the
Treatment of Mild to Moderate Hypertension (2000-2001)

e Comparison of COX-2 Inhibitors in Treafing Patients with Osteoarthritis and Hypertension
{SUCCESS V1I) {2000-2001)

e New Compound for Relief of Pain Associated with Diabetic Peripheral Neuropathy {2000-2001)

e Clinical Protocol to Evaluate the Safety and Effectiveness of a Device in the Treatment of
Patients with Acute Epicondylitis (2000-2001)

e Clinical Protocol to Confirm the Safety and Efficacy of a Topical Lotion for the Treatment of the
Osteoarthritic Knee (2000-2001)

e Long-Term Safety Study of a Human anti-TNF Antibody Administered as a Subcutanecus
Injection in Patients with Rheumatoid Arthritis (2000)

» A Study to Evaluate the Effectiveness of a New Test as an Aid in the Early Detection of Prostate
Cancer or in Monitoring Men with Prostate Cancer {2001-2001)

» Study of a New Topical Medication for the Treatment of Chronic Low Back Pain {2001)

e The Study of a Combination Therapy for the Treatment of Hyperlipidemia in Type 2 Diabetic
Men and Women (FACTOR} {2001}

e Study of a New Compound in Combination with Metformin in Previously Treated OHA
Monotherapy Obese Subjects with Type 2 Diabetes (2001)

s A Study of a New Narcotic Patch in the Management of Patients with Chronic Non-Malignant
Pain Syndromes Responsive to Opioid Combination Therapy {2001)

o A Forced Titration Study of a New Angiotensin Il Receptor Antagonist in Patients with Essential
Hypertension (2001)

e Study of a New Compound as Monotherapy in Patients with Primary Hypercholesterclemia
(2001)

s Merck Comparison of COX-2 Inhibitors in Treating Patients with Osteoarthritis of the Knee
(2001)

e A Pilot Study to Evaluate the Efficacy and Safety of an Immediate-Release Opioid in Patients with
Moderate to Severe Non-Malignant Pain (2001)

» An Open-Label Study of Drug Response in Relationship to Gene Variants in Aduits with Primary
Hypercholesterolemia (the STRENGTH Study) (2001)

e A Study of the Analgesic Efficacy and Safety of a New Compound for the Treatment of the Pain
of Diabetic Neuropathy {2001)

s An Open-Label Comparison Study of a New Compound Versus Aftorvastatin, Cerivastastin,
Pravastatin and Simvastatin in Subjects with Hypercholesterolemia (2001)

e AStudy to Evaluate the Safety and Efficacy of a New Compound in Subjects with Acute Migraine
Attacks (2001}

e A Comparison Study of a New Compound in the Treatment of Chronic Pain in Patients with
Diabetic Neuropathy (2001)
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Curriculum Vitae — Amit Rastogi, MD
Page 7

e A Dose Finding Study to Evaluate the Efficacy and Safety of a New Compound for the Treatment
of Mild-to-Mederate Essential Hypertension (2001}

e A Study Comparing the Effects of Study Drug to Amlodipine and Benazepril on Systolic Blood
Prassure and Pulse Pressure in Patients with Systolic Hypertension (2001)

e An Open-Label Study of Drug Response in Relationship to Gene Variants in Adults with Primary
Hypercholesterolemia (The STRENGTH 11 Study) (2001}

» Clinical Protocol for the Study of the Analgesic Effect of a New Compound in Patients with
Chronic Low Back pain (2001)

e  AStudy to Evaluate the Effectiveness of a Muscle Re-education Biofeedback Device for Home
Use in Patients with Osteocarthritis of the Knee (2001)

¢ A Crossover Study Comparing Study Drug to Acetaminophen and Placebo in Patients with
Osteoarthritis of the Hip or Knee (2001-2002)

» A Comparison Study of Two Medications for the Treatment of Osteoporosis in Postmenopausal
Women (2001)

e Study of a New Topical Gel for the Treatment of Anogenital Herpes to Prevent Recurrences
{2001)

o A Study Investigating the Clinical Effects of a New Compound in Patients with Perennial Aflergic
Rhinitis (2001-2002)

s Twelve-Week Study of the Analgesic Effect of a New Compound in Patients with Low Back Pain
(2002)

e Clinical Protocol for the Study of a New Compound in the Treatment of Patients with
Osteoarthritis Pain of the Hip or Knee (2002)

» Comparison Study of a New Compound to Treat Erectile Dysfunction in Males with a Diagnosis
of Diabetes Mellitus and/or Hypertension and/or Hyperlipidemias {2002)

s Clinical Protocol for the Assessment of the Bone Resorption Activity of a Compound in Women
with Osteopenia {2002)

o Clinical Study of the Weight Reducing Effect and Safety of a New Compound in Obese Patients
with and without Comorbidities (2002)

* A Fifteen-Week Study of a New Compound for Efficacy and Quality of Life in Patients with
Painful Diabetic Neuropathy {2002)

s Twelve-Week Study of the Analgesic Efficacy of a New Compound Compared to Placebo in
Patients with Chronic Low Back Pain (2002)

o Clinical Study to Determine the Safety, Efficacy, Pharmocokinetics and Pharmacodynamics of a
New Compound in Subjects with Moderate to Severe Rheumatoid Arthritis on a Stable Dose of
Methotrexate (2002)

s Clinical Protocol to Assess the Efficacy and Safety of Middle of the Night Administration of a
New Compound in Patients with Primary Insomnia (2002)

e Clinical Study to Evaluate the Tolerability and Efficacy of a Combination Therapy Compared to a
Single Therapy for Treatment in Patients with Combined Hyperlipidemia (SAFARI) (2002)

e A Protoco! for Blood Sample Collection from Healthy Subjects To Aid in the Study of [n Vitro
Diagnostic Devices (2002)

e A Second Crossover Study Comparing Study Drug to Acetaminophen and Placebo in Patients
with Osteoarthritis of the Hip or Knee (2002)

Rev05,2015




MICHAEL LOFTUS

HealthCare Finance Executive

Experienced Teader with track record of motivating teammates at all levels of the organization.
Utilize strong analytical skills to solve problems, drive improvements and accomplish goals,
Superior interpersonal skills capable of resolving multiple and complex problems under differing
levels of pressure, Utilize a well honed sense of humor to enjoy wotk and projects even under
difficult circumstances. Develop long lasting, fulfilling relationships with teammates and clients.

Current Work Experience

Yale-New Haven Health System, New Haven, CT 1995 to Present
Teaching Hospital System with over 2000 Beds and revenues over $3B, including Yale-New Haven
Hospital, Bridgeport Mospital, Greenwich Hospital, and North East Medical Group

Chief Financial Officer, Northeast Medical Group

Vice President, Finance-Physician Relations 2013 to Present
Work as a strategic partner to the Chief Executive Officer and to the System Senior leadership team.
Responsible for directing and supporting the financial operations for a large multi-specialty
physician organization. Works closely with the management team to drive the financial vision,
direction, guidance and compliance to support successful operations. Provides administrative
oversight for all financial reporting and billing initiatives at NEMG. Oversees all
financial activities, coordinate the development of NEMG’s budgets, forecasts and business
plans.  The CFO maintains appropriate internal controls throughout NEMG including
general accounting, practices, physician compensation and administration

Director, Financial Operations, Yale-New Haven Children’s Hospital 2012 to Present
Financial Partner to Senior Vice President. Responsible for all financial aspects of Yale-New
Haven Children’s Hospital. Directed strategic financial planning for various development and
partnership options, including negotiation of potential divestare. Developed and approved all
related business plans.  Successfully negotiated asset acquisition from Yale School of Medicine in a
complex academic environment. Developed team of employees to support all client requests.

Director, Financial Operations, Smilow Canecer Hospital 2009 to Present
Essential Team member working daily with Physician in Chief, Vice President of Operations and
Nursing Director, in managing Hospital operations. Responsible for all financial aspects of Smilow
Cancer Hospital at Yale-New Haven Hospital. Directed financial transition into new hospital.
Developed and approved all related business plans. Successfully negotiated asset acquisition of
several group practices. Developed team of employees to support all client requests. Developed
executive dashboard for volume, quality, and financial reporting.

System Director, Financial Planning and Analysis 2005 t0 2012

Direct budget and financial planning functions for the three system hospitals, and the Health System
Corporation. Direct annual and multi-year operational and capital budget cycles. Support revenue
cycle management functions at Yale-New Haven Hospital. Train and develop staff for improved
internal consulting capacity. Support Certificate of Need filings thronghout the health system.
Continue to improve accuracy and accessibility of decision support system. Support the
development and review of business plans to best support operational and capital investment
decisions. Direct internal and external consulting projects to improve operational performance.
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Michael Loftus page 2 of 2
Continued Work Experience, Yale New Haven Health System

s
——h

Director of Reimbursement 2002 to 2005
Directed Reimbursement departments for Yale-New Haven Hospital, and Bridgeport Hospital.
Directed government reimbursement, net revenue measurement, and cost reporiing support, audits,
appeals and related negotiations for $1B in annual net revenue. Support revenue cycle management
functions at Yale-New Haven. Supported the recognition and receipt of $90M in revenue
enhancements over five years. Worked with senior management, physicians, regulators, attorneys and
Hospital Operational Staif.

Manager, Revenue Systems & Network Initiatives 2000 to 2002
Managed the completion of third party cost reports, third party cost report audits, appeals and all
required federal and state revenue filings. Responsible for monthly calculation of net revenue, revenue
budgets, and analyzing the impact of legislative changes. Worked in concert with coniracting
department to optimize net revenue during contract negotiations. Converted a dysfunctional department
into a high functioning team.

Various Finance Positions 1995 to 2000

The Hospital of Saint Raphael, New Haven, CT
Teaching hospital with 700 Beds and over $350m in revenue.

Reimbursement/Financial Analyst 1993 to0 1995
Yolunteer Work
CHAIN Fund Treasurer 2009 to0 2014

New Haven Based Charity Organization focused on providing financial assistance to families of
cancer patients.

Closer to Free Ride 2012 to Present
Ride Committee Member and Participant

Habitat for Humanity 2009 to Present
Volunteer with Financial Planning team for days of building at New Haven sites

Education

MBA, Concentration of studies in Finance University of New Haven, CT
BS/BA, Major Health Systems Management/Minor MIS ~ University of Connecticut

Green Belt, Six Sigma Training Yale New Haven Health System
Teaching Experience

Yale School of Nursing, Associate Clinical Professor 2003 to Present

University of Connecticut, Health Systems Management MBA. Program, Guest Lecturer
Yale School of Epidemiology and Public Health, Master’s Program, Guest Lecturer
Quinnipiac College, Undergraduate School of Business, Guest Lecturer

Publications

Bozzo, I. & Loftas, M. (1999). Linking mothers and babies for casemix outcomes analysis.
Proceedines of the Eleventh Casemix Conference in Australia: The Unfinished Agenda, Darwin,
Australia.
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Curricolum Vitae
ARNOLD DoROSARIO, M.D.

PRIVATE PRACTICE: 4699 Main Street, Bridgeport, CT 06606
1979 - Present
EDUCATION
St. Teresa's Boys School, Nairobi, Kenya, Fast Africa
(Examining Board: University of Cambridge, England)
Graduated High School 1962

* Strathmore College, Nairobi, Kenya, East Africa
(Examining Board: University of London, England)
Graduated 1966 (Premed/Science)

* University of Navarra, Pamplona, Spain
Faculty of Medicine
Full Scholarship Student
Graduated Cum Lande 1969-1975

POST GRADUATE TRAINING:
Residency in Internal Medicine
St. Vincent's Medical Center, Bridgeport, Connecticut
(Yale School of Medicine Affiliated Program)
1975-1978

* Chief Resident

St. Vincent's Medical Center, Bridgeport, Connecticut
1978

CERTIFICATIONS:
* Certified in Specialty of Internal Medicine
American Board of Internal Medicine - 1978
® Certified in Geriatric Medicine
American Board of Internal Medicine - 1988

Page 1 of 3

Curriculum Vitae
Arnold DoRosario, M.D.
Page 2 of 3
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HOSPITAL AFFTLIATIONS:

Attending Physician/Teaching Facility
Department of Medicine
St. Vincent's Medical Center, Bridgeport, Connecticut
(1984 - Present)
* Attending Physician/Teaching Facility
Division of Aging, Department of Medicine
St. Vincent's Medical Center, Bridgeport, Connecticut
(1984 - Present)

APPOINTMENTS:

Associate Professor, School of Medicine, Quinnipiac University
2012- present

® Associate Chnical Professor
Columbia University
1998 - 2008

* Medical Director,
PriMed, LLC

2002- Present
Associate Clinical Professor
New York Medical College
1994 - 1997
* Clinical Instructor
Yale School of Medicine
1982 - 1986
* Medical Director
Maefair Health Care Center, Trumbull, Connecticut
1994 - 2011
* Assistant Medical Director
Northbridge Healthcare Center Bridgeport, Connecticut
1994 - 2008
* Medical Directoy
Barneit Nursing Home, Bridgeport, Connecticut
1986 - 1994

AWARDS:

%

Resident Teaching Award

St. Vincent's Medical Center, Bridgeport, Connecticut - 1996 & 1999

"Teaching Attending of the Year" (Recognition awarded by resident physicians.)

St. Vincent's Medical Center, Bridgeport, Connecticut - 1991

“Teaching Attending of the Year 2004 :St. Vincent’s Medical Center, Bridgeport, Ct
“New York” Magazine Best Doctors: 1999, 2000, 2001,2005, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009
“Connecticut Magazine” Best Doctors: 2005, 2006, 2009
“11.8. News & World Report: Best Doctors 2012
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Cuarriculum Vitae: rev 2012
Arnold DoResario, M.D.
Page 2/2

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS:
. Member, Executive Committee: 1996 — 2000
. St Vincent’s Medical Center, Bridgepori, Ct

* Peer Review Committee
Fairfield County Medical Association; 1986 - 1996
® Member, Conunittee On Geriatrics

Connecticut State Medical Society; 1992 - 2006
* Fairfield County Medical Association-AARP
Addressing issues pertaining to the elderly; 1988 - 2006
* Chairman, Medicare Committee
Connecticut State Medical Society
1999 - current
* Member: Performance Improvement Committee
St. Vincent’s Medical Center, Bridgeport, Ct
2007 — current
Chairman: Quality Council
St. Vincent’s Medical Center, Bridgeport, Ct
2008 — current
. McKesson Technology Solutions Advisory Board
' Member : 2013
. Anthem Patient centered Primary care Program
Program Advisory Council : Member 2013

MEMBERSHIPS:

American College of Physicians

American Geriatric Society

American Society of Internal Medicine
Greater Bridgeport Medical Society
Fairfield County Medical Association
American College of Physician Executives

1992 -1997  Board of Directors, Physicians Health Services, CT.(HealtBNet)

1996 -1999;  Chairman, Health Care System of Connecticut.
(A 45 physician Primary Care Group)

1999 - present  Vice-President, PriMed, L.L.C.
Medical Director, PriMed LI1.C
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1998 - 2000 Vice-President: Medical Statf
St. Vincent's Medical Center, Bridgeport, CT
2000-2002:  President: Medical Staff
St. Vincent’s Medical Center, Bridgeport, Ct
1998 -2004  Board of Trustees, Fairfield County Medical Association




H. ANTHONY CARTER, MD/MBA
15 Perkins Farm Road
Waterford, CT 06385
860-912-1693

E-mail: acarter@lmhosp.org

Current Professional Address:

Lawrence and Memorial Medical Group
194 Howard Street

2* floor East-Medical Office Building
New London, CT 06320

860-444-3366 (Office)

Current Clinical and Administrative Responsibilities:

Medical Director, Lawrence and Memorial Medical Group (Feb. 2014-present)

Administrative duties comprise a 0.6 FTE position and involves clinical
oversight of the outpatient primary care and specialty care services
within the Lawrence and Memorial Medical Group. Oversight
responsibilities include: participation in hiring and onboarding of all new
physician and midlevel providers within the medical group; fo facilitate
program development in the adoption and implementation of standard,
evidence-based clinical guidelines across the multiple specialties as well
as clinical processes to address gaps in patient care and patient access;
co-chairman of the Physician Operations Committee responsible for
representing the interests of the medical group physicians in the creation
of operational and strategic policies; active membership in the LMMG
Quality Assurance Commitiee fo ensure participation among all medical
group providers in adherence to federally mandated quality and cost
containment initiatives such as PORS and Meaningful Use; counseling
ligison in disputes between physicians and patients as well as between
physicians and clinical/administrative staff; voting member of Lawrence
and Memorial Medical Group Board of Directors governing body.

Clinical duties comprise a 0.4 FTE position and involves participation as
an internal medicine physician within the New London based outpatient
primary care clinic of the Lawrence and Memorial Medical Group.
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Past Clinical and Administrative Responsibilities:

Assistant Clinical Professov/Staff Physician (1997-2013)

Emory University School of Medicine, Department of Internal Medicine

Clinical duties entail providing full-time outpatient medical services
within a respected Internal Medicine group practice at an Emory Clinic
multi-specialty facility.

Medical Director, Anticoagulation Management Clinic (2004-2013)

Emory University Midtown Hospital

Administrative duties entail supervision of an ambulatory medical service
with a 1.1 million dollar projected revenue budget for FY 2013. The clinic
is responsible for the comprehensive outpatient monitoring and medical
management of all patients on oral anticoagulation therapy.

Emory Healthcare Clinically Inteerated Network (CIN) Board of Directors

Elected member of board comprised of Emory Healthcare administrative
and physician leaders charged with governance of the Emory Healthcare
Clinically Integrated Network. The CIN is a collaborative partnership
model initiated in August 2011 and formally incorporated by Emory
Healthcare in March 2012 to enable Emory employed physicians and
private practice community physicians across the metro-Atlanta area to
Jjointly contract as a single comprehensive care management system. This
is a physician led initiative with a focus on creating the foundation for
new care delivery models and increasing overall healthcare value
through: incorporation of information technology and data sharing;

 adherence to evidence-based clinical practice standards; enhanced

clinical care coordination; and modification of individual physician
performance gaps. The Board of Directors has the final authority on all
CIN governance matters, including allocation of financial resources and
contract negotiations with insurance payers.

Emory Midtown Hospital Local Clinically Integrated Network (LCIN) Committee

Elected member of committee addressing the specific intevests of Emory
employed and private practice community physicians on the medical staff
at Emory University Midtown Hospital (EUHM) who are also participants
in the Emory CIN network. All local issues pertaining to operational
management and physician alignment within the Clinically Integrated
Network at the EUHM facility, including development of specialty-specific
guality metrics for network participants, are addressed by the LCIN.

Emory Universitv Midtown Hospital Medical Fxecutive Committee (MEC)

Ad-hoc member of administrative committee responsible for addressing
hospital governance issues related to EUHM medical staff credentialing,
physician peer review, patient safety, and monitoring quality standards.
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Education History:

Medical School

Doctor of Medicine

Mount Sinai School of Medicine
New York, NY

Graduated May 1994

Graduate School

Moaster of Business Administration (Executive MBA Program)
Emory University Goizueta Business School

Atlanta, G4

Graduated May 2007

Master of Science (Biochemistry/Molecular Biology)
New York Medical College

Valhalla, NY

Graduated June 1989

Undereraduate

Bachelor of Arts (Biology)
SUNY at Purchase College
Purchase, NY

Graduated January 1988

Physician Leadership Development:

Woodruff Leadership Academy Fellowship Program (2009)

~Intensive four month multi-disciplinary leadership enhancement program for a
select group of identified leaders (fellows) within the Emory Woodruff Health
Sciences Center.

Emory (PEP) Physician FExecutive Training Program (2008)
Department of Internal Medicine and Depariment of Pediatrics

-Extended four month program designed to enhance the business and leadership
skills of a select group of mid-career physician leaders within the Emory
Healthcare system.

Emory Healthcare Leadership Quality Academy (2008)
-Quality and Process improvement instructional program developed for Emory
physician and administrative leaders across all medical departments.
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Institute for Healthcare Improvement Professional Development Seminars:
-Skills for Effective Medical Staff Leadership (2012)

-Leading Quality Improvement: Essentials for Managers (2011)

-Managing Hospital Operations Professional Development Seminar (2008)
-The Role of Managers in Leading and Implementing Safety Strategies (200 7)

Medical Certifications:

National Board of Medical Examiners Recertification, Internal Medicine (2008)
National Board of Medical Fxaminers Certification, Internal Medicine (1 997)
ACLS Recertification, (2013)

Medical Residency:

Internal Medicine Residency Program
Emory University School of Medicine
July 1994 — June 1997

Medical Licensure:

State of Connecticut DPH- Medical License # 052597
Rhode Island Board of Medical Licensure-Medical License # MD14500
Georgia State Board of Medical Examiners-License # 41409

Organizational Affiliations:

American College of Physician Fxecutives (ACPE)
Institute for Healthcare Improvement (IHI)
National Medical Association (NMA)




Curriculum Vitae
Seth Van Essendelft

152 Long Wharf Road
Mystic, Connecticut 06355
Cell (252) 320-2032
Email svanessendelft@mhasp.org

PRESENT POSITION

Lawrence + Memorial Healthcare-New London, CT & Westerly, RI
Chief Financial Officer/ Vice President of Support Services

PREVIOUS POSITIONS

Vidant Health— Greenville, NC
Vice President of Finandial Services (Financial Officer), Vidant Medical Center
Vice President of Finandal Operations (Finandal Shared Services), Vidant Health

Doctors Hospital— Coral Gables, FL
Financial Officer/Controller

CIGNA Corporation —Various Locations
CIGNA Healthcare, Dental & Vision Subsidiary
AVP, Director of Strategic Planning and Control, Plantation, FL

Financial Leadership Program, Hartord, CT
CIGNA Healthcare Division
Direcior of Capital Planning
Assistant Director, PPO Product Controller
CIGNA Retirement and Investments Division
Assistant Director, Consolidated Asset Financial Reporting

PREVIOUS MILITARY EXPERIENCE

United States Coast Guard —Various Locations
Senior Reserve Officer, Coast Guard Sector - Miami, FL

Command Center Operations Controller, First Coast Guard District - Boston, MA

Budget Officer, Pacific Area Command — Alameda, CA
Commanding Officer, Cutter Point Huron — Virginia Beach, VA
Department Head, Cutter Diligence — Wilmington, NC

EDUCATION

M.B.A
The College of William and Mary, Graduate School of Business — Williamsburg, VA

B.S., Management
United States Coast Guard Academy — New London, CT
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2014 — Present

2011 - 2014
2009 — 2011

2006 — 2009

2005 — 2006
2000 -- 2005

2003 -- 2005
2001 — 2003

2000 - 2001

1991 -- 2011
2005 - 2011
2000 — 2005

1998 — 2000
1994 — 1596
1991 - 1994

1997

1991




Christopher M. Lehrach, MD, MBA

34 Sea View Dr., Charlestown, R] 02813 Tel: 401-315-5030 Cell: 401-749-7911 crlehrach@msn.com
T +M Healthcare, 365 Montauk Ave., New London, CT 06320 Tel. 860-442-0711 clehrach@lmhosp.org

Profile:

T am a seasoned, results-oriented clinical leader with 2 proven record of accomplishment in fast-paced environments.
My medical and administrative leadership background, complemented by top-fier business training, allows me to
approach complex issues with a value-driven and highly analytical orientation, in the dynamic high-stakes and high-

energy health care industry. With a disciplined yet flexible style, I consistenily achieve decision quality.

Professional Experience:

President, IA+M Medical Group and Chief Transformation Officer 7/14-Present

L+M Healtheare, Inc., New London, CT

«  Goal of reducing cost while improving quality and patient experience across organization

VP, Division of Care Transformation, Chief Transformation Officer 71137114

T+M Healthcare, Inc., New London, CT

o Goal of reducing cost while improving quality and patient expetience across orgenization

Chief Transformation Officer-Interim Operations
The Westerly Hospital, Westerly, RE

11/12-6/13

e Chief Brecutive of a 125 bed community Hospital undergoing volumtary receivership

CEQ, The Atlantic Medical Group

4/10-10/12

Multispecialty, multisite, medical group serving SE CT and Southern RL

Chair, Department of Emergency Services
The Westerly Hospital, Westezly, RE

Emergency Department Physician/EMP
The Westerly Hospital, WesterTy, RI

Medical Director-P/T
‘Watch Hill Walle-Tn, Watch Hill, RT

Emereency Medicine Physician-P/T
Tandmark Medical Center, Woonsocket, RI

Co-Director, Family Practice/Emergency Medicine
Block Island Medical Center, Block Istand, RT

Emergency Medicine Physician-P/T
Pegasus Group, Emergency Medicine, Fiemington, NJ

Urgent Care/Family Practice-P/T
The Doctor-is-In, Clinton, NJ

Financial Information Technician
Bloomberg L.P., London, England

1/05-10/12

1958-Present

2006-2012

1999-2002

1998-2001

1996-1998

1996-1998

1950-1991




Education:

Yale University, School of Management

New Haven, CT

Masters of Business Administration Degree, with distinction
o Teadership in Healthcare Management

University of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey
Flemington, NJ
Residency Program, PGY I-1Il
Hunterdon Medical Center, Family Practice Residency
e Chief Resident

University of Connecticut, School of Medicine
Farmington, CT
Doctor of Medicine Degree

The University of Pennsylvania, College of Arts and Sciences

Philadelphia, PA

Bachelor of Arts Degree, cum laude
»  Biological Basis of Behavior, Neurobiology tract
*  Psychology

The Hartford Hospital

Hartford, CT

Summer Student Fellowship Program
s  Senior Fellow

Board Positions:

Hospital Association of Rhode Island-vice Chairman
Cranston, R

Rhode Island Blood Center

Providence, RT

Board of Trustees-The Westerly Hospital
Westerly, RI

Community Health of Westerly (CHOW)
Westerly, RT

Certification:

Diplomat, American Board of Family Medicine

Clinical Instructor in Emergency Medicine
Quinnipiac University, Physician Assistant Program, Hamden, CT

Clinical Instructor in Family Medicine
Brown University, School of Medicine, Providence, RI

ACLS, ATLS, Neonatal Resuscitation certification
Rhode Island Allopathic Medical License MD9560
New Jersey Allopathic Medical License

Federal DEA Registration/CDS Certificate

2008-2010

1995-1998

1997-1998

1991-1665

1986-1990

1988-1989

Sammer 1989

2012-present

2012-present

2007-2011

2003-2011

1998-2015

2001-Present

1998-2001

1996-Present
1997-Present
1926-1998

1996-Present
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LAWRENCE
+MEMORIAL
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. GROUP:
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August 20, 2015

To whom it may concern,

Please accept this enthusiastic letter of support for the affiliafion of the Yale/New Haven Health System
with the L+M Healthcare organization. This potential relationship holds promise to better serve patients in
Southeast CT and Southwest Ri by enhancing the clinical offerings available, by improving the quality
and consistency of that care, by improving the patients’ experience and, not incidentally, by lowering the
total cost of care.

Community hospitals have historically met the medical needs of their unique populations by paying close
aftention to the stated desires of their service areas tempered by what was financially feasible. This
feasibility was often tied fo the practicality of establishing standalone 24/7 clinical ines. Unfortunately, for
many small and moderate sized community hospitals (ke The Westerly Hospital in Rl and the L+M
Hospitat In CT), the inability to support some full time service lines led to the unfortunate necessity for
many patients of having to travel, often great distances, to larger medical centers. Almost without
exception, these tertiary and quaternary medical facilities were also very high cost centers given their
fixed costs of supporiing academic programs, research and the burden of caring for the most medically
complex patients in the region.

The result, high cost, inconvenient care with the potential for quality mishaps with regards to care
coordination, care communication, redundant care or superfluous testing.

Enter into this envirenment the seismic shift in healthcare reimbursement that appropriately requires of
providers an unrelenting focus on improving the value of care as opposed to simply extending more and
more care. This new reality mandates that ail healthcare organizations need to learn fo treat patients in
lower cost environments with similar or better quality than high cost settings. Moreover, they need to
achieve proficiency in Popuiation Health whereby the highest risk {(and highest cost) patients are
identified and preferentiaily offered more services and care to keep them, ideally, out of the high cost
Emergency Department or inpatient care Lnits.

Academic medical centers can't do this alone-they are too expensive. Community hospitals can't do it
alone-they lack the organizational, analytical, clinical, human and capital resources to develop the
Population Health infrastructure.

Only by locking arms (as cpposed to locking horns) with each other can we meet the challenge of the H!
Triple Aim, and lower per caplta cost while improving quality and the patients’ experience. Combined with
Yale, |.+M is poised to do this successfully. As our mission Is to "improve the health of this region,” our
patients will be the chief beneficiaries.

Many thanks for the consideration.

P

Christopher M. Lehrach, MD
President, L+M Medical Group/
Chief Transformation Officer
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Kimberly R. Martone July 31, 2015
Director of Operations; Office of Health care Access

410 Capital Avenue-MS#13HCA

PO BOX 340308

Hartford , Connecticut 06134-0308

Dear Ms. Martone,

As chair of the Lawrence and Memorial Medical Group Board of Directors and as a practicing physician
in Southeastern Connecticut, | am writing to express my strong support for the proposed and critically
necessary affiliation between Lawrence and Memoria! Healthcare, Inc. and Yale New Haven Health
system.

In this rapidly changing healthcare environment, it has become increasingly difficult for not-for- profit
community hospitals to remain independent, as Lawrence and Memorial has been for more than a
century and Westerly hospital had been for 88 years before it was acquired by Lawrence and Memorial.
In addition relatively small medical groups such as the Lawrence and Memorial Medical Group will have
considerable difficulty providing necessary care for patients in our community unless aligned with a
large healthcare system. In the past Lawrence and Memorial Hospital has partnered with the Yale
Medical Group and Yale New Haven Hospital in a number of important clinical areas including radiation
oncalogy, invasive cardiology and vascular surgery, neonatology, telestroke, and more recently
pediatric emergency medicine. Patients in our community in Southeastern Connecticut have greatly
benefited from the expertise of the Yale physicians. Asa physician who has frequently referred patients
to endocrine surgeons in the Yale Medical Group | know firsthand how important and crucial to my
patients this clinical partnership has been. Clinicians from both healthcare organizations know , respect,
and interact welt with each other. A full affiliation will greatly improve both healthcare systems and
expand the already substantial accessibility for healthcare in the region-particularly to populations that
are traditionally underserved. As a physician [am convinced that the affiliation of Lawrence and
Memorial Healthcare with the Yale New Haven Healthcare system wiil facilitate the recruitment and
retention of quality physicians in all areas of care. Clearly this is critically important for continuing to
provide the healthcare necessary for our patients in Southeastern Connecticut. And very importantly
hoth healthcare systems wilt be financially healthier from this affiliation.

Representatives from both healthcare orga nizations have completed an extensive due diligence and
have concluded, along with community elected Board of Directors and the physicians on the Board of
Sirectors for the Medical Group that the affiliation with Yale New Haven Healthcare would be the best
outcome for both organizations and the communities they serve. | completely agree with this
assessment,

Based on the above | strongly encourage you to approve this application,
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Very truly yours,

Preston Lamberton, M.D.

Chair, Lawrence and Memorial Medical Group
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LAWRENCE 265 Montauk Avenve | New London, CT 06320
+MEMORIAL 860.442.0711 | Imhospital.org
HOSPITAL

August 6, 2015

Kimberly R. Martone
Director of Operations
Office of Health Care Access
419 Capitol Avenue

MS#13HCA

PO Box 340388

Hartford,Ct 06134-8308

Dear Ms. Martone:

As a physician and surgeon at L+M Hospital for the past 25 years and current President of its
medical staff I am writing this letter in support of the proposed affiliation with the Yale New
Haven Health System.

Months of hard work and due diligence by both institutions have led to a comprehensive affiliation
agreement which contains the aspirational goals and rationales for the desired relationship and
which I am sure you have as part of this filing. I won't repeat them here except To say that they
are widely supported by the medical staff at L+M hospital.

The physicians and other clinical providers at our community hospital.have seen many changes in
the health care system in recent years and are quite knowledgable about those that are coming. We
have been adept at negotiating these changes while still accomplishing the core mission of caring
for the patients in our commurity. We also know that even more change i1s coming that will place
aven more demands on accomplishing the so called triple aim in medicine. This means improving
patient experience, caring for populations of patients, and improving the value of care we
provide. The collective wisdom of our physicians tells us that we will need o partner with a
larger system to move into this future of health care and accomplish these aims which will allow
not just the same care bui vastly improved care.

The medical staff of L+M has considered the Yale system as its natural partner almost forever
because of its deserved reputation as a worldwide leader in healthcare. We consider it a great
fortune for us and our community to have them as our potential partner. Many L+M physicians
historically came from the Yale system and we already have several stellar working clinical
relationships.

Our medical staff is very diverse with physicians in many different configurations of practice.
Employed and private practice. Hospital based and community based. Exclusive contract groups that
provide our emergency room service, hospitalist care, pathology and anesthesia services. The
proposed affiliatlion has the potertial to affect all of us in as yet unknown ways. Despite this
potential change to practitioners individually I can attest that the medical staff stands behind
this initiative and I think this should speak volumes to the wisdom of the endeavor because it is
the physicians and other clinical providers who have the expertise to understand that for L4+M to
continue to provide the best care to this community such an affiliatien is necessary.

In addition to my confidence in the support of the medical staff for this initiative I have also
been given the support of our Medical Executive Committee for the contents of this letter. If I
can in any way provide you with more information regarding the physician perspective on the
proposed affiliation please let me knew.”

-v"”‘"-'”"
Very fryly yours,
5

pDavid F. Reisfeld M.D., FACS
Medical Staff President and
the Medical Executive Committee of L+M Hospital

ey e




Adrian Hamburger, M.D.
interventional Fain Speciafist

45 Wells Street, Suite 201
Westerly, R| 62891
Phene (401) 348-3865
Fax (401) 596-6368
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CIE

) LETTER. OF SUPPORT

'Fo Whom It May Concern:

In my role as President of the Westerly Hospital Medical Staff, I have seen firsthand the
difficulties that local commuriity hospitals deal with on a day-fo-day basis. As you know, our
hospital went through teceivership a few years ago, and was acquired by Lawrence & Memorial
Hospital in June of 2013 after a lengthy regulatory process. L&M Hospital has made significant
improvements -~ and even though the Westerly Hospital is finally making a slight profit the last
fow years — there is still a significant capita} deficit to maintain the physical structure, and
imptove our current elinical offerings.

With further convulsions in the Healthcare industry, with unclear ACA mandates, nebulous
surance changes from year to year —and the growing focus on population health to better
manags costs and care — it has become evident that as a health cars system we need to be
affiliated with a larger entity with further capital resources. ’

1 support the planned merger of the L&M Healtheare sysiem with the-Yale New Haven Health
system, because I believe it will improve the stability of our health industry In this region, it will
allow for increased capital to improve cur physical siructures and increase our clinical reach, and
it will bring tertiary/quarternary care to our region thdt is so desperately needed.

L&M Hospital alrea(iy has a history of successful affiliation with the Yale New Haven Health
system on several clinical endeavors, and 1 believe that this sets the tone for further collaborative
efforts.

;‘7

Adrian Hamburger, M.D. F .
President of the Westerly Hospital Medical Sta

Thank you
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Kimberly R. Martone

Director of Operations

Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

September 1, 2015

Dear Ms. Martene:

] am writing to send my unqualified endorsement of the proposed transition of the Lawrence and
Memorial Medical Group to the Yale-affiliated New England Medical Group (NEMG)

| am a Cardiologist in a community hospital with professional aspirations first and foremost to provide
for the health of this wonderful, diverse community of New London. | view the potential merger as a
maijor step toward bringing needed healthcare resources into our county. By formalizing a relationship
with NEMG, we are building upon and, indeed, formalizing an already existing strong bond. We already
send the lion's share of our complex cardiac cases, for example, to our colleagues at Yale and its NEMG
affiliate. Specifically, we rely heavily on the ability of NEMG for cardiac surgery, interventional
cardiology, electrophysiology, and heart failure--areas in which we, a smaller hospital, could

never realistically have the volume to support a competent cadre of physicians and staff.

By formalizing such an arrangement, it would facilitate a more rapid spread of information , a vital key-
and the one most often overlooked- aspect in the provision of care to our complex and varied patients.

Of course there are political considerations, and seemingly bigger administrative questions about which

[ frankly don't much bother because | know, in my heart of hearts, that the single most important issue
is to be able to sit with my patient, as | did yesterday with Gillian, a 53 year old woman recently
diagnosed with advanced idiopathic cardiomyopathy, and tell her that | have a solid refationship with
the heart failure team, the interventional team and the electrophysiology team at Yale and that
together we will communicate together and with her so that | can hopefully help her navigate through
some very dangerous waters and into a safe harbor of good health. It is guite clear to me that by
merging into NEMG and by having instant access to their medical records and instant access to the
leading specialists in each field, | will be more easily able to deliver safely Gillian (and every other patient
| see) to that safe harbor.

Sincerely,
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_ i affiiation widh
LAWRENCE+MEMORIAL ﬁ?‘rﬁm«mﬁﬂmﬁé
| HeartWVascular Center ¥ Hosrpd

September 3, 2015

To Whom it May Concern:

As medical director of the Lawrence + Memorial Heart and Vascular Center in affiliation with Yale New
Haven Hospital, | have been privileged to see enormous growth in the cardiovascular services made
available locally to the patient's of the greater New London region. We have been able to develop an
incredibly successful interventional cardiology program providing primary and elective percutaneous
coronary interventions for both emergency heart attack victims and more stable patients with coronary
artery disease. We have enhanced vascular services locally providing both surgical and percutaneous
treatment options. We are slated to have advanced electrophysiologic and heart failure services
beginning this year.

We have not accomplished this alone, but rather over the past 8 years we have worked side-by-side
with the cardiologists of the Lawrence + Memorial Medical Group. Together we provide state of the art
advanced heart care locally and have developed timely and efficient mechanisms to provide tertiary and
quaternary services at Yale New Haven Hospital when necessary. This has gone a long way to help
streamline patient care and provide for very effective means of communication among the members of
the patient's care team.

We are now poised to take a broader position and align ourselves even closer with our colleagues from
Yale New Haven as we hope to transition to the Northeast Medical Group. Such a merger would allow
even closer collaboration and better communication among all services including primary care and a
variety of subspecialties. Sharing common resources would go a long way to improve efficiency in the
overall delivery of healthcare to our region. 1am certain this would go a long way to help develop other
healthcare service lines in much the same way we have done with cardiology.

Sincerely,
Buwl Gl 3 p]

Brian Cambi, MD, FACC, FSCAI
Medical Director
[+M Heart and Vascular Center in affiliation with Yale New Haven
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September 1, 2015

To Whom 1t May Concern:

| am writing this letter to support the affiliation of the Yale/New Haven Health System with the L+M Health
care organization. My support is based upon the potential for improved coordination of care and outcomes
for our shared patients, as well as improved cost effectiveness of this care, which will lead to reduced costs for
our patients.

It goes without saying that viability of our smaller community hospitals are challenged given our current
healthcare environment, and these hospital systems are increasingly aligning with [arger healthcare
organizations. While this practical goal would clearly be served hy the above-mentioned affiliation, it is
important to understand the potential benefits to our patients.

Accurate and thorough information of the patient's medical history is obviously important for providing
optimal care, Unfortunately, achieving this has historically proven challenging, largely due our fragmented
system of care. Alignment between these systems of care would facilitate seamless communication between
care providers, and thereby improve transitions of care, which would allow for better care coordination for
these patients in conjunction with their medical homes.

It is also important to acknowledge that this relationship would afford the opportunity to provide services to
patients at a lower cost. Community hospitals are able to provide many of the same services as tertiary or
quaternary medical facilities at significantly lower cost. Additionally, Improved care coordination allows us to
identify, and therefore offer superior support, for our higher-risk patients. This brings the potential of reducing
emergency department visits and hospital stays for these patients.

it is clear to me that alignment with the Yale/New Haven Health System will be of benefit to our patients.
Given our model of patient-centric care at L+M Medical Group, | offer my unequivocal support for this
relationship.

ncgrerly,
o

Brian L. Williams MD
Medical Director of Informatics
L+M Medical Group
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees of
Lawrence + Memorial Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lawrence + Memorial
Corporation (the “Corporation”) and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheets as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We did not audit the financial statemenis of Visiting Nurse Association of Southeastern
Connecticut, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary, which statements reflect total assets of
$20,659,633 and $18,372,801 as of September 30, 2014 and September 30, 2013, respectively,
and total revenues of $16,156,841 and $14,990,001 for the years then ended. Those statements
were andiled by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion
expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Visiting Nurse Association of
Southeastern Connecticut, Inc., is based solely on the report of the other anditors. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audii to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audii evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the Corporation's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Corporation's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

: PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 185 Asylum Street, Suite 2400, Hartford, CT 06105-3404

T: (860) 241 7000, F: (860) 241 7590, Www.pwe.com /s
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accounting estimates made by management, as well as evalnating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the consolidated
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Lawrence + Memorial Corporation (the “Corporation”) and its subsidiaries at
September 30, 2014 and September 30, 2013, and the results of their operations and their eash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting prineiples generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole.

The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, ineluding comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the finaneial statements or to the financial statements themselves and other additional
procedures, in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the Unites States of
America. In our opinion, the consolidating information is fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

The consolidating information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated financial
statements rather than to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of
the individual organizations and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the financial position, results of operations, and
changes in net assets, of the individual organizations.

Fricewatihe wae Coapurs LL £
January 23, 2015
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Assetis

Current assefs

Cash and cash equivalents

Investmenis

Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubiful
accounts of $10,334,227 and $6,158,515, respectively
Other receivables

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Debt service fund

Total current assels

Assets limited as to use

Cash

Constructicn fund

Investments held in frust

Endowment investments

Funds held in trust by others

Contributicns receivable

Funds held in escrow by agreement with State of Connecticut
Health and Educational Facilifies Authority and trustees

Total assets limited as to use
intangible assets, net

Other receivables

Defarred financing costs and other assets, net
Property, plant and equipment, net

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabifities

Accounts payable

Accrued vacation and sick pay

Salaries, wages, payroll taxes and amounis withheald
from employees

Dus to third party payors

Other current Fabilities

Current portion of long-term debt

Total current abilities
Accrued pension and other postreiirement benefits

Other liabilities

Long-term debt less current portion
Total liabilities

Net assets

Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Parmanently restricted

Total net asseis

2014 2013
$ 16,480,529 $ 11,532,247
184,426,039 181,339,086
47,482,954 44,410,454
5,792,415 5,321,417
8,393,007 7,501,154
3,748,725 3,557,507
1,304,562 1,306,255
267,628,231 254,969,020
182,862 182,366
561,676 9,541,685
925,227 985,034
36,641,428 34,155,796
11,348,610 10,956,429
3,520,787 2,702,993
- 2,247,255
53,180,590 60,771,558
2,978,625 3,352,875
2,580,786 2,547,462
2,315,752 1,776,176
206,850,289 208,182,039
$535,534,283  $531,599,130
$ 37,529,850 $ 42,611,470
14,223,728 12,580,707
10,671,516 10,101,654
7,257,949 5,870,081
582,553 123,017
5,476,980 0,347,876
75,742,576 80,635,705
43,216,010 42,300,345
25,610,890 21,676,677
108,587,802 101,001,797
253,157,278 245,623,524
241,902,500 246,531,146
24,770,687 24,154,982
15,703,818 15,289,478
282,377,005 285,975,606
$535,534,283  $ 531,599,130

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Lawrence + Memorial Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations
September 30, 2014 and 2013

Unrestricied revenues, gains and other support

Net revenueas from services o patients
Provision for bad debt

Net revenue less provision for bad debt

Other operating revenues
Net assets released from restriction used for operations

Total unrestricted revenues, gains and ather support

Expenses

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits

Supplies

Purchased services

Other

Interest

Depreciation and amottization

Total expenses
Loss from aperations
Nonoperating gains
Unrestricted invesiment income

income from investmenis
Inherent contribution received from purchase of Westerly Hospital

Total nonoperating gains

{Deficit)/excess of ravenuss over expenses
Net unrealized gains on investments
Net assets released from restrictions used for
purchase of property, plant and equipment

Donated equipment .
Pension related changes other than periedic pension costs

{Decrease)/Iincrease in unrestricted net assets

2014

$ 453,529,100
(20,298,386)

2013

$ 372,745,739

(14,555,970)

433,230,714 358,189,769
20,795,287 21,448,860
876,203 748,784
454,902,204 380,387,413
213 467,507 193,780,844
59,185,837 49,062,244
71,998,110 49,529,083
54,475,011 32,278,640
43,427,170 37,265,822
3,554,919 2,865,011
27,479,122 23,023,433
473,587,676 387,805,077
(18,685,472) (7,417.664)
180,488 122,109
9,832,164 7,752,127
5,284,752 1,796,782
15,297,404 9,671,018
(3,388,068) 2,253,354
2,028,088 12,046,855
1,008,500 167,751
6,350 -
(4,281,516) 5,929,845
$ (4,628,646) §$ 20,397,805

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. |
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Lawrence + Memorial Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
September 30, 2014 and 2013

Unrestricted net assets

Excass of revenues over expenses

Net unrealized gains on investments

Net assets released from restrictions used for

purchase of property, plant and equipment

Donated equipment

Pension related changes other than periodic pension costs

{Decrease)/ncrease In unresfricted net assets
Beginning of year unrestricted net asssafs
£nd of year unrestricted net assets

Temporarily resfricted net assets

Income from investments

Net asseis released from restrictions

Inherent contribution received from purchase of Westerly Hospital
Contributions received

Change in value of funds held in trust by others

Net realized and unrealized gains on invesiments

Increase in temporarily restricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net asseis

Beginning of year

End of year

Permanently restricted net assets

Income from investments

Inherent contribution recelved from purchase of Westerly Hospital
Coniributions received

Change in value of funds held in trust by others
Net realized and unrealized gains on invesiments

Increase in permanently restricted net assets

Permanently restricted net assets
Beginning of year

End of year

{Dectease)increase in net asseis

2014 2013
$ (3,388,068) $ 2,253,354
2,028,088 12,048,855
1,006,500 167,751
6,350 -
(4,281,516) 5,929,845
(4,628,646) 20,397,805
246531,146 226,133,341

$ 241,502,500

$246,531,146

$ 677,343 $ 668,022
(1,882,704) (916,535)

- 871,209

421,640 506,462
111,315 239,710
1,288,111 1,701,848
615,705 3,070,716
24,154,982 21,084,266
$ 24,770,687 $ 24,154,982
$ 20569 $ 13,823
- 9,343,478

80,074 22,888
280,866 17,482
32,831 -
414,340 9,397,671
15,280,478 5,891,807
15,703,818 15,280,478

$ (3,598,601) $ 32,866,192

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidaied financial statements.
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Lawrence + Memorial Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash flows from operaiing activities
Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Net unrealized and realized gains on invesiments

Inherent contribution received from purchase of Westerly Hospital

Provision for bad debts
Increase in funds held in trust by ethers
Increase in contributions receivable
Restricted contributicns
Changes in other operating accounts
Patient accounts receivable, net
Other receivables, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred financing costs and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued vacation and sick pay
Salaries, wages, payroil taxes and amounts
withheld from employees
Due to third party payors
Pension, postretirement and other Kabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, net
Purchases of investments

Sales of invesimenis

Purchase of Westerly Hospital

Decrease in debt service fund
Increase/(decreass) in funds held in escrow

Net cash used In Investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Restricted contributions

Principal payments of long term debt
Proceeds of long term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents
Beginning of year

End of year

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities
Construction in process included in accounts payable

Contributed securities

2014 2013
$ (3,598,601) $ 32,866,192
27,479,122 23,023,433
(2,963,455)  (13,495,284)
(4,940,302)  (12,011,469)
20,208,386 14,555,970
(392,181) (257,193)
(817.794) (794,898)
(1,184,969) (1,174,484)
(20,461,592)  (20,317,347)
(504,322) (970,777)
(891,853) (1,447,315)
(191,218) (137,568)
(539,576) 81,328
(3,713,678) (2,523,188)
1,643,021 (1,558,312)
569,862 3,652,618
1,386,968 (1,632,875)
5,674,664 (9,245,208)
16,872,782 8,613,623
(25,715,324)  (50,503,163)
(70,450,536)  (78,938,843)
77121334 107,257,276

§ (14,535,558)

1,693 855

2,047 255 (130)
(16,804,578)  (36,719,563)
1,164,969 1,174,484
(28,364,094) (2,938,881)
32,080,103 25 446 569
4,880,078 23 682,172
4,048,282 (4,423,768)

11 532,247 15,056,015
$ 16,480,520 § 11,532,247
$ 1673118 $ 2,105,176
$ 1,164,960 § 1,174,484

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Lawrence + Memorial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2014 and 2013

1. Significant Accounting Policies and Organization

Organization

Lawrence + Memorial Corporation {the “Corporation”) is a not-for-profit organization incorporated
under the Nonstock Corparation Act of the State of Connecticut. The Corporation is organized
exclusively for public welfare, charitable, scientific, literary and education purposes, including the
furtherance of the welfare, programs and activilies of Lawrence + Memarial Hospital (the
“Hospital”), a nonprofit crganization incorporated under the General Statutes of the State of
Connecticit.

The following entities are subsidiaries of the Corporation: Lawrance + Memorial Hospital ("L+M"),
L& M Physliclan Assogciation Inc., L&M Sysiems, Inc., VNA of Southeastern Connecticus,

E&M Healthcare, L&M Indemnity Ltd, VNA of Southeastern Connecticut Inc. and LMW
Healthcare Inc. (Westerly Hospital).

Acquisition of Westerly Hospital

On June 1, 2013, the Corporation and its subsidiary, LMW Healthcare, Inc. ("LMW”) completed the
acquisition of ceriain assets and liabilities of Westerdy Hospilal, a 125-bed general acute care
hospital located in Westerly, Rhode Island on a 10.8 acre campus. The acquisition was the
culmination of a process that included the appointmeni of W. Mark Russo, Esq. as the special
master (the “Special Master”) for Westerly Hospital and its affiliates by the Rhode Island Superior
Court for the County of Washington (the “RI Court") in Decamber 2011, due to the deteriorating
financial condition of Westerly Hospital. The Special Master was granted authority by the Ri Court
to negotiate the sale of the assets of Westerly Hospital and its affiliates.

The Corporatlon formed LMW as a Rhode Island nonprofit corporation, and in June 2012, LMW
entered info an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with the Special Master far
Westerly Hospital and its affiliates, which was approved by the Rl Court in September 2012. The
Corporation guaranteed LMW’s commitmenis under the Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to the
Purchase Agreement and upon the successful completion of regulatory review by various Rhode
Island agencies, the Corporation acquired certain assets and liabilities of Westerly Hospital and its
affifiates, in order fo expand its care and aperations to the Westerly, Rhode Island community. The
acquisition of the Westerly Hospiial furthers the Carporation and Lawrence + Memorial Hospital’s
strategy of improving the depth and breadth of services available to all residents in the eastern
Cannecticut and western Rhode Island regions, without regard to ability to pay. Lawrence +
Memorial Hospital expects to reduce unnecessary duplication of efiort and costs with Westerly
Hospital, while maintaining community access to essential services in the Westerly service area.

As part of the purchase agreement the Corporation agreed to fund $3C million in capital costs for
Westerly Hospital over five years after the closing, and agreed to provide up to $6.5 million of
working capital for Westerly Hospital over the first two years after the closing.




147

Lawrence + Memorial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2014 and 2013

The fair value of assets and liabilities acguired under this transaction as of June 1, 2013 are as

follows:
2013

Cash $ 1,563,200
Patient accounts receivable 4,658,183
Inventories 1,550,130
Pledges 750,000
Prepaid expenses 325,650
Investments 6,870,933
Assets heid in frust 4,247 816
Intangible assets 3,690,000
Property, plant & equipment 30,850,000

Total assets 54,505,912
Accrued compensation 2,488,190
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 15,052,105
Due to third partiss 1,856,951
Asset retirement obligation 1,425,678
Debt 5,572,761

Total liabilities 26,305,685

Net assets acquired $ 28,110,227

The purchase price of $16,0088,758 was paid in cash. The transaction resulted in an inherent
contribution of $12,011,489 which has been appropriately aflocated to the three net asset classes
within the statement of changes in net assets in 2013. The inherent contribution is a resulf of the
value of net assets being acquired exceeding the purchase price. The purchase price allocation
was preliminary and has been adjusted as additional information was obtained in 2014. An
additional $5.3 million in inherent contribution was recorded in 2014, principally due to $3.1 milion
better experience on accounts receivable and $1.8 million in better experisnce on accounts
payable.

Intangible assets acquired in conjunction with the Weslerly acquisition include:

Fair value as of Amortization
June 1, 2013 Period {in years)

Pafient relationships $ 1,530,000 10.0
Medical records 1,350,000 10.0
Trademark 810,000 8.0
$ 3,690,000 9.5 (weighted average)
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Lawrence + Memorial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2014 and 2013

L&M Healthcare has an affiliation agreement effective January 31, 1999 (the “Agreement”) with the
Hospice of Sautheastern Connecticut, Inc. {the “Hospice™). The Agreement gives L&M Haalthcare
a membership of the Hospice with one other not-for-profit healthcare organization. L&M Healthcare
does not have an equify investment in the Hospice because the affiliation agreement doeas not
require L&M Healthcare to provide capital fo the Hospice and 1.&M Healthcare is not entitled to any
of the net assets of the Hospice should the relationship terminate or the Hospice dissolve. The
Corporation and its subsidiaries have never given capital to the Hospice and the Hospice has never
made capital distributions to the Corporation or its subsidiaries.

L & M Physician Association, Inc. (‘LMPA™ was formed exclusively for the charitable purpose of

benefiting, supporting, and furthering the charitable activities of Lawrence + Memaorial Hospital by
engaging physicians to provide physician services to the Hospital, organizations affiliated with the
Hospital and communities thay serve for purpose of practicing medicine and health care setvices,

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation and its wholly~-owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepled
in the Unfted States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affact the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying footnotes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates and there is at least a reasonable possibility that
recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term. The Corporation's
significant estimates include the collectability of patient accounts receivable, useful lives of fixed
assets, setlements due fo third party payors, estimated reserves for self-insurance liabilities, and
benefit plan assumptions.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Corporation has been limited by
donors to a specific time frame or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted
by donors to be maintained by the Corporation and its subsidiaries in perpetuity or in funds held in
trust by others whose purpose is for the funds to be maintained in perpetuity.

Doner Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other agsets are reported af fair value at the date the
promise is received. The gifts are reported as elther temporarily or permanently restricted support if
they are received with donor stipulations that imit the use of the donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpese resfriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to untestricted net assets and
reported in the statements of operations as net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted
contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are recorded as
unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated statementis of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Corporation and its subsidiaries consider all highly liquid investments with criginal maturiies of
three months or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents.
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Lawrence + Memorial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2014 and 2013

Investments

Investments in eguity and debt securities are recorded at falr valie in the balance sheet. Fair value
is generally determined based on quoted market prices where available or net asset values
provided by investment managers. Investment income or loss (including realized gains and [osses
on investments, interest and dividends) is included in the excess of revenues over expenses unless
the income or loss is restricted by donor or law. Unrealized gains and losses on investmenis are
included In the change in net assets. Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, an “other than temporary impairment” is recognized if ihe Corporation does not
expect the fair value of a security to recover above cost or amortized cost. Once an "other than
temporary impairmeant” charge has baen recorded, a new cost basis is established.

The Corperation continues to review its securities for appropriate valuation on an ongoing basis.
The Corperation determined that none of their investments were impaired as of September 30,
2014 or 2013.

Realized and unrealized gains and losses on donor restricted endowment funds are included in
temporarily restricted net assets under State law which allows the Board to appropriate as much of
the net appreciation of investments as is prudent consideting the Corporation’s leng and short-term
neads, present and anticipated financial requirements, expected total return on its Investmenis,
ptice level trends, and general economic conditions.

Investments in limited liability companies are accounted for using the equity method in instances
where the limited parther's interest is more than minor (3-5%).

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value guidance establishes a hierarchy of valuation inpuis based on the extent to which the
inputs are observable in the marketplace. Observable inpuis reflect market data obtained from
sourcas independent of the reporting entity and unobservable inputs reflect the entities own
assumpticns about how market participants would value an asset or liability based on the best
information available. Valuation technigues used fo measure fair value must maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of uncbservable inputs. The guidance describes a fair
value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are considered observable
and the last unobservable, that may be used fo maasure fair value.

The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary
valuation methedologies used by the Corporation for financial insfruments meastred at fair value
oh a recurting basis. The three levels of inputs are as follows:

« leveli Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

e level2 Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either diractly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets in active markeis, guoted prices in markets that are
not active, or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the

same term of the assets.

¢ Level3  Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assels.

10
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Lawrence + Memorial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2014 and 2013

Assets Held in Trust by Others

The Hospital has been named sole or participating beneficiary in several perpetual and chariiable
remainder frusts. Under the terms of these trusts, the Hospital has the irrevocable right to receive
the income earned on the trust assets in perpetuily from the perpetual frusts and to receive the
remainder of the trust assets for the charitable remainder trusts. For perpetual trusts, the estimated
present value of the future payments to the Hospital is recorded at the fair value of the assefs held
in the trust. The charitable remainder trusts are recorded at the present value of the estimated
future distributions expecied to be received over the expected term of the frust agreement. The
Hospital uses appropriaie credif adjusted rates to discount amounis.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include assets set aside by the Board of Directors, coniribution receivables
and for the established purpose of providing for future improvement, expansion and replacement of
plant and equipment. In addition, the Corporation’s intersst in externally managesd trusts,
unexpended hond proceeds for construction purposes, and assets held by frustees under indenture
agreements relating to financing activities with the State of Connecticut Health and Education
Facilities Authority ("CHEFA") are also included therein.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, or if received as a donation, af the fair value on
the date received. The Corporation provides for depreciation of property, plant and equipment
using the straight-line method in amounts sufficient to amortize the cost of its assets over their
estimated useful lives. American Hospital Association lives are generally used and provide for a
2-25 year life for land improvements, 5-50 year life for buildings and a 2-25 year life for equipment.
Lease improvements are amortized over the life of the lease.

Nonoperating Gains and Losses
Activities other than in connection with providing health care services are considered to be
nonoperating.

Excess of Revenues over Expenses

The consclidated statemenis of operations include excess of revenues over expenses. Changes in
unrestricted net assets which are excluded from excess of revenues aver expenses, consistent with
industry practice, include unrealized gains and losses on investments, permanent transfers of
assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and services, contributions of long-lived assets
(including assels acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the
purposes of acquiring such asseis), and pensicn-related charges other than periodic pension costs
and other postretirement benefits liabilities.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Investments and other assets and liabilifies are carried al amounis that approximale fair value
based on current market conditions. The fair value of long term debt is estimated based an the
quoted market prices for the same or similar issuies or on curreni rates offered fo the Corporation
and its Subsidiaries for debt of the same remaining maturities.

Medical Malpractice Self-Insurance

The Corporation purchases claims made professional and general lability insurance to cover
medical malpractice claims from &M Indemnity Ltd. The Hospital, LMPA and VNA have adopted
the policy of self-insuring the tail portion of its malpractice insurance coverage. Management
accruas its best estimate of losses as Incidents which give rise to potential losses ocour.

11
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Income Taxes

The Corporation and its subsidiaries are not-for-profit organizations and are exempt from federal
income taxes on related income under Section 501(c){3} of the Internal Revenue Code, except for
L&M Systems. L&M Systems provides for taxes based on curtent taxable income and the future
tax consequences of temporary differences between financial and income tax reporting. Such
amounts are not material to the consolidated financial statements.

Inventories

Inventory consists of supplies, both medical and general, pharmaceuticals and food products
needed to sustain daily operation of patient care. [nveniories are carried at the lower of cost or
market under the first-in-first-out (FIFQ) method.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment whensver clrcumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Long-lived assats to be
disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost io dispose.

Accrued Vacation and Sick Pay

Accrued vacation is recorded as a liability as time is earned. As the time is used, the time is
relieved from the liability. Accrued sick time is recorded as a percent for employees who have a
balance greater than or equal fo 800 hours. The payout is only upon termination of employment.

Labor action update

The Hospital's negotiations with two of its three unions, AFT Healthcare, AFT-CT, AFT, AFL-CIO,
Local 5049 {registeted nurses) and AFT Healthcare, AFT-CT, AFLCIO, Local 5051 (licensed
praciical nurses and techniclans) for a new contract resulted in a 4-day strike that commencead on
November 27, 2013. The Hospital brought in temperary replacement workers, and, in order io
provide ongoing paiient care given the threat of additional, intermittent strikes, had a lockout of
employees through December 18, 2013. The lockout was lifted and employees returned o work
without a coniract being reached. A contract was reached and ratified and the workforce had a
three year contract that was signed in February 2014, The Hospital monitered the negative impact
of the strike and lockout on both revenues and expenses. The financial negative impact included In
these financials is approximately $14,200,000. This consisted of a reduction in net revenue of
approximately $1,900,000 and $12,300,000 of replacentent workers, secutity and reduced salary
costs during the strike and lock out period.

Subsequent Events

The Corporation has perfortmed an evaluation of subsequent events through January 23, 2015,
which is the date the financial statements were issued.

12
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Revenues From Services to Patients and Charity Care

The following summarizes net revenues from services to patients:

2014 2013

Gross charges from services to patients $1,078,626,933 $837,486,803

Less: Charity care 6,782,933 7,772,037

Charges from services to patients, net of charity cara 1,071,844,000 829,714,766
Deductions

Allowances 615,856,880 455,921,391

State of Connecticut uncompensated care system 2,458,020 1,047,636

Total deductions 618,314,900 456,969,027

Net revenues from services fo patients $ 453,529,100 $ 372,745,739

Patient accounts receivable and revenues are recorded when patient services are petformed.
Amounis received from most payors are different from established billing rates of the Corporation,
and these differences are accounted for as allowances. The State of Connecticut has reduced
Uncompensated Care Payments fo all hospitals beginning July 2013 for a three year period. . In
2014, the Corporation paid cash into the State of Connecticut Uncompensated Care Pooi that
exceeded the amount was received from the State.

Net patient service revenue is reparted at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third
pariy payors, and cthers for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third party payors. Retroactive adjustmenis are acorued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusied in future periods as
final settiements are determined. Adjustments related fo prior year setllements decreased the
Hospital's revenues by approximately $1,584,575in 2014 and increased the Hospital's revenue by
approximately$1,126,576 in 2013,

During 2014 and 2013, approximately 35% and 33%, respeciively, of net patient service revenue
was received under the Medicare program, and 11% and 12%, respectively, under the state
Medicaid program. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are
complex and subject to interpretation. The Hospital believes that itis in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened investigations
involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no regulatory inquiries have been made,
compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and
Intsrpretation. Non compliance could result In significant regulatory action including fines,
penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Changss in the Medicare and
Medicaid programs and reductions of funding levels could have an adverse impact on the Hospital.

The Hospiial accepts all patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patleni is classified as a charity
patient by reference to the established policies of the Hospital. Essentially, these policies define
charity services as those services for which no payment is anticipated. In assessing a patient’s
inability ta pay, the Hospital utilizes the generally recognized federal poverty income guidelines.

13
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3. Investmenis

Investments included in current assets consist of the following:

2014 2013
Other investments
Cash and cash equivalents 6,293,794 3,618,554
Bonds 40,097,819 38,890,479
Mutual funds 72,598,528 79,030,543
Hedge funds 57,360,354 54,766,338
Private equities 4,535,516 1,884,631
Marketable equities 3,642,028 3,149,441
Total other investmenis 184,426,039 181,339,586
Funds held in trust by others
Investments held in trust by others 11,348,610 10,956,429
Total funds held in frust by others 11,348,610 10,956,429
Endowment investments
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4307512 $ 3,785,088
Bonds 5,061,901 4.823,170
Mutual funds 14,191,010 13,462,698
Hedge funds 6,263,387 5,961,108
Private equities 209,627 112,204
Markeatable equities 6,607,991 5,981,527
Total endowment investments 36,641,428 34,155,796
Total investments at fair value $232,418,077  $226,452,211

14




Lawrence + Memorial Corporation and Subsidiaries
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The Corporation’s financlal instrument categorization is based upon the lowest level of input that is

significant to the fair value measurement within the valuation hierarchy. The following table

presents the financial instruments carried at fair value using the by the fair value guidance valuation
hierarchy defined above:

Other investments
Cash and cash equivalents

Bonds

Mutual funds
Hedge funds
Private equities

Markstable equities

Total other investments
Funds held in trust by others
Investments held in trust hy others

Total held in trust by cthers
Endowment investments
Cash and cash equivalents

Bonds

Mutual funds
Hedge funds
Private equities

Marketabie equities
Total endowment investments
Tatal Investments st fair value

Other investments
Cash and cash equivalents

Bonds

Mutuat funds
Hedge funds
Private equities

Marketable equities

Total other investments
Funds held in trust by others
Investments held in trust by others

Total held in trust by othars
_Endowment investments
~Cash and cash equivalents

Bonds

Mutual funds
Hedge funds
Private equities

Marketable equities
Total endowment investments
Total Investments at fair value

2014
Total

Levei 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
6,293,794 - - 6,293,704
33,184,268 6,913,550 - 40,097,819
72,506,528 - - 72,506,528
- - 57,360,354 57,360,354
- - 4,535,516 4,535,516
3,542 028 - - 3,542,028
115,616,619 6,913,550 81,805,870 184,425,039
- - 11,348,610 11,348,610
- - 11,348,810 11,348,610
$ 4,307,512 - 5 - § 4,307,512
3,300,408 1,449,067 312,427 5,061,802
12,613,287 - 1,577,722 14,191,009
- - 6,263,387 6,263,387
- - 209,827 209,627

8,607,901 - - 6,607,991
26,820,198 1,449,067 8,363,163 36,641,428
$ 142,445,817 8,362,617 § 81,607,643 $232,416,077

2013
Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
3,618,554 - - 3,618,554
32,082,552 8,807,927 - 38,830,479
79,030,543 - - 79,020,543
- - 54,766,338 54,766,338

- - 1,884,631 4,884,631

3,148,441 - - 3,149,441
117,881,090 8,807,927 58,650,969 181,339,986
- - 10,956,428 10,956,428
- - 10,056,429 10,856,429
$ 3,785,088 - 3 - $ 3,785,088
3,185,997 1,425,678 211,495 4,82317C
12,044,760 - 1,447,938 13,482,608
- - 5,661,108 5,961,108
- - 112,204 112,204
5,081,627 - - 5,981,527
24,997,372 1,425,678 7,732,746 34,155,796
$142,878462 $ 8233605 $§ 75340144 $226452,211
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Fair value for Level 1 is based upon quoted prices in active markets that the Corporation has the
ability fo access at the measurement date. Market price data is generally obtained from sxchange
or dealer markets. The Corporation does not adjust the quoted price for such assets,

Fair value for Level 2 is based aon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-based valuation
techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets. Inputs are
obtained from various sources including market participants, dealers and brokers.

Failr value for Level 3 is based on valuation technigues that use significant inputs that are
unobservable as they frade infraquently or not at all and reflect assumptions based on the best
information available in the circumstances.

Invastments included in Level 3 primarily consist of the Corporations ownership in alternative
investments (principally limited partnership interests in hedge funds). The value of these alternative
investments represents the ownership interest in the net asset value ("NAV") of the respective
partnership. The fair values of the securities held by limited partnerships that do not have readily
deferminable fair values are determined by the general partner and are based on appraisals, or
other estimaies that require varying degrees of judgment. [f no public market exists for the
investment securities, the fair value is determined by the general partner taking into consideration,
among other things, the cost of the securities, prices of recent significant placements of securities
of the same issuer, and subsequent developmenis concerning the companies to which the
securifies relate. Also included in Level 3 ihvestments are chatitable remainder trusts held by third
parties which are recorded at the present value of the future distributions expected fo ba received
over the term of the agreement and investments in for-profit companies.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Corporation believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could
result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

The following table is a roll forward of the amounts by investment type for financial instruments
classified by tha Corporation within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy defined above:

Beginning Ending
October 1, Invesiment Realfzad Unrealized Investment September 30,
2013 [ncome Gainsf{losses) &ains fFees Purchases Safes 2014
Investment pool
Hedge funds $ 62,386,880 & 624,850 % 270,868 § 2318323 § (158,368 $ 381,586 § (268,029) § 65,555,889
Privaie equities 1,998,835 - 387,382 311,627 (86,266) 2,169,982 {76,416) 4,703,144
Funds hald in trust 10,956,429 141,408 {38,835) 344,380 (51,515) - (3,258} 11,348,510

Total $ 75340144 3 766,069 § 619415 § 2,674330 § (206,170) $ 2,551,568 § (347,703) & 81,607,643

Beginning Ending

OCctaber 1, investment Realized Unrealized Investment September 30,
2012 Encome Gains Galns Faas Purchases Sales 2013
Investment pocl
Hedge funds $ 56124316 § 354,977 & 1,418,631 § 6509844 $  (131,712) § 1,037,785 § (1,627,081) § ©£2,386,880
Private equitles ABT 257 - 67,065 122,281 (63,520} 1,398,832 {15,000} 1,996,835
Funds held in trust 6,451,420 - - 320,158 (B4.865) 4,247,816 - 10,956,429

Total $ 63,862,803 § 354,977 § 1,185,686 § 5,854,383 § (260,267) § 6,684,433 § (1,642,0681) & 75,340,144
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Thare were no significant transfers of assets between levels for the year ended September 30,
2014.

A summary of the endowment investment refurn is presented below:

2014 2013
Investment income $ 752,014 § 649,876
Realized and unrealized gains 1,714,027 2,225,435
Management fees and other cosis (55,806} " (47,805)
Total return on endowment investmenis $ 2,410,235 $ 2,827,508

Following is additional information related to funds whose fair value is not readily determinable as of
September 30, 2014.

$ Amount of Timing to Restrictions
#Hof Remaining Unfunded Draw Down Redemption Redemption in Place at
Strategy Fair Vaiue [stvestments Lifa Commitments Commitments Terms Restrictions Year End
Equity sectyities Glpbal develaped $ 15,362,932 1 NiA $ - Noremsining Monthiywith 10 None None
and amearging commitments  day's notice
markel equity
Absalute refurmn Langishari and 18,653,864 2 NIA Ne remaining  Annuaiwith 80 Jeck up provision None
Jong-blased equity and commiments  day's notice of 12 menths from
credif hedge funds the purchase daie
Directional hedge  Longishart and 256,350,100 1 NiA Neremaining  Quarterly with lock up provision of None
Jong-blased equity end cammitments 80 day's nofice 26 months from
credit hedge funds the purchase date
Commodilies Commeodity index 6,145,893 1 NiA Neoremaining  Manthly with None None
commiiments 5 day’s nofica
Private equity Private equlty 4,745,144 8 NiA lquid long None Nane Nons
term 5 years

$ 70280083

4, Endowments

The Corporation's endowments consist of donor restricted endowment funds for a varisty of
purposes. The net assets associated with endowment funds including funds designated by the
Board of Directors to function as endowments are classified and reported based on the existence or
absence of donor imposed restrictions.

The Corporation understands net asset classification guidance to require that donor restricted
endowment gifts be maintained in perpetuity. Consistent with net asset classification guidance, the.
Corporation clagsifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the origiral value of gifts donated to
the permanent endowment, {b) the criginal value of subsequent gifis to the permanent endowment
and (¢) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added o the fund. The remaining
portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net
assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounis are appropriated for
expenditure. The Corporation considers the fellowing factors in making a determination to
appropriate or accumutlate endowment funds:

The duration and preservation of the fund.

The purposes of the Carporation and donor-restricted endowment fund.
General econemic conditions.

The possible effect of inflation and deflation.

The expected total return from inceme and the appreciation of investmenis.
¢+  Other resources of the Corporation.
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+ The investment policies of the Corporation.

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended September 30:

2014
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restrictedt Restricted Total
Endowment net assets af
beginning of year $ 0257584 $ 16178222 $ 7249065 § 32,684,861
Addition of Westerly Hospital Endowment Net Assels 18,975 - - 18,975
Investment return
Investment income 304,778 170,106 20,569 495,453
Net realized and unrealized gain 715,724 1,288,111 32,832 2,036,667
Contributions 183,147 - 80,073 263,220
Total investment return 1,203,648 1,458,217 133,474 2,765,340
Income distribution - {139,360} - (139,360}
Endowment net assets at end of year % 10480208 $ 17497079 § 7382520 § 35,359,816
2013
Temporarily Permanently
Unrastricted Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment nef assets at
beginning of year $ 6676524 §$ 13633435 § 2866683 § 23,177,043
Addition of Westerly Hospital Endowmant Net Assels 1,714,560 810,769 4,345,662 6,870,291
Invesiment returmn
- Investment income 287,500 161,761 (748) 448,513
£ Net reafized and unrealized gain 451,980 1,701,848 14,570 2,168,398
5 Contribuiions 126,620 - 22,888 149,508
'\ Total investment return 866,100 1,863,609 36,710 2,766,419
Income distribution - {129,592} - {128,592)
Endowment net assets at end of year § 0257584 § 16178222 $ 7,240,055 § 32,684,861

Endowment funds classified as permanenily and temporarily restricled net assets:

The portion of perpetual endowment funds retained permanently either by explicit donor stipulation
or by net asset classification guidance Is summarized as follows:

2014 2013

Temporarily restricted net assets

Unspent income and appreciation on permanently

restricted endowments for purchase of

squipment and healthcare services $ 17,497,079 § 16,178,222

Total endowment funds classified as :
temporarily resiricted net assets $ 17,497,078 § 16,178,222

Permanently restricted net assets

Corpus of permanently restricted contributions for

which income is to be used for purchase

of equipment and healthcare services $ 7.,382520 $§ 7,249,055

Total endowment funds classified as :
permanently restricted net assets $ 7382528 § 7,240,055
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Endowment Funds With Deficits

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the value of the initial and subsequent donor gift amounts (deficit). When
donor endowment deficits exist they are classified as a reduction of unresfricted net assets. The
Corporation analyzed the endowments and notes there are no deficits as of September 30, 2014
and 2013.

Endowment investment Retum Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Corparation has adopted endowment investment and spending policies that attempt to provide
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by the endowment while seeking to maintain
the permanent nature of endowment funds. Under this policy, the return objective for the
endowment assets measured over a full market cycle shall be to maximize the return against a
blended index, based on the endowment's target asset allocation applied to the appropriate
individual benchmarks.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Endowment Investment Objectives

To achieve its long-term rate of return objectives, the Corporation relies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation {realized and unrealized
gaing) and current yield (interest and dividends). The Corporation targets a diversified asset
allocation to achieve its long-term objectives within prudent Corporation risk constraints.

Endowment Spending Allacation and Relationship of Spending Policy to Investment
Objectives

Spending is guided by several factors most Important is the value of the portfolio. Generally, the
Board will approve a spending policy limiting annual expenditures for grants and operating
expenses up fo 4.5% of the value of the Funds’ assets based on a 12 quarter rolling average for the
endowment, and operaiing funds,

Investment managers are given ample notice of the required withdrawal schedule. Appropriate
liquidity is malntained fo fund these withdrawals without impairing the investmeni process.

5,  Temporary and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at September 30, 2014

and 2013:

2014 2012
Temporarily resfricted net assets
Funds held in trust by others $ 3,799,127 $ 3,687,812
Contribufions receivable 20,366 20,366
Free beds and plant replacement and expansion 16,368,376 15,304,434
Specific purpose reserves 7,321,842 5,412,960

§ 27,510,711 $ 24,425,572
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Permansantly restricted net assets at September 30, 2014 and 2013 are restricted io:

2014 2013
Permanently restricted net assets
Funds held in trust by others $§ 7571288 § 7,200,422
Bonor restricted endowment funds 8,132,530 7,999,056
$ 15,703,818 3 15289478
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consists of the following:
2014 2013
l.and and land improvemenis $ 23,323,273 § 21,524,487
Buildings 171,045,151 138,297,388
Equipment 284,414,885 252,682,233
478,783,309 412,504,108
Less: Accumulated depreciation (274,080,791) {250,099,034)
204,722,518 162,405,074
Construction in progress
2,127,781 45,776,965
$ 206,850,289 $208,182,039
Long-Term Debt
2014 2013
CHEFA Series F Revenue Bonds'
Various rate bonds, due 2014 to 2026 $ 30,000,000 $ 33.625,000
5.0% Term Bonds, due 2027 to 2031 8,705,000 8,705,000
5.0% Term Bonds, due 2032 o 2036 11,100,000 11,100,000
CHEFA Saries E revenue bonds
Variable rate bonds, due 2023-2034 - 22,990,000
CHEFA Series G revenue bonds
3.2% Term Bonds, due 2023, opiion fo extend 2038 29,200,000 -
CHEFA Searies H revenue bonds
Variable rafe bonds, due 2023-2034 21,405,000 -
Line of credit - 18,663,400
Tax exempt lease 0,963,984 11,596,368
Capital lease obligation 245,684 1,010,148
Total debt outstanding 111,520,668 107,689,918
Less: Amounts classified as current 5,478,980 9,347,876
Add: Bond premium 2,544,115 2,659,757

Total lorg-term portion of long-term debt

20
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e

On Sepfember 15, 2011 the Connecticut Health and Education Facilities Authority ("CHEFA”)
issued $58,940,000 of Series F Bonds (the *Series F Bands™) on behalf of the Hospital and
Lawrence + Memorial Corporation (collectively refarred to as the “Obligated Group” under the
Series F Bond agreements), The Series F Bonds are structured with a term bond due July 1, 2038,
with annual sinking fund payments due each July 1% Interest on the Series F Bonds is payable
semiannually on the first business day of January 1 and July 1 which began on January 1, 2012,

The Series E bonds were paid earty with the issuance of CHEFA series H.

The tax exempt lease was obtained on June 27, 2013 in the principal amount of $12,000,000. This
is a seven year equipment lease on spacific capital purchases that is administered through CHEFA
and Bank of America-Merrill Lynch. This lease will be amoriized monthly through June 27, 2020 at
a nominal annual interest rate of 1.759%.

On October 10, 2013 Series G was issued in a private placement offering with Bank of America-
Merrill Lynch and CHEFA in the amount of $29,200,000 with an interest rate of 3.20% until
October 1, 2023 with an option 1o extend at a negetiated rate with a maturity date of July 1, 2038.

On November 5, 2013, Series H was issued by CHEFA {o refinance Series E. Series H was issued
in the amount of $21,405,000 with a variable rate and a maturity date of July 1, 2034, This bond
has a letter of credit guaranieed by T.D. Bank. Interast on the Series H Bonds accrues at the
weekly rate and is payable on the first business day of each month commencing January 1, 2014.

Under the terms of the trust indenture for the Series H Bonds, the Obligated Group s required to
meet certain financial covenants including a debt service coverage ratio and days cash oh hand
ratio. Members of the Obligated Group are jointly and severally obligated to provide amounts
sufficient to enable the Authority to pay principal and interest on the Serfes H Bonds. The Bonds
and bond proceeds have been allocated to the Hospital and as such, the Hospital will make future
debt service payments as required under the terms of the bonds.

The bonds may be retired at an earlier date pursuant to terms of the master indenture. Payment of
the bonds is collateralized by a pledge of the gross receipts, as defined and certain real property of
the Hospital.

The Series H Bonds are considered variable rate demand bonds and are remarketed on a weekly
basis. The Hospital maintains a letter of credit in the amount of $21,405,000 which expires on
November 5, 2016. [f the bonds are unable to be remarketed, the letter of credit could be ulilized to
purchase the bonds. The Obligated Group would then be subject to the payment terms of the letter
of credit, which are monthly installments. The Series H Bonds have been successfully remarketed
in the past and there have been no draws on the letter of credit.

The Corporation hag a line of credit with Bank of Amarica-Merrill Lynch for $13,802,758. This was
taken as a bridge loan prior to issuance of Series G private Placement. The proceeds of Series G
were used to pay aff this ine of credit on October 10, 2013, LMW Healthcare had a line of credit
with Washington Trust for $4,860,642. This line was reissued at time of closing but was paid oif in
November 2013.
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The fair value of the cutstanding bonds is $106,215,296 and $78,820,117 at September 30, 2014
and September 30, 2013, respectively.

Principal repayments, excluding capital leases and the line of credit, are as follows:

Annpual
Principal
Years Repayment
2015 $ 3,660,000
2016 3,825,000
2017 4,010,000
2018 4,165,000
2019 and thereafier 85,650,000

$101,310,000

Cash interest payments of $3,566,051 and $2,682,472 were made in fiscal year 2014 and 2013,
respactively. No interest was capitalized during 2014 and 2013.

8. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The Hospital has a defined benefit plan covering all employees who elected to stay in the Plan.
The Plan is frozen to hew pariicipants as of June 30, 1999. The benefits are based on years of
service and the employee’s compensation during the last five years of employment.

The Haspital provides health care and life insurance benefits to its retired employees who meet
certain eligibility requirements. The Hospital's policy is to fund the cost of postretirement benefits
other than pensions as incurred. This plan was frozen to include only those employees whao retired
prior to May 1, 1994,
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The following table sets forth the Hospital's plans’ funded status and amounts recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2014 and 2013 (measurement dats of ), the
significant change in the actuarial loss is predominantly related to the decrease in the discount rate
used {o defermine the benefit obligation af the end of the year:

September 30):
Other Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
2014 2013 2014 . 2013
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $145,780,780 $147201452 § 1,000,744 § 1,280,208
Servica cost 2,402,724 1,536,115 - -
interest cost 6,417,121 5,685,930 20,884 31,620
Employee contributions 69,839 80,611 - -
Benefits paid (7,015,362) (6,590,842) (95,403} (107,793)
Actuarial (gainVloss 9,010,698 (2,133,477) (97,788) {212,291}
Benefit obligation: at end of year 156,674,808 145,788,789 837,437 1,000,744
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 105,860,348 08,208,308 - -
Actual return on plan assets 9,861,889 7,862,270 - -
Employae contributions 68,830 20,611 - -
Employer contributions 6,400,000 6,400,000 95,403 107,793
Benefits paid {7,015,362) {6,590,842) {85,403) (107,793)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 115,176,724 105,860,348 - -
Funded stafus of the plan {41,498,085) (39,929,441) {837,437) (1,000,744)
Unrecognized net loss/(gain) from past
experience different from that assumed and
effects of changes in assumptions 41,399,294 37,006,625 (488,085) (456,751)
Unrecognized prior service cost 79,157 190,310 - -
Accrued benefit costs recognized in the
statements of operations $ (19,634 $ (2.732,5068) $ ({1,325522) § (1,457,495)
Components of net periodic benefit costs
Service cpst $ 2402724 §$ 1538115 % - % -
Interest cost 8,417,121 5,685,930 29,884 31,620
Expected refurn on plan assets (7,520,200} (7,182,524) - -
Amariization of net loss/(gain) 2,676,330 3,175,983 {66,454) {45,046)
Net amortization and deferral 111,153 140,638 - -
Benefit cost $ 3687128 % 3,356,143 % (36,570) § (13,4286)

The weighted average assumptions used to determine the net benefit cost at the beginning of the
year are as follows:

2014 2013
Discount rate . 451 % 3.95 %
Average rate of compensation increases 2.50 % 2,50 %
Expected refurn on assets 7.50 % 7.50 %

The weighted average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation at the end of the year
are as follows:
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2014 2013

Discount rate 4.05 % 451 %
Average rate of compensation increases 2.50 % 2.50 %
The Plan’s asset allocations as of Sepiember 30 are as follows:
Asset Category 2014 2013
Cash 2% 3 %
Bonds 24 23
Mutual funds 45 44
Hedge funds 29 30

Total 100 % 100 %

The expected rate of return on plan assets is calculated based on past experience.

Expected benefits to be paid under the Hospital's plans are as follows:

Expected
Fiscal Years Beginning October 1, Benefits
2014 $ 7,399,905
2015 7,694,336
2016 8,101,708
2017 8,234,873
2018 8,658,711
Expected aggregate for 5 fiscal years beginning 2019 47,809,642

Annual contributions are dsterminad by the Hospital based upon calculations prepared by the
plan’s actuary. Expected contributions to the plans for 2014 are approximately (Unaudited):

Pension $ 6,400,000
Retires health 94,776

The weighted-avarage annual assumed rate of Increase in the per capita cost of covered henefits
(i.e., health care cost trend rate) for participants is assumed to be 8.0% in 2014 reducing to 5.0% by
the year 2021 and remaining at that level thereafier. This health care cost trend rate assumption
has a significant effect on the amounts reported. To lllustrate, a one percentage point increase in
the assumed health care cost trend rate would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation and service cost plus interest cost by approximately $56,000 and $71,000, raspectively,
at September 30, 2014 and 2013. A one percentage point decrease in the assumed health care
cost trend rate would decrease the accumulated postretirsment benefit obligation and service cost

plus inferest cost by approximately $51,000 and $65,000, respectively, at September 30, 2014 and
2013,

Plan Assets

The defined benefit plan assets are valued utilizing the same fair value hisrarchy as the Hospital’s
Investments as described in Note 1. '
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The following table summatrizas the fair values of investments by major type held by the pension
plan at September 30, 2014:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2014
Investments, at fair value
Cash $ 2417830 § - % - % 2417,830
Bonds 27,571,791 - - 27,571,791
Mutual funds 48,557,396 5,171,868 - 51,729,265
Hedge funds ~ - 33,457,838 33,457,838

Total investments, at fair value  $ 76,547,017 $ 5,171,868 $ 33,457,838 $ 115,176,724

The following table summarizes the fair values of investments by major type held by the staff
pension health plan at September 30, 2013:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2013
Investments, at fair value
Cash $ 3,043,961 $ - % - § 3,043,961
Bonds 24,488,654 - - 24,488,654
Mutual funds 41,880,187 4,553,588 - 46,433,775
Hedge funds - - 31,893,558 31,803,858

Total investments, at fair value § 69,412,802 § 4,553,588 ¢ 31,803,958  § 105,880,348

There were no transfers batween levels during 2014 or 2013.

The table below represents the change in fair value measurements for Level 3 investments held by
the plans for the years ended September 30.

2014 2013
Beginning balances $ 31,893,958 § 28,795,536
Realized gains 4,588,368 33,459
Fecs (79,614) (65,081)
Unrealized gains (2,944,874) 3,130,044
Purchases - -
Sales - -
Ending balances $ 33,457,838 % 31,803,958

The investment objective far the pension and post retirement plans seeks a positive long-term fotal
raturn after inflation to meet the Hospital's current and future ptan obligations.

Asset allocations combina tested theory and informed market judgment to balance investment risks
with the need for high returns.
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The Hospital's 401{k) plan covers sligible employees who elected to participate. Eligible
employees may coniribute a percentage of their salary. The Hospital matches 100% of the first 4%
aof gross pay deferred by employees for those emplayees who do not participate in the defined
benefit plan. Plan coniributions charged fo operations were approximately $4,584,389 and
$4,618,626 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The VNA has a defined contribution penslon plan which covers substantially alt of its employees
who have met specified age and length of service requirements. Contfributions to the Plan are
based cn 5% of efigible salaries and totaled approximately $463,475 and $446,631 for the years
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respsactively.

9.  Functional Expenses
The Corporation and its subsidiaries provide general health care services io residents within its

geographic location including pediatric care, cardiac catheterization, and outpatient surgery.
Expenses by function are as follows:

2014 2013
Health care setvices $348,719,365  $283,416,325
General and administrative 124,868,311 04,388,752

$473,587,676  § 387,805,077

10. Commitments and Contingencies
The Corporation and its subsidiaries are parties to various lawsuits incidental to their business,

Management believes that the lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on their financial
position, results of operations, and changes in net assets or cash flows.
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Ernst & Young LLP Tak: +1 860 247 3100
20 Church Street Fax: +1 860 725 6040

Hartferd, CT 06103 ey.com

Building a better
working world

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Northeast Medical Group

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northeast Medical Group
(“NEMG™), which comprise the balance sheets as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the
related statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
tmplementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant fo the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud
OF e1ror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to frand or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal conirol relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well ag evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1406-1265149 . _ 1

A member firm of Erns? & Young Giobal Limited
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Northeast Medical Group at September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the
results of its operations and changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended

in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
St o MLL?

December 23, 2014

1406-1265149

A mamber firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited




Northeast Medical Group

Balance Sheets

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable for services to patients, less allowance
for uncolleciible accounts of approximately $4,599,000 and
$5,587,000 at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively

Due from affiliates, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Goodwill

Property, plant, and equipment:
Purniture and equipment
Leasehold tmprovements

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Construction in Progress

Other long-term assets
Total assets

Liabilities and unrestricted net assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages, and payroll taxes
Third-party payor liabilities
Due to affiliates, net
Total current liabilities

Unrestricted net assets
Total liabilities and unrestricted net assets

See accompanying nofes.

1406-1265149

September 30

2014

2013

$ 2,973,459

$ 11,005,495

13,324,451 7,360,118
3,786,174 -
2,913,294 2,760,653

22,997,378 21,126,266

266,975 266,975
4241332 2,365,740
1,217,073 1,348,933
5458405 3,714,673
2417456 2,347,494
3,040,949 1,367,179

203,394 -
3,244,343 1,367,179
2,012,669 3,324,772

$ 28,521,365

§ 26,085,192

$ 6,699,037

$ 4,443,853

14,528,530 12,645,364
3,162,744 1,322,818
- 5104240
24390311 23,516,277
4,131,054 2,568,915

$ 28,521,365 $ 26,085,192
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Northeast Medical Group

Statements of Operations and Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets

Operating revenue:
Net patient service revenue
Less: Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue, less provision for bad debts

Contract and other revenue
Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Professional fees, supplies, and other
Depreciation
Amortization
Total operating expenses
Deficiency of revenue over expenses

Net asset transfer from Yale-New Haven Health
Services Corporation

nerease in unrestricted net assets

Unrestricted net assets, beginning of period
Unrestricted net assets, end of period

See accompanying notes.

1406-1265149

Year Ended September 30
2014 2013
$ 128,511,845 § 100,083,369
5,357,134 3,353,671
123,154,711 96,729,698
81,519,629 67,190,525
204,674,340 163,920,223
125,799,688 104,904,493
22.402,600 21,466,568
99,858,399 72,706,602
640,319 596,711
1,594,390 1,817,319
250,295,396 201,491,693
(45,621,056) (37,571,470)
47,183,195 37,571,470
1,562,139 -
2,568,915 2,568,915

$ 4,131,054 § 2,568,915
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Northeast Medical Group

Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in unrestricted net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase i unresiricted net
assets to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Bad debt expense
Net asset transfer from Yale-New Haven Health
Services Corporation for operations
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Due (to) from affiliates, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other long term assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages, and payroll taxes
Third-party payor liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisitions of property, plant, and equipment

Net asset transfer from Yale-New Haven Health Services
Corporation for acquisition of PriMed

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net asset transfer from Yale-New Haven Health
Services Corporation for operations

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes.

1406-1265149

Year Ended September 30
2014 2013
1,562,139 -
640,319 596,711
1,594,390 1,817,319
5,357,134 3,353,671
(45,621,056)  (37,571,470)
(11,321,467) (5,787,720)
(8,890,416) 6,469,426
(152,641) (436,082)
(282,287) (844,070)
2,255,184 1,909,791
1,883,166 1,399,054
1,839,926 663,682
(51,135,609)  (28,429,688)
{955,344) (970,226)
(1,562,139) -
(2,517,483) (970,226)
45,621,056 37,571,470
45,621,056 37,571,470
(8,032,036) 8,171,556
11,005,495 2,833,939

S 2973459 § 11,005,495
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Northeast Medical Group

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2014

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Northeast Medical Group (NEMG) is a tax-exempt medical foundation that provides physician-
related services to Bridgeport, Greenwich and Yale-New Haven Hospitals (the Hospitals) and
their surrounding communities. NEMG commenced operations on April 1, 2010, using the
existing legal infrastructure of its predecessor, Mill Hill Medical Consultants, Inc.

Yale-New Haven Health Services Corporation (YNHHSC) is the sole member of NEMG,
Bridgeport Hospital (BH), Yale-New Haven Hospital (YNHH), Greenwich Health Care
Services, Inc. (GHCS) and Y-NHH-MSO, Inc. (MSO). YNHH, BH and GHCS are tax-exenpt
organizations and serve as the sole member/parent for their respective group of regional
healthcare providers and related entities. Pursuant to its corporate bylaws, NEMG operates
autoncmously with a separate Board of Directors, management staff and medical staff; however,
as the sole member, YNHHSC refains certain reserve powers such as approving NEMG’s
strategic plans, operating and capital budgets and Board of Directors appointments. YNHHSC
has both the mtent and ability to provide financial support relative to operations and strategic
acquisitions to NEMG for the foreseeable future.

Concurrent with the issuance of the Connecticut Health and Educational Facilities Authority
(CHEFA) Revenue Bonds, Yale-New Haven Health Obligated Group Issue, Series A, B, C, D
and E dated May 20, 2014, six members of the Yale-New Haven Health System and subsidiaries
were combined to form an Obligated Group. The Obligated Group comprises YNHHSC, YNHH,
Yale-New Haven Continuum Cotporation, BH, the Bridgeport Foundation, and NEMG (the
“Obligated Group”). YNHHSC serves as agent of the Obligated Group. The members of the
Obligated Group have adopted certain governance provisions in their certificates of
meorporation and by-laws pursuant to which YNHHSC retains the aunthority to directly take
certain actions on behalf of each Obligated Group member without the approval of the board of
trustees of the applicable Obligated Group member, including the incurrence of indebtedness on
behalf of each Obligated Group member, the management and control of the lquid assets of
each, and the appointment of the president and chief executive officer of each Obligated Group
member. ¢

On June 1, 2014, NEMG and YNHHSC acquired certain assets of PriMed, LLC (“PriMed™), a
physician practice for approximately $54.2 million. NEMG received $1.6 million in assets.
YNHHSC contributed the entire purchase price, of which $25 million was transferred each from
YNHH and BH to YNHHSC. PriMed is a multi-specialty group of approximately 120 providers
in 36 locations across Fairfield County and New Haven County, Connecticut. PriMed also is the
sole member of a gastroenterology surgery center, the Fairfield County Endoscopy Center, and

1406-1265149 6
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Northeast Medical Group

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

offers a number of ancillary services such as a sleep laboratory, cardiac diagnostic testing,
physical therapy and nutritional counseling. Under the terms of the transaction, NEMG and
YNHHSC acquired substantially all the assets of PriMed and a 40% interest in the
gastroenterology surgery center. YNHHSC deposited $5.5 million info escrow to fund the
purchase of the remaining 60% membership interest in the gastronenterology surgery center.
Also at acquisition, YNHHSC recorded a liability of $5 million for the amounts to be paid to
PriMed physicians contingent on their continued service in the three years following the
acquisition closing date as per the agreement.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, including estimated uncollectibles for accounts receivable
for services to patients, and Habilities, including estimated payables to third-party payers and
disclosure of contingent assets and Habilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates
also affect the amounts of revenue and expenses daring the reporting period. There is at least
reasonable possibility that certain estimates will change by material amounts in the near term.
Actual resnlts could differ from these estimates.

Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid financial instruments with
original maturities of three months or less when purchased, which are not classified as assets
limited as to use or held in short-term investments.

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with domestic financial institutions with deposits
which exceed federally insured limits. It is NEMG’s policy to monitor the financial strength of
these institutions.

Goodwill
At least annually, NEMG is required to perform a review of its goodwill for impairment. Based
on NEMG’s review at September 30, 2014, goodwill, which is related to the acquisition of the

Huntingion practice, was determined not to be impaired based on the practice’s positive financial
resulfs.

1406-1265149 7
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Northeast Medical Group

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable result from the health care services provided by NEMG. Additions to
the allowance for doubtful accounts result from the provision for bad debts. Accounts written off
as uncollectible are deducted from the allowance for doubtful accounts.

The amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon management’s assessroent of
historical and expected net collections, business and economie conditions, trends in Medicare
and Medicaid health care coverage, and other collection indicators.

Investments

NEMG has designated all investments reported in the accompanying balance sheets as trading
securities. As such, unrealized gains and losses are included in deficiency of revenue over
expenses. Investments in cash and cash equivalents with readily determinable fair values and
investments in debt securities are measured at fair value in the accompanying balance sheets.

Realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends are included in gain or loss from
operations unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment purchased are recorded at cost and those acquired by gifts and
bequests are recorded at appraised or fair value established at the date of confribution.
The recorded assets and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts
when such assets are disposed of and any resulting gain or loss is included in operations.
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment is computed on the straight-line method in
amounts sufficient to depreciate the cost of the assets over their estimated unseful lives.
Depreciation expense was $640,319 and $596,711 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

Uncompensated Care and Community Benefit Expense
NEMG’s commitment to community service is evidenced by services provided to the poor and
benefits provided to the broader community. Services provided to the poor include services

provided to persons who cannot afford healthcare becanse of inadequate resources and/or who
are uninsured or underinsured.

1406-1265149 8
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Northeast Medical Group

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

NEMG makes available free care programs for qualifying patients. In accordance with the
established policies of NEMG, during the registration, billing and collection process a patient’s
eligibility for free care funds is determined. For patients who were determined by NEMG to have
the ability to pay but did not, the imcollected amounts are bad debt expense. For patients who do
not avail themselves of any free care program and whose ability to pay cannot be determined by
NEMG, care given but not paid for, is classified as charity care.

Together, charity care and bad debt expense represent uncompensated care. The estimated cost
of total uncompensated care is approximately $4,286,911 and $2,811,246 for the years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2014, respectively. The estimated cost of uncompensated care is based
on the ratio of cost to charges associated with providing charity care.

The estimated cost of charity care provided was $903,089 and $790,638 for the years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The estimated cost of charity care is based on the
ratio of cost to charges, as determined by company-specific data.

For the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, bad debt expense at charges was $35,357,134
and $3,353,671, respectively. For the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, bad debt
expense at cost was $3,383,822 and $2,020,608. The bad debt expense is multiplied by the ratio
of cost to charges for purposes of inclusion in the total nncompensated care amount identified
above.

Medical Malpractice Insurance

The physicians of NEMG are covered by the Hospital’s malpractice insurance policy. This
charge is a component of other expenses.

Deficiency of Revenue over Expenses

In the accompanying statement of operations and changés in unrestricted net assets, deficiency of
revenue over expenses is the performance indicator.

Contributions of, or restricted to, property, plant, and equipment, transfers of assets to and from
affiliates for other than goods and services, and pension and other post-retirement liability
adjustments are excluded from the performance indicator but are included in the change in net
assets.

1406-1265149 9
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Northeast Medical Group

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Net Patient Service Revenue

Accounts receivable for services to patients and net patient service revenue are recorded when

patient services are performed. NEMG records net patient service revenue for various payers
based on a fee-for-service arrangement. Amounts received from certain payers are different from
established billing rates of NEMG, and the difference is accounted for as contractual allowances.

Revenue from Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 38% and 34% of
NEMG net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are
extremely complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable
possibility that recorded estimates will change by material amounts in the near term. NEMG
believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and 1s not awate of any
pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no
such regnlatory inguiries are outstanding, compliance with such laws and regnlations can be
subject to future government review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action,
inchuding fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Changes in
the Medicare and Medicaid programs and the reduction of funding levels could have an adverse
mpact on NEMG.

Patient service revenue for the year ended September 30, 2014, net of contractual allowances and
discounts (but before the provision for bad debts), recognized from these major payor sources
based on primary insurance designation, is as follows:

2014 2013
Third-party $ 125,882,388 $ 95,391,944
Self-pay $2,629,457 4,691,425
Total all payors $ 128,511,845 § 100,083,369

Deductibles and copayments under third-party payment programs within the third-party payor
amount above are the patient’s responsibilify and NEMG considers these amounts in its
determination of the provision for bad debts based on collection experience. Accounts receivable
are also reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts. In evalvating the collectability of
accounts receivable, NEM( analyzes its past history and identifies trends for each of its major
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Northeast Medical Group

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

payor sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and
provision for bad debts. Management regularly reviews data about these major payor sources of
revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for doubtful accounts.

NEMG’s allowance for doubtful accounts totaled approximately $4,599,000 and $5,587,000 at
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accoumts for self-pay
patients was approximately 83% of self-pay accounts receivable as of September 30, 2014 and
2013. Overall, the total of self-pay discounts and write-offs did not change significantly in 2013.
NEMG did not experience significant changes in write-off frends and did not change its charity
care policy in 2014.

Income Taxes

NEMG is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal or state income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501(a) of the Code.

2. Transactions with Hospitals
Contract Revenue

NEMG has a contract with the Hospitals to provide the following types of physician-related
services: patient care, medical education, research and administration. In return for these
services, the Hospitals pay NEMG a contract fee based upon the portion of each physician’s time
that is spent performing these services for the Hospitals. The fee was $81,519,629 and
$67,190,525 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Cost Sharing
Certain overhead expenses incurred by the Hospitals that directly or indirectly benefit NEM(G are
charged to NEMG. Those expenses relate to the following services: financial management, data

processing, human resources, legal services, secretarial and administrative support, certain
employee benefits, and insurance coverage.
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Northeast Medical Group

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Retirement Benefit Plans

NEMG is part of the Yale-New Haven Hospital’s defined benefit pension plan (the Defined
Benefit Plan) covering substantially all employees. The benefits are based on years of service
and employees’ average compensation as defined by the plan documents. NEMG and certain
other affiliates of Yale-New Haven Hospital make contributions in amounts sufficient to meet
the required benefits to be paid to plan participants as they become due as required under the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. NEMG recorded expense of $3,516,178 and
$3,348,007 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

4. Commitments and Contingencies

Various lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of operations are pending or are in
progress against NEMG. Such lawsuits and claims are either specifically covered by insurance as
explained in Note 1 or are not deemed material. While the outcome of these lawsuits cannot
be determmed at this time, management believes that any loss, which may arise from these
actions, will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations
and changes in unrestricted net assets of NEMG.

NEMG leases certain office space and equipment from both related and unrelated parties. Rent
expense was approximately $6,295,931 and $4,867,876 for the years ended September 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively. The total rent for related parties was approximately $1,508,286 and
$1,286,385 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

At September 30, 2014, the future minimum rental commitments under these noncancellable
operating leases were:

Total Futare
Minimum Rental
Commitments
Fiscal year: '

2015 $ 9,435,168
2016 8,946,441
2017 8,167,760
2018 7,333,344
2019 7,006,221
Thereafier 7,711,168

$ 48,600,102
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Northeast Medical Group

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4, Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

During 2014 and 2013, NEMG recorded decreases in net patient service revenue of
approximately $1,839,927 and $302,861, respectively, related to changes in previously estimated
third-party payor settlements.

5. Functional Expenses

NEMG provides general physician-related services to residents within its geographic location.
Expenses related to these services are as follows:

Year Ended September 30
2014 2013
Health care services $ 228,560,350 § 186,865,034
General and administrative 21,735,046 14,626,659

$ 250295396 $ 201,491,603

6. Related-Party Transactions

NEMG provides physician-related services to the Hospitals and is billed for certain overhead
expenses incurred by the YNHHSC that directly or indirectly benefit NEMG, as described in
Note 2. In addition, NEMG purchases certain management services from the delivery networks.
The related amounts are as follows:

Year Ended September 30
2014 2013

Services to affiliates:

YNHHSC $ 81,519,629 § 67,190,525
Due (to) from affiliate:

Y-NH Medical Service Organization $ (134,517) §  (143,196)

Bridgeport Hospital 1,796,967 1,381,761

YNHHSC (1,127,449) (6,653,943)

Greenwich Hospital 641,262 859,765

Yale-New Haven Hospital 2,609,911 (548,629)

$ 3,786,174 § (5,104,242)
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Northeast Medical Group

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

7. Fair Valnes Measurements

In determining fair value, NEMG utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. NEMG also considers
nonperformance risk in the overall assessment of fair value.

ASC No. 820-10 establishes a three fier valuation hierarchy for fair value disclosure purposes.
This hierarchy is based on the transparency of the inputs utilized for the valuation. The three
levels are defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical assets or liabilities. This established hierarchy assigns the highest priority to Level 1
assets.

Level 2: Observable imputs that are based on data not quoted in active markets, but
corroborated by market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are used when little or no market data is available. The
Level 3 inpuis are assigned the lowest priority.

Financial assets carried at fair value for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 consisted
of cash and cash equivalents and were $2,973,459 and $11,005,495, respectively, both classified
as Level 1 assets.

8. Grant Revenue

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 included provisions for implementing
health information technology under the Health Information Technology for Economic and
Clinical Health Act (HITECH). The provisions were designed to increase the use of electronic
health record (EHR) technology and establish the requirements for a Medicare and Medicaid
incentive payment program beginning in 2011 for eligible providers that adopt and meaningfully
use certified BHR technology. Eligibility for annual Medicare incentive payments is dependent
on providers demonstrating meaningful use of FHR technology in each period over a four-year
period. Initial Medicaid incentive payments are available to providers that adopt, implement, or
upgrade certified EHR technology. Tn subsequent years, providers must demonstrate meaningful
use of such technology to qualify for additional Medicaid incentive payments. Providers that do
not successfully demonstrate meaningfil use of EHR technology are subject fo payment
penalties or downward adjustments to their Medicare payments beginning in federal fiscal
year 2015.
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Northeast Medical Group

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

8. Grant Revenue (continued)

NEMG uses a grant accounting model to recognize revenue for the Medicare and Medicaid EHR
incentive payments. Under this accounting policy, EHR incentive payment revenue is recognized
when NEMG is reasonably assured that the BHR meaningful use criteria for the required period
of time were met and that the grant revenue will be received. EHR incentive payment reverue
totaling approximately $2,023,531 and $1,130,000 for Medicare for the year ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, is included in contract and other revenue in the
accompanying statement of operations and changes in unrestricted net assets. Income from
incentive payments is subject to retrospective adjustment upon final settlement of the applicable
cost report from which payments were calculated. Additionally, NEMG's attestation of
compliance with the meaningful use criteria is subject to audit by the federal government.

9. Subsequent Events
Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 23, 2014, which is the date the

financial statements were available to be issued. No events have occurred that require disclosure
or adjustment of the financial statements.
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Northeast Medical Group

Net Revenue Rate Increases
1) Government
2) Non-Government
3) Inpatlent Volume
4} Outpatient Volume

EXPENSES
Balaries and Fringe Benefits

Non-Salary
1) Supplies and Brugs
2) Professional and Contracted Services
3) Malpractice Insurance and Lease Expenss

4y All Other Expenses

FTEs

1} Total estimaied FTEs

194

Assumptions

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
3.2% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2%
0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%
0.5% C.5% 0.5% 0.5%

FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 20%

FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018

1,176 1,175 1,175

1,175
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Lawrence + Memorial Physician Associates Merger with and into NEMG

Assumptions
Net Revenue Rate Increases FY 2016 FY 207 FY 2018 FY 2019
1) Government 0-1.4% 0-1.4% 0-1.2% 0-1.2%
2) Non-Government 0-2.5% 0-2.0% 0-2.0% 0-2.0%
3} Inpafient Volume 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
4) Outpatient Volume 0.0%  3.0% 0.0% 0.0%
FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
EXPENSES
A. Salaries and Fringe Benefits 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
B. Non-3alary
1) Supplies and Drugs 2.0% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
2) Professional and Contracted Services  2.0% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
3) Malpractice Insurance and Lease Expe  0.0% 0.0% 0.0% ) 0.0%
4) Ali Other Expenses 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%
5) Ali Other Expenses
FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
FTEs
1) Total estimated FTEs 181 0 a 0

Note - The above increase projections reflect all changes relating to Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement
regulations.
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